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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of JSW Hydro Energy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standaione Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of JSW Hydro Energy Limited ("the
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the standalone
statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of cash flows
and standalone statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, induding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatians given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit induding other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities far the Audit of the Standalone Finandal Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalane financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have Fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not indude the standalone finandal statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone finandal statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance condusion thereon.

In connediion with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we condude that there is a
material misstatement of this ather information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Standalone Finandial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (S) of Section 134 of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone finandal statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, finandal performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
induding the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also indudes maintenance of
adequate accounting recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability ta continue as a going concem, disdosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn
and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that indudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errvor, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under dause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial
controls with reference to standalone finandat statements in place and the aperating effectiveness of such
controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
condude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
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the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concem.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone finandal statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit wark; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incduding any significant deficiencies in intermal contral
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper boaks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensive income, the standalone statement of cash flow and the standalone statement of
changes in equity deait with by this report are in agreement with the baoks of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the intermnal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Repart in "Annexure B” ta this report.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of the Act, as amended:
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Ad.

h. With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule (11)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2015, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disdosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 36 of the standalone finandial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts incduding derivative contracts far which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vipul K Cholsi
Partner

M. No.37606
UDIN: 20037606AAAAA06181
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19.05.2020
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APPENDIX A TO YHE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of JISW Hydro
Energy Limited of even date)

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™

(vi)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, induding quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment on the basis of available information.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a
phased manner which, in our apinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on
the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all
the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company
(except the title deeds of certain immovable properties are held in the name of the erstwhile promater)
as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease
and disclosed as property, plant and equipment or right of use assets in the standalone financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Campany (except the title deeds of certain
lease agreements are held in the name af the erstwhile promater) where the Compaay is the lessee in
the agreement.

The inventory has been physically verified by the Company at reasonable intervals during the year. In our

opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the

physical stocks and the book recards were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

Accarding to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured

or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register

maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted

any loans or provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under section 185 of the act. Based on

our audit pracedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalane financial
statements and according to the information and explanatians given by the management, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of the investment made by it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any depaosits from

the public. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Act.

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the

Central Government for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are

of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,

however, not required to make a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined

by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues incduding provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, service ax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, service
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

5of 8|

<



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as follows:

TWemeorthe | Natreol | Amaunt | Pedod & which the | Forum whero dispite
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The Income Tax Commissioners of
Act, 1961 Income tax 10.77 | A.Y. 2015-16 Income Tax (Appeals)

“niet of amounts paid under protest

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

{xii)

in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the banks and dues to debhenture-holders during the year. The
Company has not taken any loans from finandal institutions and govemment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, monies raised by
the company by way of debt instruments in the nature of non-convertible debentures and term loans were
applied for the purposes for which they were raised. According to the information and explanations given by
the management, the Campany has not raised any money way of initial public offer/further public offer and
hence not commented upon.

Based on the audit pracedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the Management, we report
that no material fraud by the Company and on the Company by its officer or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

Based on the audit procedures perfarmed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone
finandial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the Management, we report
that the managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule (V) to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order
is naot applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In aur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions during the year with

the refated parties were approved by the Audit Committee and are in compliance with section 177 of the Act
where applicable and since the said transactions were in the ordinary course of business of the company and
were at arm’s length basis, the provisions of section 188 are not applicable, and the details have been disdosed
in the standalane financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Acoording to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet,

(xv)

the Company has nat made any preferential allotment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

Based on our audit pracedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone
finandial statements, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not enbered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For

Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

SHAH GUPTA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reai tion No.: 109574W

b er" T

ipul’K Cholesi
Partner
M. No.37606
UDIN: 20037606AAAAA06181
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19.05.2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal finandial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Hydro Energy Limited ("the
Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal finandal controls based
on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria eslablished by the Campany considering the essential
components of intermal control stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Intemal Finandal Controls Over
Finandal Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finandal controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s polides, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over finandial reporting
with reference to these standalane financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bath applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial cantrols over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls aver finandial reporting included
abtaining an understanding of intermal financial controls aver finandal reporting with reference to these
standalone finandal statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal ocontrol based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Intermal Finandal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to. these
Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reparting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controf aver financial reparting with reference
to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted acoounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Finandal Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over finandal reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, induding the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the polidies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial contrdls with reference ta these standalone
financial statements and such intemal finandal controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

,/ /é AT

ipul K Cholksi ~
Partner //:f"
M. No.37606 -5
UDIN: 20037606AAAAA06181
Place: Mumbai
Date: 19.05.2020
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as an 31st March, 2020

(¥ Crare )
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars Note No. 2020 2019
A ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 5,342.84 6,715.10
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 17.97 B.16
(c) intangible assets 6 784.34 B14.34
{d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 10 68.86
(il) Other financial assets 7 219.39 225.74
(e} Other non-current assets 8 25.53 25.44
{f) Income tax assats 34.04 33.23
Total non - current assets 7.492.97 7.822.01
2 |Current assets
(a) Inventorles 9 11.46 10.98
(b) Financial assets
{i) Investments 10 203.84 107.06
{ii) Trade receivables 11 308.15 198.59
{iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 0.48 46.14
{tv]) Bank balances ather than (iii) above 12 31.84 2B.34
(v) Other financial assets 7 532 .
{c) Other current assets 8 32,94 33.82
Total current assets 594,03 424.93
Total Assets (1+2) 8,087.00 8,246.94
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 1,250.05 1,250.05
{b) Other equity 14 589.32 501.15
Total equity 1,839.37 1,751.20
Liabilities
2 |Non-current liabilitles
(a) Financial labilitles
(i) Borrowings 15 5,140.30 5,809.77
() Other financial llabllities 16 26.54 0.01
{b) Provisions 17 4.68 3.23
Total non - current llabilities 5.171.52 5,813.02
3 |Current llabilities
{a) Financlal liabllities
(i) Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises 18 0.55 0.78
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 18 74.58 49,46
{il) Other financlal llabilitias 16 996.94 623.32
{b) Other current liabilities 19 2.65 7.81
{c) Provislons 17 138 1.36
Total current lfabllitles 1,076.11 682.73
Total Equity and Liabflitles (1+2+3) 8,087.00 8,246.94

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regigtration No.: 109574\

Ve e

Vipul K Choksi
Partner
I No. 37606

Place: Mumbai
Data: -19th May, 2020
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Gyan Bhadra Kumar
Whole Time Director
[DIN: 03620109)

For and on behaif of Board of Directors
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Prashant Jain
Chairman
[DIN: 01281621]

Sanjeev iango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

{ T crore )
For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars NoteNo- | 31t March 2020 31st March,2019
| Revenue from operations 20 1,263.69 1,243.97
il Otherincome 21 11.58 31.77
it Total income i + !} 1,275.27 1,275.74
IV Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 22 51.43 46.20
{b) Finance costs 23 550.00 611.66
{c) Depreciation and amaortisation expenses 24 433.89 432.32
(d) Other expenses 25 133.15 126.88
Total expenses (V) 1,168.47 1,217.06
vV Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and tax (I-1V) 106.80 58.68
VI Exceptional items - -
VIl Profit before tax (V - VI) 106.80 58.68
Vil Tax Expense
Current tax 18.39 14.52
Deferred tax (15.42) (30.16)
X Deferred Tax (recoverable)/adjustable in future tariff 15.42 {5.09)
26 18.39 (20.73)
X Profit for the year (VIl-VIil) 88.41 79.41
X1 Other comprehensive income {0.45) {0.84}|
(i)  Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities / (1.07)
(asset) (0.55) '
(i)  Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 0.10 0.23
Xl Total comprehensive Income for the year ( X + X! ) 87.96 78.57
XNl Earnings per equity share of X 10 each:
Basic 35 0.71 0.64
Diluted 0.71 0.64

See accompanying notes to the standalone financlal statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

,)//g/ﬂ"/ i Gétmbﬁ-ca&,&'

Vipul K Choksi =1
Partner /G
M No. 37606

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19th May, 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Gyan Bhadra Kumar
Whole Time Director
[DIN: 03620109]

Prashant Jain
Chairman
[DIN: 01281621)

Sanjeev Kango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financlat Officer




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020

47

(R Crore)
Partlculars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
| |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit befors Tax 106.80 58.68
Adjusted for:
Degreciation and amortisation 433.89 432.32
Interest Income (2.41) (15.65)
Net Gain from current Investments (6.33) {2.45)
Excess provision na langer required written back {0.17) (4.62)
Share based payment axpenses 0.21 0.05
Finance costs 550.00 611.66
Other adjustment (OCl) {0.45) {0.84)

974.74 1013.47
Operating profit before working capital changes 1081.54 1072.15
Adjustment for:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and other receivables {108.68) 27.66
Increase in Trade payables & Other Liabilities 372.69 172.97
Decrease in Loans & advances and other non-current assets 249 29.32
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {0.48) 0.47

266.02 230.42
Cash generated from operations 1347.56 1302.58
Direct taxes paid {19.20) (32.89)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1328.36 1269.69

in  |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP and capital advances (41.44) (7.17)
Investment made In Mutual Fund (96.78) {20.64)
investment made in Equity (68.86)
Interest received 1.45 14.96
Net Gain from current investments 6.33 9.45
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {199.30) {3.40)}
in |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings repaid (642.12) {724.65)
Finance costs paid {532.60) (585.93)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {1,174.72) {1,310.58)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {H+11+111) (45.66) (44.29)|
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the beginning of the year 46.14 90.43
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the end of the year 0.48 46.14

See accompanylng notes to the standalone financial statements
Note:

The Statement of cash flows has basen prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of cash flows.

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co

Chartered Accountants
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020

a. Equity share capital ( ¥cCrore)
Batance at the 1st April, 2018 1,250.05
Changes in equity share capital durlng the FY 2018-19 -
Balance at the 1st Aprlil, 2019 1,250.05
Changes in equity share capltal durlng the FY 2019-20 -
Balance at the 31st March, 2020 1,250.05
b. Other equity ( ¥cCrore )
Particulars Reserves & surplus Capital Total
Contribution by
Equity-settied Debenture  |Retained earnings parent company
employee benefits| redemption
reserve reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 0.24 38.45 306.32 156.14 501.15
Profit for the year 88.41 - 88.41
Recognition of Share based payment 0.21 0.21
Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve (38.45) 38.45
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - (0.45) - {0.45)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March'20 0.45 432.73 156.14 589.32
{Z Crore)
|Particulars Reserves & surplus Capital Total
Equity-settled Debenture | Retained earnings| Contribution by
employee benefits| redemption parent campany
reserve reserve
Balance at 1st Aprli, 2018 0.19 60.00 206.20 156.14 422,53
Profit for the year 79.41 79.41
Recagnition of Share based payment 0.05 - - - 0.05
Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve {21.55)| 21.55 - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - (0.84) = (0.84})
Total comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March 19 0.24 38.45 306.32 156.14 501.15

See accompanying notes to the standalone financlal statements

As per our attached report of even date
|For Shah Gupta & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

LS

pul K Choksl
Partner
M No. 37606

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19th May, 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gyan Bhadra Kum

ar

Whole Time Director

[DIN: 03620109]

ngnuo& K w/

Prashant Jain
Chalrman
(DIN: 01281621]

Sanjeev Kango

Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

Note 1: General information

a)

b)

)

ISW Hydro Energy Limited (Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company
Limited) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. It is 100% subsidiary of
M/s ISW Energy Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at Sholty
Colony, P.O. Tapri, Dist. Kinnaur, 172104 (HP).

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation and sale of power.

The company has continued its operations during lockdown due to outbreak of
COVID-19 as the electricity generation is considered as one of the essential
services by the Government. The Company substantial generation capacities are
tied up under long term power purchase agreements, which insulates revenue of
the company under such contracts. The notices of applying force majeure clause
under the power supply agreements from some of the customers have been
appropriately responcded under legal advice that the prevailing situation is outside
the ambit of force majeure clause. This position is further supported by clarification
from Ministry of Power that the DISCQOMs will have to comply with obligation to pay
fixed capacity charges as per the power purchase agreement. Based on Initial
assessment, the Management does not expect any medium to long-term impact on
the business of the Company. The Company has evaluated the possible effects on
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventory, loans,
receivables and debt covenants basis the internal and external sources of
information and determined, exercising reasonable estimates and judgements, that
the carrying amounts of these assets are recoverable. Having regard to above, and
the company’s liquidity position, there is no uncertainty in meeting financial
obligations over the foreseeable future.

Note 2.1: Statement of compliance

a)

b)

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian accounting standards (referred to as “Ind AS") prescribed under section 133
of the Company act,2013 read with the Companies (India Accounting Standards)
rules as amended from time to time.

The standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 19" May, 2020

2.2 Recent India Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to
the existing standards.There is no such notification which would have been applicable

from April 1,2020.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

2.3 Applicability of new Ind AS:

Initial application of an Ind AS
Ind AS 116-Leases

The Company applied Ind AS 116-Leases first time. Ind AS 116 Leases was notified
on March 30, 2019 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. It replaces Ind AS 17
Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to
the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets and short-term
leases (i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right of use asset). Lessees will be reguired to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right of use asset,

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments).
The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right of use asset.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition i.e. Full retrospective -
Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, and Modified retrospective -
Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application. The Company adopted Ind AS 116
using the modified retrospective approach on transition Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17 .There
was no impact on transition on the opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2019. The
new standard has no material impact on the revenue recognised during the year

Note 3: Significant accounting policies

3.1
a)

b)

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company is required to prepare its Financial Statements as per the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016 with effect from 1% April, 2016. Accordingly, the Company has prepared these
Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 31% March, 2020, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended 31%* March, 2020, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as
“Standalone Financial Statements”).

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance
with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) on the accrual
basis of accounting and historical cost convention except for certain material items



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2020

that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS and
explained in the ensuing policies below.

c) The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all
values are rounded to the nearest crore, except otherwise indicated.

d) Current and non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet passed on current

/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:

» it is expected to be realised in, or Is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of
being traced:

e itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date: or
» it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at ileast 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:
» it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle:

» it is held primarily for the purpose of being traced.

« It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date ;or the
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Term of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

3.2 Use of estimates & judgements

a) The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires that the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of
an item or information in the Standalone Financial Statements is made relying on
these estimates.

b) The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Standalone Financial
Statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under
the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

3.3

b)

c)

d)

34

a)

b)

3.5

a)

b)

periods. The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the
Company for preparation of Standalone Financial Statements is described in note
27,

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to statement of profit and
loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction
account. At the point when an asset is operating at management's intended use,
the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment and depreciagtion commences.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production,
supply or administrative purposes, are stated in the standalone balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible
assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected
to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year,

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gain / (loss) on de-recognition are
recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values as per the
provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013 based on the useful
life,rate and residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff
regulation 2014.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end

: /_;f‘f :



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2020

of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

c) Assets held under Service concession arrangement are amortised over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

d) Post 100% tie up of Karcham Wangtoo HEP from 1st April 2018 with state
discoms, The company provided depreciation on tangible assets as per the
provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013 based on the rates,
useful life and residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff
regulation 2014. Earlier company was providing depreciation based on technical
evaluation of useful life and residual value as per the provision of part A of
schedule II of the companies’ act 2013.

e) Depreciation is being calculated annually based on straight line method and at
rates specified below which are as per CERC Tariff regulation 2014. Provided that
the remaining depreciable value as on 31 March of the year closing after a period
of twelve years from the effective date of commercial operation of the station shall
be spread over the balance useful life of the assets.

Rate of depreciation are given below:

Depreciation
Particulars rate (Per
Annum)
Plant & Machinery 5.28%
Lease hold Land 3.34%
Buildings 3.34%
Furniture’s & Fixtures 6.33%
Vehicles 9.50%
Office equipment’s 6.33%
Computer & Software 15%

3.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

a) At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

b) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available

for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

c) Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

d) If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

e) When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.7 Borrowing costs

a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use
or sale.

b) All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

¢) The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less
any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity
borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if
the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying
asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in
which it suspends active development of a qualifying asset.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand
and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2020

3.9 Revenue recoghition
Sale of Power

The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with customers for supply
of power generated from power plants including from allocating the capacity of the
plant under the long term power purchase agreements, from sale of power on
merchant basis including under short term contracts

Revenue from capacity charges (other than from contracts classified as lease) under
the long term power supply agreements is recognised over a period of time as the
capacity of the plant is made available under the terms of the contracts.Electricity
charges are recognised on supply of power under such power supply
agreements. Revenue from sale of power on merchant basis is recognised when
power is supplied to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest or Surcharge on delayed payments or overdue trade receivables is recognised
when significant certainty as to measurability or realisibility exists.

3.10 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiary is determined on the basis
of the primary economic environment in which it operates. The functional currency of
the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or joss in the period
in which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those
fareign currency borrowings; and

- exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

3.11 Employee benefits
The Company has following post-employment plans:
a) Defined-benefit plan - gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the
reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by actuaries through actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation

as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e service cost comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailment and non-routine settlements

¢ net interest expense or income

The net interest cost Is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of
the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from

(a) Re-measurement of Actuarlal (galns) / losses

(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling

() Re-measurement arising because of change In effect of asset ceiling are
recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive
income. Re-measurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions
including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and pensioner
demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its
actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the
application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts
reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive income and balance sheet.
There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.

b) Defined-contribution plan - provident fund

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined
amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay
additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the
employees’ provident fund set up as trust or Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
and certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance. The Company’s payments to
the defined contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the period in which
the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs.
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3.12

3.13

c) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by
the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet
date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

Share-based payment arrangements

a) Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

b) The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
employee benefits reserve.

Taxation

i) Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the standalone
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiary,and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such Investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it Is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate
to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

i) Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT’") credit is recognised as an asset only when and
to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income-
tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normai
income-tax during the specified period.

iii) Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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3.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number
of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date.

3.15 Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to
parties for completion of assets.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at
each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the future obligations under the contract.

3.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

(i) [Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value
through profit or loss ,are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase
and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade
receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
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- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the
purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments
are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange
differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments through
other comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest methad

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit
or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair

- value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or
loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments,

A financial asset is held for trading if:
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
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on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a
financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investmients in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss
are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value throuah profit or loss (FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not
held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that
meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the *Other income’ line item.
Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a
recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

a) The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on
financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit loss
is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.
This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all
reasonable and supportable including that which is forward-looking.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2020

b) The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain

c)

significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash
shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance,

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk.
Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each
reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables,

d) The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the

e)

expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-
month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at
the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured
as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality
of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in
credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and
reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments
and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment
testing.

Derecoanition of financial assets

a)

b)

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the
Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
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part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts.

3.17 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest
method or fair value through profit and loss. However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-
market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies
set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either
contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

N
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A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination
to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind
AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in
accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in
the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in
credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the
fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the
Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL
are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised
cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is
not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discaunts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
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the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of
debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that Is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period follawing the change
in the business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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The following table shows various reclassifications and the how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting treatment
Classification | Classification
Amortised FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification
cost date. Difference between previous amortised

cost and fair value is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

FVPTL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated

based on new gross carrying amount,
Amortised FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
cost date. Difference between previous amortised

cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
cost new gross carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted
against fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been measured
at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. No other
adjustment is required.

FCTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit
and loss at the reclassification date.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained below.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Financial assets/

financial liabilities

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities

Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is
Level 2 significant to the fair Value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is

£EVELD significant to the fair Value measurement is unobservable.

3.18 Leases

a) As per requirement of Ind AS 116 company defines a lease as a contract, or part of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration

b) Accounting for arrangements that contains Finance lease

As per Ind AS 116 company using a single lessee accounting model which requires
a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Lease liability Is Initially recognised and measured at an amount equal to the
present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term. Right of use
asset is recognised and measured at cost, consisting of initial measurement of
lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the
restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred. The company has made
election for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on lease-by-lease
basis.

¢) The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of
the minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease
or at the entity’s incremental borrowing rate).For the purpose of impairment
testing the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale
and the value in use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the assets
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of does from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash
generating unit (CGU) to which the assets belongs.

The corresponding liability to the Iessor is mcluded in the balance sheet as a
finance lease obligation. -

/
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3.19

a)

b)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

The company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease compeonents in the contract, unless it is practically
expedient to do so.

All leases other than finance lease is operating Lease. Lease payments under an
operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognhised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

The company has exposure to leases which have not yet commenced contractually
but to which company is committed and is making provision for rentals.

Service concession arrangements

Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangements (revenue from
contract with customer) applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements
if:

the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; AND

the grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise—any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement; AND

Is the infrastructure constructed or acquired by the operator from a third party for
the purpose of the service arrangement OR is the infrastructure existing
infrastructure of the grantor to which the operator is given access for the purpose
of the service arrangement?

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its
entire useful life (whole of life assets) is within the scope of this Appendix if the
conditions in 'a’) above are met.

These arrangements are accounted on the basis of below mentioned models
depending on the nature of consideration and relevant contract law.

Financial asset model:

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an

unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at
the direction of the grantor for the construction services. Unconditional contractual
right is established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

(a) specific or determinable amount;
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(b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public
services and specified or determinable amounts.

Intanaible asset model:

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the company, being an
operator, receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public service. A right to
charge users of a public services is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on to the extent that public uses the services.
Both type of arrangements may exist within a single contract to the extent that the
grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment for the construction and
the operation i.e. considered as a Financial asset and to the extent that the operator
has to rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the operation
has an intangible asset. If the Company (being an operator) performs more than one
service (i.e., construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single
contract or arrangement, consideration received or receivable is allocated by
reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered, when the amounts are
separately identifiable.

The Company manages concession arrangements which include power supply from
one of its hydro power plant. The Company maintains and services the infrastructure
during the concession period. These concession arrangements set out rights and
obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be provided.

The right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and financial receivable
and accordingly, both the Intangible asset and financial receivable modeis are
applied.

Income from the concession arrangements earned under the intangible asset model
consists of the (i) Fair Value of the contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair
value of consideration transferred to acquire the asset; and (ii) payments actually
received from the users. The intangible asset is amortized over its expected useful
life in a way that reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are
consumed by the Company, starting from the date when the right to operate starts
to be used. Based on these principles, the intangible asset is amortized in line with
the actual usage of the specific public facility, with a maximum of the duration of the
concession.

Financial receivable is recorded at a fair value of guaranteed residual value to be
received at the end of the concession period. This receivable is subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or
when the contractual rights to the financial asset expire.

3.20 Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories of stores, spare parts, fuel and loose tools are stated at the lower of
weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 6. Intangible assets (¥ Crore )
Computer Service Total
Software Concession
Description of Assets Arrangement
intangibles *
I. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1.03 932.74 933.77
Additions 0.39 3.08 3.47
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 142 935.82 937.24
Il. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year
2019-20
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 0.26 119.17 119.43
Amartisation expense for the year 0.16 3331 33.47
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 0.42 152.48 152.90
Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2020 (I-11) 1.00 783.34 784.34
(T Crore )
Computer Service Total
Software Concession
Description of Assets Arrangement
intangibles *
I. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 0.97 931.42 932.39
Additions 0.06 132 1.38
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1.03 932.74 933.77
ll. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year
2018-19
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 0.10 85.89 85.99
Amortisation expense for the year 0.16 33.28 33.44
[Balance as at 31st March, 2019 0.26 119.17 119.43
|£let carrying value as at 31st March, 2019 (I-1f) 0.77 813.57 814.34

*Refer Note 32 (Service concession arrangement)




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

673

Note 7. Other financial assets { ¥ crore)
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
(a) Service concession receivable - 216.80 216.80 221.47 221.47
{b) Security Deposits
- Unsecured, considered good
{i) Government/Semi-Government
Authorities - 0.49 0.49 - 0.43 0.43
(ii) Others - 0.09 0.09 - 0.09 0.09
- 0.58 0.58 0.52 0.52
c) Revenue receivable
- Unbilled revenue 5.32 5.32 - -
5.32 5.32 - -
d) Other bank balances
-In margin money for security against
entry tax - 2.01 2.01 = 3.75 3.75
- 201 2.01 - 3.75 3.75
Total 5.32 219.39| 224.71 - 225.74 225.74




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 8. Other non-current and current assets

(¥ crore )

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

Particul
. Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total

{a) Capital Advances 0.03 0.03 0.79 0.79
{b) Prepayments 9.19 0.50 9.69 10.50 0.44 10.94
(c) Deposit with Government/Semi Government 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00
(d) Entry tax receivable 19.88 19.88 19.88 - 19.88
(e) Advance to Vendor 291 2.91
(f) Others 0.96 0.96 2.65 2.65

Total 32.94 25.53 58.47 33.82 25.44 59.26




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 9. Inventories (¥ crore )
particul As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
e 2020 2019
Stores and spares 11.46 10.98
(L 11.46 10.98

Basis of valuation: Refer note 3.20 (inventories)
Refer Note 15 for Inventories hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 10. Investment (Z Crore)
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Current | Non- Current | Total Current | Non- Current Total
(A)investment in equity instruments
1SW Energy (Kuther ) Limited 68.86| 68.86
Investments carried at:
(B) Fair value through Profit and Loss
(a) Investments in mutual funds
i) Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Growth 4.25 4.25 16.02 16.02
ii) Kotak Liquid Regular Plan Growth - - 27.02 27.02
iif} HDFC Liquid Fund Regular Growth 2331 23.31 53.06 53.06
iv)Franklin India Treasury -SIP Growth - 5 10.96 10.96
v) Aditya Birla Sunlife Overnight Regular Growth{ 84.40 84.40 - -
vi) Kotak Overnight Fund Growth 34.15 34.15 - =
vii) HDFC Overnight Fund 57.73 - 57.73 - -
Total 203.84 68.86 | 272.70 107.06 S 107.06




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
{Farmerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 11, Trade recelvables {¥Crore)
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Partlculars Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
{a} Unsecured, considered good
(1) Trade Recelvables considered good - Secured; 235,15 235,15 .
{1} Trade Recelvables consldered good - Unsecured; 73.00 73.00 198.59 198.59
Total 308.15 308.15 198.59 19B.59

Aefor Note 15 for trade receivables hypathecated as security for barrowings.

Refer Note 31 (Trade recelvable) for cradit terms, ageing analysls and other relevant detalls related ta trade recelvables.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (T crore)
particular As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
ke 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks
0] In Current accounts 0.47 26.51
(f) !n Dep'osu accounts with maturity less than 3 months at i 19.60
inception
(b) Cashon hand 0.01 0.03
Total 0.48 46.14
(¥ crore )
. As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars
2020 2019
Bank balances other than above
{i) Earmarked balances with banks
. . 31.84 28.34
- Margin money for Security against Entry Tax
Total 31.84 28.34




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 13. Equity share capitaf ( ¥ Crore)
particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
© No. of shares Amount No, of shares Amount

Authorised:
Equity shares of X 10 each with vating rights

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of X 10 each with voting rights

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2019

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

b) Terms & Rights attached to equity shares :

(1) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.

(il) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amount, in proportion to the sharsholding. However, no such preferential amount exists currently.

c) Details of shareholding more than 5% shares in the company are set out below :

Particulars

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

1 JSW Energy Limited & its nomineses

1,250,050,000
100%

1,250,050,000
100%




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly know as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 14. Other Equity

Particulars As at 31st March, | | As at 31st March,

2020 2019

Equity-settled employea benefits reserve 0.45 0.24
Debenture redemption . 38.45
Retained earnings 432,73 306.32
Capital contribution by parent company 156.14 156.14
Total comprehensive Income 589.32 501.15

*As per Ind AS, waiver of interest by the company on debentures issued ta it, has been considered capltal contribution by parent
company .

Notes:

{1) Retained earning

Retained earning comprise balance of accumulated (undistributed) profit and loss at each year end.

(2) Equity -settled employee benefit reserve

The Company offers ESOP under which options to subscribe for the Company's share have been granted to certain employees and
senlor management.The share based payment reserve ta used to recognise the value of equity settled share based payments
provided as part of the ESOP scheme.

{3) Debenture redumption reserve

The Indian Companies Act requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profit
untll such debenture are redeemed .Company are required to maintain 25% as a reserve of outstanding redeemable debentures.The
amount credited to the debentures redemption reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures.During the year company
has fully redeemd the debentures and the balance of debentures redemption reserve transfer to retained earning.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 15. Borrowings (¥ crore )
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Measured at amortised cost
Un Secured Borrowings:
i  Debentures
Non-convertible Debentures 384.50
Secured Borrowings: A
i Term loans
From Banks 288.24 5,172.13 256.10 5,461.90
288.29 5,172.13 256.10 5,846.40
Less: unamortised borrowing cost 4,79 31.83 5.04 36.63
Less: Current maturities of long term debt 283.45 251.06
{included in note na 16}
Total - 5,140.30 - 5,809.77

(i) Terms of Redemptions of Debentures:

of 10 years from the date of Issue i.e. 01.09.2015.

Nil (Previous Year 3,84,00,000 no.) @ 13% unsecured non convertible debentures of Rs.

100 each are redeemable at par at the end

il) Term of Repayment of Rupee Term Loans :

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2020 | March, 2019
From Banks :
2 -3 Years 639.93 594,98
4 -5 Years 501.51 684.73
6-10Q Years 834.21 985.26
Above 10 Year 3,196.48 3,196.93
Total Borrowings from Banks 5.172.13 5,461.90
Reconclliation at the beginning of the year (Including current
maturities)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March,2020 | March,2019
Balance as at the begininning of the year(including current maturities) 6060.83 6785.48
Cash flows (repayment )/proceeds) (642.12) (730.46)
Non cash changes
1 Amortised borrowings cost 5.04 5.81
Ralance as at the end of the year (Including current maturitles) 5,423.75 6,060.83

{iii) Details of Security :

revenue (both present & future) and bank accounts of the Projects.

Rupee Term Loan aggregating to  5,423.75 crore (Previous Year % 5,676.33 crare) are secured on a pari passu basis by (a) a first
charge on alt immovable assets of the Karcham Wangtoo and Baspa Ii hydro electric plant of the Company {the Projects), (b) a first
charge on all moveable assets of the Projects, (¢} a first charge on all project related documents licenses, permits, approvals, rights,

titles, interest etc pertaining to the Projects, and (d) first charge on book debts, operating cash flows, recelvable, commissions &




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Com
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year en

pany Limited)
ded 31st March, 2020

Note 16. Other financial liabilities (¥ crore )
particutars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2020 2019
Non-Current
(a)  Deposits received 0.02 0.01
(b) Lease Liabilities ** 26.52 -
26.54 0.01
Current
(a)  Current maturities of long-term debt* 283.45 251.06
(b}  Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 43.13 25.72
(c) Lease Liabilities ** 0.17 -
(d)  Payable for capital project 49.39 53.68
l(e}  Other payable 620.80 292.86
996.94 623.32
Total 1,023.48 623.33

* Refer Note 15 for the details of borrowings repayment terms and security charge.
»% Refer Note 2.3 Applicability of new Ind AS




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 17. Provisions ( T crore )
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current
Provision for employee benefits
{i)  Provision for gratuity® 1.17 254 3.71 1.14 131 2.45
(i)  Provision for compensated absence* 0.22 2.14 2.36 0.22 1.92 2.14
Total 1.39 4.68 6.07 1.36 3.23 4.59

* Refer Note 36 (Employee benefit plans)




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 18. Trade payables (¥ crore )
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current

Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 0.55 - 0.55 0.78 - 0.78
enterprises *
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 74.58 - 74.58 49.46 - 49.46
than micro and small enterprises

Total 75.13 - 75.13 50.24 - 50.24

* Refer Note 43 (Disclosure under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act)




JSW HYDRQO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 19. Other non-current and current liabilities (¥ Crore)
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Particulars Current Non- Total Current Non- Total
Current Current

{a) Employee recoveries and employer
contributions 0.41 - 0.41 0.36 - 0.36
(b) Statutory dues 2.24 - 224 7.20 - 7.20
|(c) ) Advance against depreciation - - - 0.25 - 0.25
Total 2.65 - 2.65 7.81 - 7.81




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 20. Revenue from operations

( ¥ crore))

For the year Ended 31st| | For the year Ended
Particulars March ,2020 31st March,2019
Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers:
(1)  Sale of power (Own generation) 1,236.00 1,217.82
Total revenue from contract with customers (A) 1,236.00 1,217.82
(2}  Income from service concession arrangement 27.69 26.15
Income from service concession arrangement (B) 27.69 26.15
Total {A) + (B) 1,263.69 1,243.97
(a) Details of revenue from contract with Customer
— |For the year Ended 31st| | For the year Ended
Sl March ,2020 31st March,2019
Total Revenue from contract with customers as above 1,236.00 1,217.82
Add: Rebate on prompt payment 9.79 15.77
Less: Incentive 78.21 63.71
Total Revenue from contract with customers as per contracted price 1,167.58 1,169.89




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 21. Other income ( ¥ crore )
For the year Ended 31st|| For the year Ended
Particulars March ,2020 31st March,2019
a) Interest Income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at FVTPL
i On Bank deposits 2.40 2.44
ii Other Financial Assets 0.01 i 13.21
|b) Others

i Net Gain on sale of current Investments designated as at FVTPL 6.33 9.45

ii Profit on sale of capital assets (net of loss on assets sold / scrapped / written off) 0.01
iii Net gain on foreign currency transaction * 0.00 0.00
iv Domestic Scrap Sales 0.01 0.38
v Sale of Carbon credit 2.07 1.02
vi Provision no longer required written back 0.17 4.45
vli Miscellaneous income 0.58 0.82
Total 11.58 31.77

* Actual figures in INR FY 2019-20 X816 FY 2018-19 X 2105




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 22. Employee benefits expense (¥crore)
For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March ,2020 31st March,2019
(a) Salaries and wages 45.55 41.82
[{9] Contribution to provident and other funds * 3.63 1.75
(c) Share based payment ** 0.30 0.16
{d)  Staff welfare expenses 1.95 2.47
Total 51.43 46.20

* Refer note 36 { Employee benefit plans) for the details of defined benefit plan and defined contribution
plan of the Company.
“* Refer note 37 (Employee share base payment plan )for the detalls of share base payment




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 23. Finance costs (¥ Crore )
For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March ,2020 31st March,2018
(a) Interest expense
i Interest on Debentures 23.18 72.18
ii Interest on Term Loan 515.02 529.69
iii Interest cash credit 0.05 0.01
(b) Unwinding of interest on Financial liabilities carried at
Amortised cost 4.61 4.61
(c)  Other borrowing costs 4.73 517
{d) Interest on lease liabilities 2.41 -
Total 550.00 611.66




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 24. Depreciation and amortisation expense (¥ Crore )

For the year Ended| |For the year Ended

Particulars 31st March ,2020 31st March,2019
{a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 400.42 398.87
(b}  Amortization on Intangible assets 33.47 33.45
Total 433.89 432,32
Y, ’\\‘
“\



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 25. Other expenses (Ecrore)
For the year For the year
Particulars Ended 31st Ended 31st
March ,2020 March,2019
(a) Stores and spares consumed 18.58 13.02
{b) Power & Water 4.81 5.30
(c) Rent including lease rentals 2.15 4.47
(d) Repairs and maintenance 42.82 47.22
(e) Royalty 0.04 0.09
(f) Rates and taxes 0.44 0.36
{g) tnsurance 19.43 19.30
(h) Net loss / (gain) on foreign currency transactions net off )** (0.00) 0.01
(i) Legal and other professional charges 2,63 190
(i) Travelling Expenses 151 1.16
(k) Donation 5.00 0.15
1)) Corporate Sacial Responsibility * 3.45 4.09
{m)  Open Access Charges 0.07 14.10
{n)  Miscellaneous receivable balance written off - 0.83
(o)  Other General Expenses 5.38 8.22
{p) Provision for doubtful debts 18.89 -
{g)  Safety and Security 124 131
(r) Branding Expenses 3.72 242
(s) Share Service cost 2,99 293
Total 133.15 126.88

* Refer note 39 (Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
** FY 2019-20 X 2964 FY 2018-19 X 64422




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Note 26. Tax expense ( ¥ Crore )
For the year Ended| | For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March ,2020 || 31st March,2019
a) Current Tax 18.39 14.52
b) Deferred Tax - (35.25)r
Total 18.39 (20.73)

* Refer note 33 for details of Tax expenses



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

Note 27. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above, the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future period, if the revision affects current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Service concession arrangements

The Management has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Ind AS 115: Service
Concession Arrangements (revenue from contract with customer) with respect to its
power plant and transmission assets portfolio. In assessing the applicability, they
have exercised significant judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the
assets, terms of implementation agreements and power purchase agreements
entered with the grantor, ability to determine prices, useful lives of the assets,
assessment of right to guaranteed cash etc. Based on detailed evaluation, the
Management has determined that arrangement in relation to the Company’s Baspa
power plant (300 MW) meets the criterion for recognition as service concession
arrangements.

Revenue recognition

a) In case of BASPA, revenue from sale of power is accounted for on the basis of
billing to Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) as per Tariff
approved by Himachal Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (HPERC) in
accordance with the provisions of the Long Term Power Purchase Agreement
(LTPPA) dated 4'" June 1997, Amendment No. 1 dated 7' January 1998,
executed between the Company and HPSEBL.

b) In case of KARCHAM Wangtoo, revenue from sale of power is accounted as under

i) The long term PPA sales are accounted on the basis of applicable CERC
regulations and respective Tariff orders/ Tariff petition as filled to Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission for determining the tariff of Karcham
Wangtoo plant

ii) Sale of power under Short Term through the Power Exchange is accounted
for on the basis of billing to various buyers under the terms of the PPA and
the Power Exchange.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

impairment of property plant and eguipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of
its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash
flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates
and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the
above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and
other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not
probable of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as
contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognised.

Fair value measurements

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The management determines the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Shared based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of
the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

Tax

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in
respect of any period is dependent upon the interpretation of the relevant tax rules.
Whilst an assessment must be made of deferred tax position of the entity, these
matters are inherently uncertain until the position of the entity is agreed with the
relevant tax authorities.

Evaluation of arrangements to determine whether it contains lease:

The management has critically evaluated the terms of the contract (including by
obtaining independent legal advice) with respect to Karcham Wangtoo Hydro Plant to
determine whether the contract is, in substance, with a customer or with multiple
state electricity utility companies, and the customer is merely acting as an
intermediator/facilitator. Based on such evaluation, it was concluded that the
arrangement is not in the nature of lease in terms of Ind AS 116 nor as replaced
Appendix “C" of Ind AS 17, “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”

Service concession arrangements:

In assessing the applicability of Appendix C to Ind AS 115: 'Service Concession
Arrangements (revenue from contract with customer)’, the management has
exercised significant judgments in evaluating the useful lives of the assets and the
terms of power purchase agreements / transmission license arrangements / other
similar implementation arrangements/provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 towards,
the ability to enter into power purchase arrangements with any customer, power
supply and pricing terms and and related rights beneficial entitlement in the related
infrastructure, useful lives of the assets and obligation to transfer the asset at the
end of arrangement etc. Based on such evaluation, the management has determined
that only arrangement in respect of a Hydro power plant at Himachal Pradesh of the
company meets the criterion for recognition as service concession arrangement.

Note 28. Balance Confirmation
The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect to certain financial
assets and liabilities. The management does not expect any material difference
affecting to current year's Standalone Financial Statements due to the same.
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Note 29. Financial Instruments: Classifications and fair value measurements

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value (but fair value disclosures are required):

( ¥ Crore )

As at 317 March, 2020 Carrying Fair value | Levell | Level2 | Level 3

amount
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Investment in mutual fund units 203.84 203.84 -] 203.84 -
Investment in Equity instruments 68.86 68.86 - - 68.86
Financial assets carried at
amortised cost
Security deposits 0.58 0.58 - - 0.58
Trade receivables # 308.15 308,15 - N -
sgfeeé\:gz:‘cetsfervice concession 216.80 216.80 ~ _ -
E:;E baar}gnzzzh#equwalents and other 34.33 34.33 - . _
Unbilled revenue 5.32 5.32

837.88 837.88 - | 203.84 69.44

Total Financial assets 837.88 837.88 - | 203.84 69.44
Einancial liabilities
Financial Liabilities carried at
amortised cost
Borrowings 5423.75 = = 0 =
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.02 0.02 = - =
Trade Payables # 75.13 75.13 = = =
Payable for capital projects# 49.39 49.39 - = =
Other payable# 663.93 663.93
Lease Liability 26.69 26.69

6238.91 815.16 - - -
Total Financial liabilities 6238.91 816.16 - - =
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( ¥ Crore )
13 n
As at 31% March, 2019 Carrying Fair value | Levell | Level 2 | Level 3
amount
Einancial assets

Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Investment in mutual fund units 107.06 107.06 -1 107.06 -

Financial assets carried at
amortised cost

Security deposits 0.52 0.52 - - 0.52

Trade receivables # 198.59 198.59 - = -

Receivables-Service concession
agreement # 221.47 221.47 -

Cash and cash equivalents and other -
bank balances # 78228 48:20 )

605.87 605.87 - | 107.06 0.52

Total Financial assets 605.87 605.87 - | 107.06 0.52
Fi ial liabiliti
Financial Liabilities carried at
amortised cost
Borrowings 6060.83 - - r =
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.01 0.01 & = N
Trade Payables # 50.24 50.24 - - =
Payable for capital projects# 53.68 53.68
Other payable# 318.58 318.58 = . =

6483.34 422.51 - - -
Total Financial liabilities 6483.34 422,51 - = -

#The carrying amounts of ancillary borrowing cost, trade receivables, Receivables-Service
concession agreement, other receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash
equivalents and other bank balances, rent and other deposits are considered to be the
same as their fair values, due to their short term nature. The fair values of the financial
assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 are based on NAV and in level 3 based
on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-
ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative
financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is
governed by the Company’s policies approved by the board of directors, which
provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the
investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is
reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not
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enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies;
consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate
exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency options.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are NIL.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and foreign
currency required at the settlement date of certain receivables/payables. The use
of foreign currency forward contracts is governed by the Company’s strategy
approved by the board of directors, which provide principles on the use of such
forward contracts consistent with the Company’s risk management policy.

The Forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding are
NIL.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Due to the pandemic of COVID-19, the company has availed the option to opt for
the Moratorium on payment of interest for borrowings made from banks. The
company has analysed the risk it may have from the pandemic and ensures that
the company is in good standing to pay all it's dues.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate

borrowings:
( ¥ crore )
Particulars trecch, 2020 | Warch, 2019
Fixed rate borrowings - 384.50
Floating rate borrowings 5423.75 5,676.33
Total borrowings 5423.75 6,060.83

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Company’s profit (PBT) for the year ended 31st March, 2020
would decrease/increase by Rs. 27.92 crore (for the year ended 31st March, 2019:
decrease/increase by Rs. 29.38 crore). This is mainly attributable to the Company's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored.

In addition, the Company Is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial
guarantees given to banks provided by the Company. The Company’s maximum
exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could have to pay

if the guarantee is called on. No amount has been recognised in the financial
position as financial liabilities

The state electricity distribution companies (Government companies) and related
parties are the major customer of the Company and accordingly, credit risk is
minimal.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of
directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at reporting date
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( Ecrore )
As at 31* March, 2020
Particulars < 1 year 1-5years | > 5 years Total
Nean-current financial liabilities
Long term borrowings - 1,125.18 4,015.12 5140.30
Other long- bilitie
Rent and other Deposits - 0.02 - 0.02
Lease payable - 1.44 25.08 26.52
Total Non-Current financial Liabilities - 1126.64 4040.20 5166.84
Current financial Liabilities
Trade and other Mles and
acceptances:
Z;ig;tgzzzgles Other than 75.13 } ; 75.13
Other current financial liabilities:
gggn;ent maturities of long-term 283.45 _ _ 283.45
Payable for capital project 49.39 - - 49,39
Other payable 620.80 620.80
Ibr;tﬁ;exitngasccrued but not due on 43.13 ; i 43.13
Lease payable 0.17 0.17
Total current financial liabilities 1072.07 - - 1072.07
Total Financial Liabilities 1072.07 1126.64 4040.20 6238.91
on~current Financia et
Long term loans and advances
Security deposits - 0.01 0.57 0.58
Ancillary Borrowing cost = E = S
Service concession - arrangements = 216.45 0.35 216.80
Other advances - 2.01 - 2.01
Investment in Equity 68.86 68.86
Total Non-current financial Assets - 218.47 69.78 288.25
Current financial assets
Tﬁ;ae receivables 308.15 - B 308.15
Cash and cash equivaients 0.48 - - 0.48
Bank Balances other than above 31.84 - - 31.84
Investments in mutual fund 203.84 - - 203.84
Other Financial Assets 5.32 = - 5.32
Total current financial assets 549.63 - - 549.63
Total Financial Assets 549.63 218.47 69.78 837.88

7

'
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(¥ Crore )
As at 31° March, 2019
Particulars < 1 year 1-5 years | > 5 years Total
Non-current financizal liabilities
Long term borrowings - 1262.32 4547.45 | 5809.77
Other long-term financial liabilities
Rent and other Deposits N 0.01 - 0.01
Total Non-Current financial Liabilities = 1262.33 4547.45 | 5809.78
Current financial Liabilities
“Trade and other payables and
acceptances:
';‘(r:acg;t;;?lz:gles Other than 50.24 _ ) 50.24
Other current financial liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 251.06 - - 251.06
Payable for capital project 53.68 - - 53.68
Other payable 292.86 292.86
g:)trer;evsitngasccrued but not due on 25.72 } . 25.72
Total current financial liabilities 673.56 - - 673.56
Total Financial Liabilities 673.56 1262.33 4547.45 | 6483.34
Non-current financial assets
Long term leans and advances
Security deposits - 0.01 0.51 0.52
Ancillary Borrowing cost - =
Service concession — arrangements - 221.11 0.36 221.47
Other advances - 3.75 - 3.75
Total Non-current financial Assets - 224,87 0.87 225.74
Current financia
_assets
Trade receivables 198.59 - - 198.59
Cash and cash equivalents 46.14 - - 46.14
Bank Balances other than above 28.34 - - 28.34
Investments 107.06 - - 107.06
Total current financial assets 380.13 - - 380.13
Total Financial Assets 380.13 224.87 0.87 | 605.87

The Company has hypothecated part of its trade receivables,

loans,

short

term

investments and cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil certain collateral requirements
for the banking facilities extended to the Company. There is obligation to release the
hypothecation on these securities to the Company once these banklng facmtles are

surrendered. (Refer Note 15)
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Power offtake risk management

With supply outpacing demand in the medium term, merchant tariffs have been
under constant pressure, posing a severe challenge to the off take of merchant
power. With the DISCOMS adhering to strict fiscal discipline there has been
deferment of power procurement, resulting in reduced demand for power. The
Company's focus is on enhancing the sale through long term PPAs and through
captive route and ensuring an optimum mix of medium, short and long term
arrangements. Further, the Company is tracking various opportunities for sale of
power to utilities in the home states as well as others.

Note 30 Capital management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a
strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios and establish a capital structure that
would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion
,repayment of principal and interest on its borrowings and strategic acquisition.The
principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to
be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding from bank
borrowings and the capital markets. The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to
diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and align maturity profile of its debt
commensurate with life of the asset and closely monitors its judicious allocation
amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture
market opportunities at minimum risk.

Gearing ratio
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to

total equity as given below:

(¥ Crore )

As at As at
Particulars 31% March, | 315 March,

2020 2019
Debt (i) 5423.75 5,676.33
Cash and bank balances (inciuding 236.16 181.54
current investment in liquid fund) (ii)
Net debt (i-ii) 5,187.59 5,494.79
Total equity (iii) 1839.37 2,135.70
Net debt to equity ratio 2,82 2.57

(i) Debt includes long term and short term borrowings (refer note No-15)

(i) Includes cash and cash equivalents balance in bank deposits (other than
earmarked deposits) and investments in mutual fund.

(iii) Includes equity share capital and other equity.
Non-convertible debentures held by Halding company considered as quasi
equity. o o
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Note 31. Trade receivables

The average credit period on sales of power is 60 /30 days for Karcham Wangtoo
HEP and Baspa II HEP respectively.

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Company has not recognised
an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Allowances for doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on
estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default
experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's current
financial position.

Ageing of Trade receivable:

( ZCrore)
As at As at
Particulars 315 March, | 31 March,
2020 2019
Wwithin the credit period 203.14 147.64
1-30 days past due 22.95 16.31
31-60 days past due 25.94 1.05
61-90 days past due 10.29 =
91-180 days past due - -
>180 days past due 45.83 33.59
Total 308.15 198.59

Note 32. Service concession arrangement

The Company has entered into an arrangement with Himachal Pradesh State
Electricity Board ("HPSEB” or “the Board”) in relation to its 300 MW Baspa Hydro
Power Plant (*Baspa Power Plant”) to provide power supply on the following basis:

- 12% of the Baspa Power Plant capacity to be provided free of cost to Himachal
Government(GoHP).

- Balance 88 % of the Baspa Power Plant capacity at the tariff which consists of
capacity charges, primary energy charges, incentive of secondary energy,
incentive in case plant availability is greater than 90%

The term of the arrangement is for 40 years, further extendable by 20 years. In
case HPSEB grants the Company further extension of 20 years, it shall have the right
to continue purchasing power from the projects on the same tefms of conditions.
The Board has the option to purchase the Project at the end of the term of the
Agreement at the buyout price determined in terms of Schedule II to the Agreement,
Clause 3(a) of Schedule II to the Agreement provides that the Board shall purchase
all the assets of the Baspa Power Plant including land, buildings, civil structures,
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plant and equipment, spare parts, records and drawings except for cash and bank
balances.

Based on the aforesaid tariff structure, the right to consideration gives rise to an
intangible asset and financial receivable and accordingly, both the intangible asset
and financial receivable models are applied.

On the acquisition date, the hydro business reclassified PP&E of ¥1,366.56 crore and
advance against depreciation of £236.23 crore at the existing carrying value to the
financial asset of ¥199.58 crore and intangible asset of ¥930.75 crore. In respect of
capital expenditure incurred during financial year 2015-2016, the hydro business has
derecognized the PP&E and recognized financial assets and intangible assets in line
with the accounting policy on SCA.

The depreciation of 28.92 crore on PP&E under previous GAAP has been reversed
as the financial assets and intangible assets are recognized under Ind AS. Further
the amortization of 19.39 crore on intangible assets have been provided and the
financial assets are carried at amortised cost by accretion of interest income of
¥13,50 crore at effective interest rate and reversal of revenue from sale of power of
%48.89 crore during the year ended 31st March, 2016.Fair value of service
concession receivable under other financial assets is of Rs.236.96 crore as on 31%
March,2020.

Note 33. Tax expenses

(¥ Crore)
For the yeatr For the yesatr
. ended 31° ended 31
Paticulars March,2020 March,2019
(1) Current Tax 18.39 14.75
(2) Deferred tax (45.72) (53.57)
(3) MAT credit entitlement availment 30.30 22.96
(4) Deferred tax (recoverable)/adjustable in
future tariff 15.42 (4.64)
18.39 (20.50)
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A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to accounting profit / (loss)
before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expenses for
the year indicated are as follows:

( ¥ Crore )
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31% ended 31
March,2020 March,2019
Profit before tax (excluding share of
gain/(loss) of an associate or joint venture) 406,80 58.67
Enacted tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Computed expected tax expenses 37.32 20.50
Tax effect due to tax holiday (48.06) (42.75)
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable 4.51 6.76
profits
esgfrred tax / tax credit recognised from earlier _ (35.25)
Eaflf-ief(i:‘t of taxes (recoverable)/payable in future 15.42 30.61
Impact due to reduced rate of tax during the
15.32 -
year
Impact due to reduced rate of tax on opening (6.22) -
Other-Tax at lower rate - (0.38)
Others 0.10 -
Tax expenses for the year 18.39 (20.50)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Significant components of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) ,deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses recognised in the Standalone Financial
Statements are follows:

(Z crore)
Particulars As at 31°° Recognised / | As at 31*
March,2019 | (reversed) March,2020

through profit

or loss/ OCI /

equity
Property plant & equipment (25.34) 50.76 25.42
Borrowings 3.00 (11.01) (8.01)
MAT credit 32.88 (30.30) 2.58
Recoverable / (payable) in (10.51) (15.42) (25.93)
future tariff
Other (0.04) 5.98 5.95
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00
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(% crore)
Particulars As at 31% Recognised / | As at 31°
March,2018 | (reversed) March,2019

through

profit or

loss/ OCI /

equity
Property plant & equipment (78.20) 52.86 (25.34)
Borrowings 2.74 0.26 3.00
MAT credit 55.83 (22.95) 32.88
Recoverable / (payable) in (15.66) 5.15 (10.51)
future tariff
Other 0.04 (0.08) (0.04)
Total (35.25) 35.25 0.00

Note 34. Operating segment

The Chairman of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates
the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one
segment viz., "Generation and Sale of power" and that most of the operations are in
India. Hence the Company has single reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting
Standard 108 "Operating Segments".

The information regarding the revenue from customers of it's single reportable
Segment has been disclosed below

Customer contributing more than 10% of revenue

( ¥ Crore)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended 31% ended 31%*
March, 2020 March, 2019
PTC India Limited 1035.24 1049.16
Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board 216.63 172.28
Total 1251.87 1221.44

Note 35. Earnings per share

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended 31 ended 31
March, 2020 March, 2019
Profit for the year (" crore) - (A) 88.41 79.41
Elaesligchstlegl"uat\;zraag?g _n?é'r;ber of equity shares for 1,25,00,50,000 | 1,25,00,50,000
Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted (°) - (A/B) 0.71 0.64
Nominal value of an equity share (°) 10 10
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Note 36. Employee benefit Plans:

Defined benefits plans:-
(a) Defined contribution plans - Provident fund:

The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for
qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.

As per Ind AS 19 on "Employee Benefits”, employer established provident fund trusts
are treated as defined benefit plans, since the Company is obliged to meet interest
shortfall, if any, with respect to covered employees. According to the defined benefit
obligatiori of interest rate guarantee on exempted provident fund in respect of
employees of the Company as at 31 March 2019 is 8.55% and hence no provision is
required to be provided for in the books of accounts towards the guarantee given for
notified interest rates.

Company’s contribution to provident fund recognised in the Statement of profit and
loss of ¥ 2.23 crore (for the year 31 March 2019: ¥ 1.75 Crore) (included in note
No.22)

5t st
Paisiculans M::c:lt, 3320 M‘a\:c?: 3319
Discount rate: 6.84% 7.79%
Rate of return on assets: 8.49% 8.64%
Guaranteed rate of return 8.50% 8.65%

(b) Defined benefits plans - Gratuity:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The amount of gratuity shall be payable to an employee on the termination of
his employment after he has rendered continuous service for not less than five years,
or on their superannuation or resignation. However, in case of death of an employee,
the minimum period of five years shall not be required. The amount of gratuity
payable on retirement / termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per
month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years’
service completed. The gratuity plan is a funded plan administered by a separate Fund
that is legally separated from the entity and the Company makes contributions to the
insurer (LIC). The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target
level of funding to be maintained over period of time based on estimations of
expected gratuity payments.

The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on accumulation
and encashment by the employees during employment or on separation from the
Company due to death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk,
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
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Investment
risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to market vields at
the end of the reporting period on government bond yields; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity
securities and debt instruments.

Interest
risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity
risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in
the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan‘s
liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the
plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2019 by M/S K A Pandit,
Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected

unit credit method.

Changes in the présent value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

( ¥ Crore )
Defined benefit obligation as at 1st April, 2018 3.03
Interest cost 0.23
Current service cost 0.42
Benefits paid (0.35)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 1.02
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March, 2019 4.35
Interest cost 0.33
Current service cost 0.52
Benefits paid (0.46)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 0.52
Defined benefit obliaation as at 31 March, 2020 5.27
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31% March, 2020

(¥ Crore )
Particulars Defined Fair | (Benefit)/
Benefit Value Liability
Obligation | of Plan
assets
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 4.35 1.90 2.45
2019
. Current Service cost 0.52 - 0.52
C,,';:ﬁ;gg co;t;' Net interest expense /(Income) 0.33 0.15 0.19
profit or loss Liability Transferred in/Acquisitions
(Liability Transferred out/Divestments)
Sub-total included in profit or loss 0.86 0.15 0.71
Benefits paid (0.46) | (0.46) -
Return on plan assets (excluding (0.03) 0.03
Re- amounts included in net interest
measurement | €xpense)
gains / | Actuarial changes arising from changes -
(losses) in | in demographic assumptions
g(t)?:;rehensiv Actuarial changes arising from changes 0.40 - 0.40
el intanme in financial/Demographic assumptions
Experience adjustments 0.12 - 0.12
Sub-total included in OCI 0.52 | (0.03) 0.55
Contributions by employer - - -
Closing Balance as on 31st March, 5.27 1.56 3.71
2020

789
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31% March,

2019
( ¥ Crore )
Particulars Defined Fair (Benefit)/
Benefit Value Liability
Obligation | of Plan
assets
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 3.03 2.11 0.92
2018
Eranth Current Service cost 0.42 = 0.42
Cr:::;;g cotsct) Net interest expense 0.23 0.16 0.07
profit or loss Liability Transferred in/Acquisitions 0.04 0.04
(Liability Transferred out/Divestments) (0.07) (0.07)
Sub-total included in profit or loss 0.62 0.16 0.46
Benefits paid (0.35) | (0.35) -
Return on plan assets (excluding (0.02) 0.02
Re- amounts included in net interest
measurement | €XDense)
gains / | Actuarial changes arising from changes -
(losses) in | in demographic assumptions
other ; Actuarial changes arising from changes 0.03 5 0.03
Selul gy in financial assumptions
e income
Experience adjustments 1.02 - 1.02
Sub-total included in OCI 1.05 | (0.02) 1.07
Contributions by employer = = =
Closing Balance as on 31st March, 4.35 1.90 2.45
2019

The actual return on plan assets (including interest income) was ¥ 0.12 Crore (previous
year 0.14 crore)

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as

follows:

Particulars

As at 31*
March, 2020

As at 315
March, 2019

Insurer Managed Funds

100%

100%

In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with
insurance Companies, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the
percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has been not
been disclosed. s
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are

shown below:

: As at 31 As at 31"
ey March, 2020 | March, 2019
Discount rate: 6.84% 7.69%
Future salary increases: 6% 6%
Rate of Employee Turnover 3% 2%
Indian Indian
Mortality Rate During Assured Lives Assured Lives
Employment Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)

Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit
obligation are discounted rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period. While halding all

other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at 31 As at 31%¢
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.40) (0.35)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.46 0.40
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.46 0.40
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.41) (0.36)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.02 0.05
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.03) (0.05)
The following are the maturity analysis of projected benefit obligations:
( ECrore )
Particulars As at 31% As at 31
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.40 0.28
Between 2 and 5 years 1.51 1.35
Between 5 and 10 years 2,22 1.90
Above 10 years 6.24 6.41
Total expected payments 10.37 9.94

Each year an assets-liability-matching study is performed in which the consequences
of the strategic investment policies are analysed in term of risk and return profiles.

The company expects to contribute ¥ 1.17 crore (previous year ¥ 1.14 crore) to its
gratuity plan for the next year. The weighted average duration of the_deﬁned benefit

plan is 10 years (previous year 10 year)
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on
accumulation and encashment by the employees during employment or on
separation from the Company due to death, retirement or resignation. The
expected cost of compensated absence is determined by actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary at the balance sheet date using projected
unit credit method.

Note 37. Employee share based payment plan:

i)

JSWEL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN - 2016

a) The Company has the share option plan schemes for permanent employees of

the Company in the identified grades of employees for respective plans /
schemes including any director except promoter or independent directors,
nominee directors and non-executive directors or a director who either himself
or through relatives or through anybody directly or indirectly hoids more than
10% of the outstanding equity shares of the parent Company.

b) The award value shall be determined as percentage of Total Fixed Pay. The grant

shall be at such price as may be determined by the ESOP Committee and shall be
specified in the Grant letter. The option shall not be transferable and can be
exercised only by the employees of the Company.

c) The number of options to be granted to each eligible employees is determined by

dividing the Award Value (amount equivalent to percentage of Annual Fix Pay)
by the Fair Value of option provided. The Fair Value of option on the date of each
grant is determined by using Black Scholes model.

The following table illustrates the number movements in share option during the year:

ESOP 2016 (Grant Date: 20'" May, 2017)

Particulars As at 31% As at 31
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Outstanding at 1 April 73211 73211
Granted during the year = =
Exercised During the Year = -
Expired during the year = -
Qutstanding at 31%* March, 73211 73211
Exercisable at 31% March 73211 73211
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2020

ESOP 2016 (Grant Date: 15" Nov , 2018)

Particulars As at 321:20March, As at ilJigMarch,
Outstanding at 1 April 219428 -
Granted during the year - 219428
Exercised During the Year = -
Expired during the year - =
Outstanding at 31% March, 219428 219428
Exercisable at 31% March 219428 219428
The Method of settlement for above grants are as below:
Grant date
Particulars
20" May, 2017 ist Nov,2018
Vesting period 3/4 years 3/4 years
Method of settlement Equity Equity
Exercise price¥ 51.80 51.96
Fair value¥ 28.88 37.99
20% 20%

Dividend Yield(%)

Expected Volatility(%)

44.50% / 45.16% 42,57% / 43.53%

Risk free Interest rate (%)

6.90%/6.98% 7.78%/7.84%

Expected Life of Share options (years)

5/6 Years 5/6 Years

Weighted Average exercise price?

51.80 51.96

Pricing formula

Exercise Price
determined at ¥ 51.80
per share was at a
discount of 20% to the
closing market price of
parent Company’s
share i.e. ¥ 64.75 at
the close of 19"
May,2017 at exchange
having highest trading
volume.

Exercise Price
determined at ¥ 51.96
per share was at a
discount of 20% to the
closing market price of
parent Company’s
share i.e. ¥ 64,95 at
the close of 31st
Oct,2018 at exchange
having highest trading
volume.

Expected option Life

The expected option life is assumed to be mid-
way between the option vesting and expiry. Since
the vesting period and contractual term of each
tranche is different, the expected life of each
tranche will be different. The expected option life
is calculated as (year to vesting Contractual
Option item) / 2.

Expected volatility

Volatility was calculated using standard deviation

=
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2020

of daily change in stock price. The historical

period considered for volatility match
expected life of the option.

The followings factors have been considered:
(a) Share price (b) Exercise price (c)
Historical volatility (d) Expected option life (e)
Dividend Yield

How Expected volatility was
determined ,including an
explanation of the extent to which
expected volatlility was based on
historical volatility: and

Whether and how any other
features of the option grant were
incorporated in to the measurement
of fair value ,such as market
condition,

Model used Black-Scholes Method

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current
expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a
period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

Note 38. Lease

The Company, as a lessee, has entered into leases on certain immovable properties
( Praject lands, Office and Guest house) that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration,.

Under Ind AS 116 company has recognised a lease liability reflecting future lease
payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for all lease contracts except for certain short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets., Hence Company has recoghised ROU
assets of ¥ 34.35 Cr by creating lease liability of ¥ 26.82 Cr & Z 7.53 Cr by transfer
from lease assets already existing in books of company under PPE as on
01/04/2019.

The lease rentals as expensed in Profit and Loss account for the financial year 2019-
20, in respect of Leases of Low-value assets is ¥ 0.04 Cr.

The actual cash flow in respect of Lease rentals as paid by the company in respect
of the following Leases are stated as below

Particulars For the year
ended 31
March 2020

Financial Lease 2.95

Leases of Low-value assets 0.04

The amount for Financial Lease of ¥ 2.95Cr include ¥ 1.55 Cr as expenses pertaining
to previous year

The amount for leases of fow value assets of ¥ 0.04 was ¥ Nil in the previous year

=
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The future cash outflows as projected, to which the company is potentially exposed, that
are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities in respect of leases which have not
yet commenced contractually but to which company is committed is £12.33 Cr

Note 39. Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:

( ¥ Crore )
. As at 31°% As at 31
particulas March, 2020 | March, 2019
Amount required to be spent as per Section
135 of the Act e 4209
Amount spend during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset 1.04 1.81
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 2.41 2.28
Total 3.45 4.09
Note 40. Commitments
( ¥ Crore )
Particulars As at 31 As at 31%
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Estimated amount of Capital contracts
remaining to be executed to the extent not 14.50 21.33
provided for (net of advances)
Total 14.50 21.33
Note 41. Contingent liabilities
( ¥ Crore )
Particulars As at 31 | As at 31%
March, 2020 [March, 2019
(a) Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debt (recoverable 127.84 127.84
from others)*
(b)Other claims not acknowledged as debt 0.07 0.07
¢) Income tax Demand for AY 2016-17 34.72 34.72
Total 162.63 162.63

* Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) has raised a claim on the
Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited (JPVL) vide its letter dated 6.11.2012 towards
expenditure incurred for survey & investigation work of Baspa II HEP (300 MW)
amounting to Rs, 127.84 crore. Pursuant to this an application was moved before the
Hon’ble High Court to restrain the respondent Board (HPSEBL) from recovering the
claimed amount from the energy bills of petitioner company. The Hon'ble court has
accepted the plea and directed the Company to deposit ¥25 crores as security, which
the company has complied with and disclosed under Long term loans and advances.
Any future claims raised on this account are fully secured against the specific
indemnity issued by Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited (JPVL) in favour of the
company.

The Company’s pending litigations comprise mainly claims against the Company,
property disputes, proceedings pending with Government Authorities. The Company
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has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate
provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever
applicable, in its Standalone Financial Statements. The Company does not reasonably
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its Standalone

Financial Statements.

Note 42. Related party disclosure

A)

List of Related Parties

Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions
during the vear:

Holding Company

JSW Energy Ltd.

II

Subsidiary

JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited

11X

Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives
of such personnel exercise significant influence

JSW Steel Limited

Jindal Education Trust (Jindal Vidya Mandir and Jaypee Pvt ITI)

JSW IP Holdings Private Limited

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited

N|H[WIN (=

JSW Foundation

=
<

Follow Subsidiaries

-

JSW Power Trading Company Ltd.

N

JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited

<

Enterprise overwchich KMP and Relative of such personnel ( of
Holdina Company) exercises sianificate influence

[y

JSW Reality Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

<
1

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Prashant Jain - Chairman

Mr. Jyoti Kumar Agarwal - Non Executive Director

Mr. Gyan Bhadra Kumar - Whole Time Director

Mr. Sanjeev Kango - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sanjeev Kango - Company Secretary (From 01st Nov,19)

Ms. Vrushali Karnik - Company Secretary (Up to 31st Oct,19)

Ms. Sheila Sangwan - Woman & Independent Director

Mr. Rakesh Nath- Independent Director

WIR NN D |WIN|-

Ms. Shailaja Chandra - Independent Director

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain - Non Executive Director

Ms. Seema Jajodia- Woman Director

Mr. Sharad Mahendra — Non Executive Director
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(% crore)
B | Transaction during the year Current RiSVIONE
Year Year

1 | Sale of power /Material

JSW Power Trading Company Limited 1.34 3.29
2 | Sale of Assets

JSW Energy (Kutehr) limited 0.11 -
3 | Interest on Debentures

JSW Energy Limited 23.18 72.18
4 | Service Received B

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 2.99 2.93
5 | Purchase of Fuel / Goods

JSW Steel Limited 1.64 1.00

JSW Energy (Barmer) Limited & 0.01
6 | Advertisement/Sponsorship/Branding expense

JSW IP Holdings Private Limited 3.72 2.42
7 | Reimbursement received from / (paid to) {net}:

JSW Energy Limited (3.83) (3.56)

JSW Steel Limited (1.42) (1.33)

JSW Power Trading Company Limited (0.02) (0.02)

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited - (0.04)

Jindal Education Trust (Ji i

i (Jindal Vidya Mandir and (0.79) (0.80)

JSW Reality Infrastructure Pvt Ltd (0.00) -
8 | Donation/CSR Expenses

Jankalyan Electoral Trust 5.00 -

JSW Foundation 1.17 0.19
9 | Redemption of 13% non-convertible debentures:

JSW Energy Limited 384.50 415.50
10 | Investment Equity Share Capital

}SW Energy Limited (Purghase of equity investment 26.34 _

in JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited

JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited 42.52 -
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(¥ crore)

Closing Balances As at 31° As at 31%

March, 2020 | March, 2019
Trade (Payables) / Receivables
JSW Energy Limited (1.70) (5.13)
JSW Steel Limited (0.32) (0.06)
JSW Power Tradin ompan
Limited 2t SRR - (0:00)
lJj‘:ﬂ\g\;teéﬁlobal Business Solutions i (0.25)
Deposit With
JSW IP Holdings Private Limited 0.07 0.07
Non-Convertible Debentures
JSW Energy Limited - 384.50
Equity Share Capital
JSW Energy Limited 1,250.05 1,250.05
Loan and Advances
JSW IP Holdings Private Limited 0.02 0.26
Other receivable
JSW Energy (Kutehr) limited 0.11 -
Equity Share Capital
JSW Energy (Kutehr) limited 68.86 -

D. The Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel During the year was as follows:

(€ crore)
S| No Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March. 2019
1 Short term benefits 1.74 0.90
2 Post —-Employment benefits 0.05 0.03
3 Sitting fees 0.13 0.14
Note:

i) No amounts in respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the
year, nor has any provision been made for doubtful debts / receivables during the year,
except as discussed above

ii) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by
the Auditors

iii)Related party transactions have been disclosed on basis of value of transactions in
terms of the respective contracts.
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iv)Terms and conditions of sales and purchases: the sales and purchases transactions
among the related parties are in the ordinary course of business based on normal
commercial terms, conditions, market rates and memorandum of understanding signed
with the related parties. For the year ended 31% March, 2019 & 31 March,2020, the
Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between the related
parties.

Note 43. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on the
available information with the Company are as under:

(% crore)
Sl Particulars As at 31% As at 31
No. March, 2020 | March, 2019
bl Principal amount outstanding to MSME* 0.55 0.78
2 Principal amount due and remaining - -
unpaid
3 Interest due on (2) above and the - -
unpaid interest
4 Interest paid on all delayed payments = -
under the MSMED Act.
5 Payment made beyond the appointed - -
day during the year
6 Interest due and payable for the period - =
of delav other than (4) above
7 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid = -
8 Amount of further interest remaining = =
due and pavable in succeeding vears

*Amounts unpaid to MSM vendors on account of retention money have not been considered
for the purpose of interest calculation.

Note 44. Remuneration to Auditors (excluding GST)

(% crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
1 Audit Fees 0.36 0.35
2 Tax Audit Fees 0.06 0.05
3 Certification Fees 0.01 0.01
4 Reimbursement of 0.01 0.01
Expenses
Total 0.44 0.42
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Note 45. Investment in Equity
During the Quarter ended 31st December 2019, the company has purchased 100% equity
of JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited from the parent Company, JSW Energy Limited for a

consideration of Rs. 26.34 Cr. Company has further acquired Equity of Rs 42.52 Cr in form
of right issue. Hence total Equity investment of Rs 68.86 Cr made during FY 2019-20

For and on behalif of the Board of Directors

GZOu_Ma;/ﬁn W/

Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Whole Time Director Chairman
[DIN:03620109] [DIN: 01281621}

A

Sanjeev Kango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial officer
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Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of JSW Hydro Energy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of JSW Hydro Energi/ Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss
including the statement of other comprehensive income, the cash flows statement and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected te be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained durinhg the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant tG the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
[ ]
= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinicn on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & erial uncefta]n’ty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cca‘.{gw's ahility to cantinuAas a gatng concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required-tg draw attention in our ,é}j!d]tor’s report to
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the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 3
going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. -

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scape
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have com plied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and'explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

- In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss .including other
comprehensive income, the standalone statement of cash flow and the standalone statement of
changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

- In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirements of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of the Act, as amended: -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule (11)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2015, n g+

it opinioa\and to thé best of our infermation
and according to the explanations given to us: 3l y «{!

]
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 39 of the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

et
_/'//,x' (W

Vipul K Choksi

M. No. 37606

UDIN: 21037606AAAABYV2115
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 24, 2021
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APPENDIX A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of JSW Hydro Energy Limited of even date)

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment on the basis of available information.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no matertal discrepancies were noticed on such veri.ﬁcation.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on
the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all
the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company
(except the title deeds of certain immovable properties are held in the name of the erstwhile promoter)
as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease
and disclosed as property, plant and equipment or right of use assets in the standalone financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company (except the title deeds of certain
lease agreements are held in the name of the erstwhile promater) where the Company is the lessee in
the agreement.

The inventory has been physically verified by the Company at reasonable intervals during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partherships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans or provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under section 185 of the act. Based on
our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of the investment made by it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from

the public. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Act.

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the

Central Government for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are

of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,

however, not required to make a detailed examination of.the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined
by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of mcome tax, service
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the/date they became payable,
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as foliows: -

Name of the Nature of Amount* | Period to which the | Forum where dispute
Statute the Dues (Rs. in Crore) | amount relates is pending

‘ The Income Tax Commissioners of
Act, 1961 Income tax 10.77 | AY. 2016-17 Income Tax (Appeals)

#Net of amounts paid under protest

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted

(ix)

x)

{xi)

in the repayment of loans or borrowings to the banks during the year. The Company has not taken any loans
from financial institutions or by way of issue of debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, monies raised by
the company by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which they were raised. According to the
information and explanations given by the management, the Gompany has not raised any money way of initiaf
public offer/further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence not commented upon.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the Management, we report
that no material fraud by the Company and on the Company by its officer or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year. -

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the Management, we report
that the managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule (V) to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company.

(xiit) The Company is unlisted, accordingly, compliance with section 177 of the Act were not applicable to the

(xiv

Company. Transactions entered by the Company with related parties are in the ordinary course of business of
the company and were at arm'’s length basis, hence, the provisions of section 188 are not applicable. The
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xv) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone

financial statements, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vipul K Choksi

M.
uD
Pla

A &

No. 37606 ==
IN: 21037606AAAABV2115
ce: Mumbai

Date: June 24, 2021

60f8|Page



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ISW Hydro Eneréy Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and majntenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects. ’

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system aver financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial contrals over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements §

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal finangial control over financial reparting with reference
to these standalone financial statements includes th)';sé?,,rmli_r:»:ﬂs and procedun‘fgs/that-'-{i_j: pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately Iand fairly reflect .thé_'tli':énsactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reas-onable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Y /f/ WV a

Vipul K Choksi

M. No. 37606

UDIN: 21037606AAAABV2115
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 24, 2021
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2021

{ T Crore )
5 As at 31st As at 31st
e g Note Na March, 2021 tarch, 2020
A ASSETS
1 |Non-current assets
{2} Property, plant and equipment 4 5,969.48 6,342.84
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 23.03 17.97
{c) Other Intangible assets 6 747.57 784.34
{d} Investments in subsidiary 10A 454.15 68.86
(e} Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets ] 120.45 173.94
(f) Income tax assets {net) 7A 36.52 34.04
{g) Other non-current assets 8 25.77 25.53
Total non - current assets 7,376.97 7,447.52
2 |Current assets
{2) Inventories 9 11.66 11.46
{b) Financlal assets
(i} Investments 108 472.22 203.84
{ii) Trade receivables 11 51.26 183.97
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 109.94 0.48
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 12 40.14 31.84
{v} Other financial assets 7 128.01 174.95
{c) Other current assets 8 12.70 32.94
Total current assets 825.93 639.48
Total Assets (1+2) 8,202.50 8,087.00
B EQUITY AND LIABIUITIES
1 |Equity
{a) Equity share capital 13 1,250.05 1,250.05
{b) Other equity 14 738.51 589.32
Total cquity 1,988.56 1,839.37
Uabilities
2 |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15 4,838.08 5,140.30
{ii} Other financial liabilities 16 452.22 194.80
(b} Provisions 17 6.98 4,68
Total non - current liabilities 5,297.28 5,339.78
3 [Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitles
(i) Borrowings 15 30.00 -
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises 18 341 0.55
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 18 22.46 74.58
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 857.06 828.68
(b} Other current liabilities 19 2.39 2.65
{c) Provisions 17 1.74 1.39
Total current liabilities 917.06 907.85
Total liabilities 6,214.34 6,247.63
Total Equity and Liabilities {1+2+3) 8,202.90 8,087.00
Sea accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratibn No.: 109574W
A
/ M g Coonblode b - /
—lrdo -_
Vipul K Ehoksl - = - Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Partner A it l_: \ Whole Time Director Chairman
M No. 37606 : o & ","\:\ [DIN: 03620109] [DIN: 01281621]
v s Y "1\_
.f

Sanjeev Kango
Place: Mumbai ) s Company Secretary &
Datc:24th June, 2021 Chief Financial Officer
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(T Crore )
For the Year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars N .
rie oteNO. | 514t March, 2021 31st March, 2020
I Revenue from operations 20 1,222.62 1,263.69
I Otherincome 21 38.85 11.58
i1l Total income (I +1l) 1,261.47 1,275.27
IV Expenses
(a) Employee benefits expense 22 54.58 51.43
(b)  Finance costs 23 451.36 550.00
{c) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 24 44291 433.89
(d)  Other expenses 25 104.40 133.15
Total expenses (1V) 1,053.25 1,168.47
V  Profit before exceptional item and tax ([II-1V) 208.22 106.80
VI Exceptional items = -
VIl Profit before tax (V - VI) 208.22 106.80
VIll Tax Expense 26
Current tax 59.22 18.39
Defer.red tax (38.14) (15.42)
IX Deferred Tax (recoverable from)/adjustable in future tariff 38.14 15.42
59.22 18.35
X  Profit for the year (ViI-VIII-iX) 149.M 88.41
X! Other comprehcnsive income {0.08) (0.45)
(i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plan (0.12) (0.55)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 0.04 0.10
Xl Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year { X + X1 ) 148.92 87.96
Xl Earnings per equity share of 10 each : 35
Basic X 1.19 0.71
Diluted X 1.18 0.71

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registrgtion No.: 109374W

Vipul K Choksi
Partner
M No. 37606

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th June, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gomsbebiete . gW/

Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Whole Time Director Chairman
[DIN: 03620109] [DIN: 01281621]

v

Sanjeev Kango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021
a. Equity share capital (Z Crare )
Balance at the 1st April, 2019 1,250.05
Changes in equity share capital during the FY 2015-20 =
Balance at the 315t March, 2020 1,250.05
Changes In equity share capital during the FY 2020-21 *
Balance at the 31st March, 2021 1,250.05
b. Other equity (% Crare)
Particulars Reserves & surplus Capital Total
Equity-settled Debenture | Retained earnings| Contribution by
employee redemption parent company
benefits reserve reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 0.45 - 432.73 156.14 589.32
Profit for the year - - 149.00 - 149.00
Recognition of Share based payment 0.27 - 0.27
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - . (0.08) {0.08)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 0.72 - 581.65 156.14 738.51
(¥ Crore)
Particulars Reserves & surplus Capital Total
Equity-settied Debenture |Retained earnings| Contribution by
employee redemption parent company
benefits reserve reserve
Balance at 1st April, 2019 0.24 38.45 306.32 156.14 501.15
Profit for the year - - 88.41 - 88.41
Recognition of Share based paymeant 0.21 - - - 0.21
Transfer from Debenture redemption reserve - {38.45) 38.45 =
Othear comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - (0.45) [(1.45)
|Balance as at 31st March 2020 0.45 - 432.73 156.14 585,32

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
Far Shah Gupta & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
C‘nartered Accounrants

9k Conitatrs Y

wput K Choksi Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain

Partner Whote Time Director Chairman

| No. 37606 {DIN: 03620109] [DIN: 01281621]
Sanjeev Kango

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary &

Date: 24th June, 2021 Chief Financial Officer
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(X Crore )
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
| |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax 208.22 106.80
Ad]justed for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 442.91 433.89
Intarast income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at FVTPL (5.64) (2.41)
Net Gain from current investments {12.04) (6:33)
Excess provision no longer requlred written back [18.00)] (0.17)
(Gain) / Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment {0.05) -
Share based payments 0.27 0.21
Finance costs 451.36 550.00
Property Plant and equipment written off 5.11

863.92 975.19
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,072.14 1,081.99
Adjustmant for movement in working capital :
Decrease / {Increase) in Trade and other receivables 152.95 15.51
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables & Other Liabilities 260.87 375.20
Decrease / {Increase) in Current & non-current assets 102.99 {119.24)
Decrease / {Increase) in Inventories {0.20) (.48}

516.61 270.29
Cash generated from operations 1588.75 1352.28
Direct taxes paid (61.69) (19.20)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,527.06 1,333.08
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP and capital advances {82.91) (41.44)
Investment made in Equity share capital of subsidlary (385.28) (68.885)
sank deposits not considered as cash and cash equivatent (6.30) {1.78)
Interest received 5.64 1.45
Net Galn from current investments 12.04 6.33
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES [416.81) (104.28]

| |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings taken / repaid (258.24) {642.12)
Payment of Lease liabilities (1.44) [2.956)
Finance costs paid (472.73) (532.60)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (732.41) (1,177.68)
MET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (r+1+11) 377.84 51.12
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the beginning of the year 204.32 153.20
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the end of year 582.16 204.32
1) Balances with Banks 109.92 0.47
2) Cash on hand 0.02 0.01
3) Investments in mutual funds 472,22 203.84
Total 582.16 204,32
See accompanylng notes to the standalone financial statements
Note:

The Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of cash flows.

As per our attached report ot even date

For Shah Gupta & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regl tration No.: 109574W —— :
‘/;/' p - 5
TN "{\ .
| o\ & wblode /
o | —

\ﬂpul K Choksi ; P y | Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Partner J 2 : _/P ‘ Whote Time Director Chairman
M No. 37606 : 2 [DIN: 03620109] [DIN: 01281621]

STl Ao Sanjeev Kango
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary &

Date: 24th June, 2021 Chief Financial Officer




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 1: General information

a) JSW Hydro Energy Limited (Formeriy Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company
Limited) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. It is 100% subsidiary of M/s JSW
Energy Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at Shottu Colony, P.O.
Tapri, Dist, Kinnaur, 172104 (HP).

b) The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation and sale of power.

c) The company has continued its operations during lockdown due to outbreak of
COVID-19 as the electricity generation is considered as one of the essential services
by the Government. The Company substantial generation capacities are tied up under
long term power purchase agreements, which insulates revenue of the company
under such contracts. The notices of applying force majeure clause under the power
supply agreements from some of the customers have been appropriately responded
under legal advice that the prevailing situation is outside the ambit of force majeure
clause. This position is further supported by clarification from Ministry of Power that
the DISCOMs will have to compiv with obligation to pay fixed capacity charges as per
the power purchase agreement. Based on initial assessment, the Management does
not expect any medium to long-term impact on the business of the Company. The
Company has evaluated the possible effects on the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, inventory, loans, receivables and debt covenants basis the
internal and external sources of information and determined, exercising reasonable
estimates and judgements, that the carrying amounts of these assets are recoverable.
Having regard to above, and the company’s liquidity position, there is no uncertainty
in meeting financial obligations over the foreseeable future.

Note 2.1: Statement of compliance

a) These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian accounting standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of
the Company Act, 2013 read with the Companies (India Accounting Standards) rules
as amended from time to time.

b) The standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 24 June, 2021

Note 2.2 - Applicability of new Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS')
amendments and interpretations:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020, has notified the following major amendments, which
became applicable with effect from 1st April, 2020,

Amendments to Ind AS 103- Business combinations

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 103 for the first time in the current
year. The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be
considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a

" minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2021

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether a
substantive pracess has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under
the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The amendments are applied prospectively to
all business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1st April, 2020.

The adoption of these amendments has not had any impact on the disclosures or reported
amounts in these financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 116 for the first time in the current
year. The amendments provide practical relief, subject to certain conditios, to lessees in
accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by
introducing a practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee
to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.
A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resuiting
from the COVID-19-related rent concession the same way it would account for the change
applying Ind AS 116 if the change were not a lease modification.

The adoption of this amendments has not had any impact on the disclosures or reported
amounts in these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

These amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before the
hedged items or hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are
amended as a result of the on-going interest rate benchmark reforms.
The adoption of these amendments has not had material impact on the disclosures or
reported amounts in these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 — Definition of “"Material”

The Comapny has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 for the first time in
the current year. The amendments make the definition of material in Ind AS 1 easier to
understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in Ind ASs.
The concept of 'obscuring' material information with immaterial information has been
included as part of the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from 'could influence’ to
'could reasonably be expected to influence'. The definition of material in Ind AS 8 has
been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in Ind AS 1. In addition, the MCA
amended other Standards that contain the definition of 'material’ or refer to the term
‘material’ to ensure consistency.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any material impact on its evaluation of
r_n_aperiality in relation to the consolidated financial statements.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2021

New and revised Ind ASs in issue but not yet effective:

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Company has not

applied the following new and amendments to ASs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendment to Ind AS:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Notification dated 18th June, 2021 has issued
new Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2021. These rules are
applicable with immediate effect from the date of the said notification. Major amendments
notified in the notification are provided below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(9

(h)

Ind AS 116 | Leases — The amendment extends the benefits of the COVID 19
related rent concession that were introduced in the previous year (which allowed
lessees to recognize COVID 19 related rent concessions as income rather than as
lease modification) from 30th June, 2021 to 30th June, 2022.

Ind AS 109 | Financial Instruments - The amendment provides a practical expedient
for assessment of contractual cash flow test, which is one of the criteria for being
eligible to measure a financial asset at amortized cost, for the changes in the
financial assets that may arise as a resuit of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. An
additional temporary exception from applying hedge accounting is also added for
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform.

Ind AS 101 | Presentation of Financial Statements - The amendment substitutes the
item (d) mentioned in paragraph BI as 'Classification and measurement of financial
instruments’. The term ‘financial asset’ has been replaced with ‘financial
instruments’.

Ind AS 102 | Share-Based Payment - The amendments to this standard are made
in reference to the Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting under Ind AS in
terms of defining the term ‘Equity Instrument’ which shall be applicable for the
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2021.

Ind AS 103 | Business Combinations ~ The amendment substitutes the definition of
‘assets’ and ‘liabilities’ in accordance with the definition given in the framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS
for qualifying the recognition criteria as per acquisition method.

Ind AS 104 | Insurance Contracts -~ The amendment covers the insertion of certain
paragraphs in the standard in order to maintain consistency with IFRS 4 and also
incorporates the guidance on accounting treatment for amendments due to Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform.

Ind AS 105 | Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations - The
amendment substitutes the definition of — “fair value less costs to sell” with “fair
value less costs of disposal”,

Ind AS 106 | Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources — The amendment
has been made in reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
under Indian Accounting Standards in respect of expenditures that shall not be

- . récegnized as exploration and evaluation assets.
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(1)

)

(k)

0!

(m)

(n)

(0)

()]

(@)

Ind AS 107 | Financial Instruments: Recognition, Presentation and Disclosure - The
amendment clarifies the certain additional disclosures to be made on account of
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform like the nature and extent of risks to which the
entity is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to interest rate
benchmark reform; the entity's progress in completing the transition to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing the transition.

Ind AS 111 | Joint Arrangements - In order to maintain consistency with the
amendments made in Ind AS 103, respective changes have been made in Ind AS
111.

Ind AS 114 | Regulatory Deferral Accounts — The amendment clarifies that an entity
may only change its accounting policies for the recognition, measurement, and
impairment & derecognition of regulatory deferral account balances if the change
makes the financial statements more relevant to the economic decision-making
needs of users and no less reliable.

Ind AS 115 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers — Certain amendments have
been made in order to maintain consistency with number of paragraphs of IFRS 15.

Ind AS 8 | Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — In
order to maintain consistency with the amendments made in Ind AS 114 and to
substitute the word ‘Framework’ with the ‘Conceptual Framework of Financial
Reporting in Ind AS’, respective changes have been made in the standard.

Ind AS 16 | Property, Plant and Equipment -The amendment has been made by
substituting the words “Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use” with “Recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”.

Ind AS 34 | Interim Financial Reporting -The amendments to this standard are
made in reference to the conceptual framework of Financial Reporting in Ind AS.

Ind AS 37 | Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The
amendment substitutes the definition of the term ‘Liability’ as provided in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards.

Ind AS 38 | Intangible Assets - The amendment substitutes the definition of the
term “Asset’ as provided in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under
Indian Accounting Standards.

The company is evaluating the impact of these amendments

II. Amendment to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013:

On 24th March, 2021, MCA through a notification, amended Schedule III of the
Companies Act, 2013, with effect from 1st April, 2021. Key amendments relevant for the
Company are:

(a)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’,
duly distinguished as current or non-current.

Current maturities of long-term borrowings should be disclosed separately within
borrowings instead of earlier disclosure requirement under Other Financial
Liabilities.

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity due to prior
period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

8
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(d)
(e)

(")

(9)

(h)

(M

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital
work-in progress and intangible asset under development.

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility, undisclosed
income and crypto or virtual currency.

Disclosure of specified ratios along with explanation for items included in numerator
and denominator and explanation for change in any ratio is excess of 25%
compared to preceding year.

If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed
from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been
used.

Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance
with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of
companies, titie deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans
and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and related parties
and details of benami property held.

The Company is evaluating the impact of these amendments.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies

3.1

a)

b)

c)

d)

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company is required to prepare its Financia! Statements as per the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016 with effect from 15t April, 2016. Accordingly, the Company has prepared these
Standalone Financial Statements which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 315t March, 2021, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended 31t March, 2021, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as
“Standalone Financial Statements”).

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance
with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) on the accrual
basis of accounting and historical cost convention except for certain material items
that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS and
explained in the ensuing policies below.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all
values are rounded to the nearest crore, except otherwise indicated.

Current and non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet passed on current
/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:

o it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company‘s normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of being

=== =traced: P
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3.2

a)

b)

3.3

b)

e itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date: or
e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:
» it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operatihg cycle:

e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traced.

e It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date ;or the
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Term of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classificatien.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non—-current only.

Use of estimates & judgements

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires that the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of
an item or information in the Standalone Financial Statements is made relying on
these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Standalone Financial
Statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under
the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
periods. The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the
Company for preparation of Standalone Financial Statements is described in note
27.

Property, piant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant
borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to statement of profit and
loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when

no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,

ol
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c)

d)

3.4

a)

b)

3.5

a)

b)

c)

d)

plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under construction
account. At the point when an asset is operating at management's intended use,
the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production,
supply or administrative purposes, are stated in the standalone balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.

Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated amaortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible
assets based on materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected
to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gain / (loss) on de-recognition are
recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold
land and properties under construction) less their residual values as per the
provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the useful
life,rate and residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff
regulation 2014.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Assets held under Service concession arrangement are amortised over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

Post 100% tie up of Karcham Wangtoo HEP from 1st April,2018 with state discoms,
the company provided depreciation on tangible assets as per the provisions of Part
B of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the rates, useful life and
residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff regulation 2014.
Earlier company was providing depreciation based on technical evaluation of useful
life and residual value as per the provision of part A of schedule II of the

.Cq!jnpanies' Act 2013,
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e) Depreciation is being calculated annually based on straight line method and at
rates specified below which are as per CERC Tariff regulation 2014. Provided that
the remaining depreciable value as on 315 March of the year closing after a period
of twelve years from the effective date of commercial operation of the station shall
be spread over the balance useful life of the assets.

Rate of depreciation are given below:

. Depreciation rate (Per

Particulars Annum)

Plant & Machinery 5.28%
Lease hold Land 3.34%
Buildings 3.34%
Furniture’s & Fixtures 6.33%
Vehicles 9.50%
Office Equipment’s 6.33%
Computer & Software 15.00%

3.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

a) At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allecation
basis can be identified.

b) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

c) Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

d) If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

e) When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.7 Borrowing costs

a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

b) All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

c) The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as
the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any
interest income earned on temporary investment of specific barrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows
generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligibte
for capitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures
on that asset.

The Company suspends capitalisation of barrowing costs during extended periods in
which it suspends active development of a qualifying asset.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.9 Revenue recognition
Sale of Power

The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with customers for supply of
power generated from power plants inciuding from allocating the capacity of the plant
under the long term power purchase agreements, from sale of power on merchant basis
including under short term contracts

Revenue from capacity charges (other than from contracts classified as lease) under the
long term power supply agreements is recognised over a period of time as the capacity of
the plant is made available under the terms of the contracts.Electricity charges are
recognised on supply of power under such power supply agreements. Revenue from sale
of power on merchant basis is recognised when power is supplied to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

_-garrying amount on initial recognition.
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Interest or Surcharge on delayed payments on overdue trade receivables is recognised
when significant certainty as to measurability or realisibility exists.

3.10 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiary is determined on the basis of
the primary economic environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the
Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive  use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings; and

- exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks

3.11 Employee benefits
The Company has following post-employment plans:
a) Defined-benefit plan - gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plan is the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period
less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries through actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the statement of profit and loss:

» service cost comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailment and non-routine settlements

. net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from

(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains) / losses
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(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling

(¢) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling are recognised in
the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-
measurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including
future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographics.
The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes
these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of different
assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income
statement, other comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may be also
interdependency between some of the assumptions.

b) Defined-contribution plan - provident fund

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts
to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional
sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident
fund set up as trust or Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and certain state plans like
Employees’ State Insurance. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans
are recognised as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services
that the payment covers.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no
longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any
related restructuring costs.

C) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short Term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during
the period when the employees render the services.

Long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are
recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation
using projected unit credit method.

3.12 Share-based payment arrangements

a) Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

b} The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
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3.13 Taxation

i) Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the standalone statement of profit and
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

b) Deferred tax

(i) Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiary,and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the
same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

ii) Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax during
the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised
as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and

loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
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carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified
period.

iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

3.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(lass) for the year by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury
shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of

any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

3.15 Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a resuit of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

(i) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
— required to settle the obligation; or
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(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties
for completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the
future obligations under the contract.

3.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Investment in subsidiaries:
The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financia!l assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

(D Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit
or loss ,are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial
assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments, Financial assets other than trade receivabies are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair vatue through profit or loss on
the basis of both:
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(a) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the
purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments
are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange
differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in
the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other
comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or
loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This
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election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity
instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a
financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the
‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held
for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see
above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet
the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend
on financial assets at FVTPL is recognhised when the Company’s right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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Impairment of financial assets

a) The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FYOCI. The credit loss is difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an
individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including
that which is forward-looking.

b) The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain
significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at
an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being
simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

¢) Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each reporting date
right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.

d) The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

e) For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-month
expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting
date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company
reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The
impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For
equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for
impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

a) The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

b) On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have

_otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
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¢) On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company
retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company aliocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

3.17 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or eguity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method or
fair value through profit and loss. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer
of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments
issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting palicies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

_-_. +tis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

" o



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

- A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent
consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

- the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s decumented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS
109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance
with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income'
line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case
these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in
other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the
Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense cver the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financia! difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business modet for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company's senior management determines change in the business mode! as a result of
external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively
from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in the business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and the how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting treatment
Classification | Classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recoanised in statement of profit and loss.

FVPTL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on

new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
cost gross carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or
loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value,
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had
always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
gross carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required.

FCTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified to statement of profit and loss at the
reclassification date.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained below.

Financial assets/ financial liabilities ]
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) ]
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input
Level 2 that is significant to the fair Value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input
Level 3 that is significant to the fair Value measurement is
unobservable.

3.18 Leases

a) As per requirement of Ind AS 116 company defines a lease as a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration

b} Accounting for arrangements that contains Finance lease

As per Ind AS 116 company using a single lessee accounting model which requires a
lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. Lease liability is initially
recognised and measured at an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease
payments during the lease term. Right of use asset is recognised and measured at
cost, consisting of initial measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made
to the lessor at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
initial estimate of the restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred. The
company has made election for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on
lease-by-lease basis.

¢} The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at
their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease or at the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate).For the purpose of impairment testing the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale and the value in
use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the assets does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of does from other assets. In such cases, the
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recoverable: amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the
assets belongs.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components in the contract, unless it is practically expedient
to do so.

All leases other than finance lease is operating Lease. Lease payments under an
operating lease is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected
genera!l inflation to compensate for the lessor’'s expected inflationary cost increases,
such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

The co\mpany has exposure to leases which have not yet commenced contractually but
to which company is committed and is making provision for rentals.

3.19 Service concession arrangements

a)

b)

c)

| LQ;

Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangements (revenue from
contract with customer) applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements if:

the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; AND

the grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise—any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement; AND

Is the infrastructure constructed or acquired by the operator from a third party for the
purpose of the service arrangement OR is the infrastructure existing infrastructure of
the grantor to which the operator is given access for the purpose of the service
arrangement?

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire
useful life (whole of life assets) is within the scope of this Appendix if the conditions in
‘a’) above are met.

These arrangements are accounted on the basis of below mentioned medels depending
on the nature of consideration and relevant contract law.

.
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Financial asset model:

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the grantor for the construction services. Unconditional contractual right is
established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

(a) specific or determinable amount;

(b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public services
and specified or determinable amounts.

Intanagible asset model:

The intangible asset mode! is used to the extent that the company, being an operator,
receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public service. A right to charge users
of a public services is not an unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are
contingent on to the extent that public uses the services. Both type of arrangements may
exist within a single contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional
guarantee of payment for the construction and the operation i.e. considered as a Financial
asset and to the extent that the operator has to rely on the public using the service in
order to obtain payment, the operation has an intangible asset. If the Company (being an
operator) performs more than one service (i.e., construction or upgrade services and
operation services) under a single contract or arrangement, consideration received or
receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The Company manages concession arrangements which include power supply from one of
its hydro power plant. The Company maintains and services the infrastructure during the
concession period. These concession arrangements set out rights and obligations related
to the infrastructure and the services to be provided.

The right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and financial receivable and
accordingly, both the intangible asset and financial receivable models are applied.

Income from the concession arrangements earned under the intangible asset model
consists of the (i) Fair Value of the contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair value of
consideration transferred to acquire the asset; and (ii) payments actually received from
the users. The intangible asset is amortized over its expected useful life in a way that
reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Company,
starting from the date when the right to operate starts to be used. Based on these
principles, the intangible asset is amortized in line with the actual usage of the specific
public facility, with a maximum of the duration of the concessian.

Financial receivable is recorded at a fair value of guaranteed residual value to be received
at the end of the concession period. This receivable is subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the

-contractual rights to the financial asset expire.
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3.20 Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present lacation and condition.

Inventories of stores, spare parts, fuel and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted
average cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

-

Note 6. Intangible assets ( Z Crore )
Computer Service Total
Software Concession
Description of Assets Arrangement
Intangibles
At Cost/deemed cost
I. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 1.42 935.82 937.24
Disposals or classified as held for sale - (5.07) (5.07)
Additions 1.20 1.20
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 1.42 931.95 933.37
Il. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year
2020-21
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 0.42 152.48 152.90
Amortisation expense for the year 0.19 33.26 3345
Eliminated on disposal of assets {0.55) (0.55)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 0.61 185.19 185.80
Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2021 (I-ll} 0.81 746.76 747.57
{ ¥ crore )
Computer Service Total
Software Concession
Description of Assets Arrangement
Intangibles
At Cost/deemed cost
1. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 1.03 932.74 933.77
Additions 0.39 3.08 3.47
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 1.42 935.82 937.24
Il. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year
2019-20
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 0.26 119.17 119.43
Amortisation expense for the year 0.16 33.31 33.47
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 0.42 152.48 152.90
Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2020 (1-11) 1.00 783.34 784.34

_ Refer Note 31 for Service concession arrangement

-
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 7. Other financial assets (¥ Crore )
As at 315t March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
[a) Service concession receivable® 51.53 119.83 171.36 45.45 171.35 216.80
{b) Security Deposits
-Gavernment/Semi-Government Authorities 0.52 0.52 0.49 0.49
-Others - 0.08 0.08 - 0.09 0.09.
- 0.60 0.60 - 0.58 0.58
(c) Revenue receivable
- Unbilled revenue 75.51 75.51 129.50 » 129.50
- Interest accrued on deposits 0.97 - 0.97 - - -
76.48 - 76.48 129.50 = 129.50
{d) Other bank balances
-Bank deposits with Original maturity
more than Twelve Months 0.02 0.02 = - -
-Fixed deposits / Margin money for security for Entry Tax = - 2.01 2.01
- 0.02 0.02 2.01 2.01
Total 128.01 120.45 248.46 174.95 173.94 348.89]

*Refer Note 31




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 7A, Income Tax {net) {¥Crore )
Particulars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March,2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Advance Tax and tax deducted at sources - 3652 - 34.04
{Net of proviston for Tax)
36.51 | - 34.04




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 8. Other non-current and current assets (¥ crore )
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total

(a) Capital Advances - 0.43 0.43 . 0.03 0.03
(b} Prepayments 10.05 0.34 10.38 9.19 0.50 9.69
[c) Deposit with Gavernment/Semi Government* . 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 25.00
(d) Entry tax receivable - - - 19.88 . 19.88
[e) GST Input Tax 0.10 - 0.10 - -
[f) Advances to Vendar 2.55 - 2.55 2.91 . ' am
(g} Others - - - 0.96 . 0.96

Total 12.70 25.77 38.47 32,94 25.53 58.47

*Refer Note 3




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 9. Inventaries (¥ Crore )
i As at 31st As at 31st
Ranticulars March, 2021 March, 2020
(a) Stores and spares 11.54 11.46
{b) Others 0.12 -
Total 11.66 11.46
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
()  Stores and spares 20.83 18.58
(b}  Others 0.49
Total 21.32 18.58

Basis of valuation: Refer note 3.20 (Inventories)

po—

Refer Note 15 for Inventories hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 10A. Investment in equity { T Crore)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particutars Current Non- Current Total Current | Non- Current Total
Investment in equity instruments
(i) SW Energy {Kutehr ) Limited 454,15 454.15 68.86 68.86
Total = 454,15 454.15 - 68.86 68.86
Number of Share 45,68,15,000 as on 31st March,2021 and 7,15,34,332 shares as on 31st March,2020 of Face value of Rs. 10 each.
Note 10B. Other Investment {X Crore)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Partlculars
Currant Non- Current Total Current | Non- Current Total
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss I
Investment in mutual funds
i) Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Growth 272.10 272.10 4.25 4.25
ji) HDFC Liquid Fund Regular Growth - - 23.31 2331
lii) SBI premier Liquid Fund- Regular plan - Growth 200.12 200.12 - -
iv) Aditya Birla Sunfife Overnight Regular Growth - 84.40 84.40
v) Kotak Overnight Fund Growth - 34.15 34,15
vi) HDFC Overnight Fund - 57.73 57.73
472,22 - 472.22 203.84 - 203.84




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 11. Trade receivables (¥ Crore)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
RerdEviars Current | Non- Current Total Current | Non- Current Total
(i) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 48.99 - 48.99 156.59 . 156.59
(i) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2.27 - 2.27 27.38 . 27.38
51.26 - 51.26 183.97 - 183.97

Unsecured, Credit impaired . . . a i =
Less: Loss allowance for daubtful receivables < = . = =

Total 51.26 - 51.26 183.97 - 183.97

The credit period allowed to customers is 60 days in Karcham plant and 30 days in Baspa plant. Current applicable interest rate is 15% and 15.30%
per annum respectively for Karcham and Baspa plants as per their respective agreements.

Refer Note 15 for trade receivables hypothecated as security for borrowings.

Refer Note 30 for credit terms, ageing analysis and other relevant details related to trade receivables.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

{Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (¥ Crore)
particul As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
articuiars 2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks
-In Current accounts 109.92 0.47
(b} Cash on hand 0.02 0.01
Total 109.94 0.48
. As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars
2021 2020
Bank balances other than above
(a) Balances with banks
-In deposit accounts (maturity more than 3 months at inception) 40.14 -
(b} Earmarked balances with banks
-Margin money for Security against Entry Tax 31.84
Total 40.14 31.84
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)

Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 13. Equity share capital

( E crore )

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

No. of shares Amount

No. of shares Amount

Authorised:
Equity shares of X 10 each with voting rights

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of X 10 each with voting rights

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares cutstanding at the beginning and end of Year:

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the pariod

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

b) Terms & Rights attached to equity shares :

share.

{i) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

(i) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are efigible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferantial amount, in proportion to the shareholding. However, no such preferential amount exists currently.

c) Details of shareholding more than 5% shares in the company are set out below :

Particulars

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

1 JSW Energy Limited & its nominees

1,250,050,000
100%

1,250,050,000
100%

§ C
O MUMBA| \?*
O | FRN 1109574w )}

i/

o




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly know as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 14, Other Equity

(¥ crore)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2021 March, 2020

Equity-settled employee benefits reserve 0.72 0.45
Retained earnings 581.65 432.73
Capital contribution by parent company 156.14 156.14
Total comprehensive income 738.51 589.32

Notes:

(1) Equity -settled employee benefit reserve

The Company offers ESOP under which options to subscribe for the Company's share have been granted to certain employees and
senior management.The share based payment reserve used to recognise the value of equity settled share based payments provided
as part of the ESOP scheme.

(2) Retained earnings

Retained earings comprises batance of accumulated (undistributed) profit and loss at each year end.

{3} Capital contribution by parent company

Waiver of interest by the parent company, JSW Energy Limited (JSWEL) on the debenture issued by the company to ISWEL is
consideEd as the ' Capital contribution by parent company' as per the provisions of ind AS.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 15. Borrowings (T Crore )
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars
Current Non-Curvent Current Non-Current

|Borrowings at amortised cost
Secured Borrowings:

i) Termloans

From Banks * 306.74 4,865.40 288.24 5,172.13

306.74 4,865.40 288.24 517213

Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 4.52 27.32 4.79 31.83
Less:Current maturities of long term debt 302.22 283.45

{included in note no 16}

4,838.08 - 5,140.30

ii) Short Term Borrowings{(WCDL)**
Fram Banks 30.00 - . =

Total 30.00 4,838.08 . 5,140.30

{_i) Term of Repayment of Rupee Term Loans :
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020

From Banks :
> 1Year 306.74 288.24
2-3Years 684,73 639.93
4-5Years 309.39 50151
6 - 10 Years 3,871.28 834.20
Above 10 Year - 3,196.48
Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings {31.84) (36.62)
Current maturities of long-term debt (302.22) (283.45)
Total Borrowings from Banks 4,838.08 5,140.30
Reconciliation of the borrowings outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

particul As at 31st As at 31st

ars March, 2021 | March, 2020

Balance as at the begininning of the year(including current maturitles) 5423.75 6060.83
Cash flows {repayment)/proceeds (258.24) (642.12)
Non cash changes
Amortised barrowings cost 4.79 5.04
Balance as at the end of the ysar (including current maturities} 5,170.30 5,423.75

(ii) Details of Security :

Rupee term loan aggregating to X 4,789.78 (Prevlous Year :  5,034.52) are secured on a parl passu basls by first ranking charge by way of
legal mortgage on immavable property and first ranking charge by way of hypothecation of movable assets of Karcham-Wangtoo HEP!
(both present and future) situated at Kinnaur Dist,, Himachat Pradesh.

Rupee term loan aggregating to X 382.35 {Previous Year : X 425.85) are secured on a pari passu basis by first charge on immovable and
movable assets of Baspa !l HEP {both present and future) project of the Company situated at Kinnaur Dist., Himachal Pradesh.

* The Company opted to avail moratorium for term loans on payment of all installments {principal and interest component} falling due
between 1st March, 2020 to 31st May, 2020, from respective banks on account of Covid 19 under the RBI guidelines, and accordingly,
principal and interest accrued as on 31st March, 2020 was paid during the year ended 31st March, 2021.

* ‘The Company has ralsed T 5,162.87 crore [US5 707 millian] on 18th May, 2021, by issuing of US$ denominated senior secured "Green
Bonds" (also referred as the notes) pursuant to Rule 144A of the U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended, and applicable Indian regulations,
for the repayment of Its existing green project related rupee-denominated indebtedness. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited [SGX-5T).

** Shart term loan (WCDL) aggregating to Rs.30.00 crore is secured by way of pari-passu first ranking charge on all movabile and immavahle
:;—_::%%e company.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 16. Other financial liabilities

( T Crore)

N As at 31st March, || As at 31st March,
Particulars 2021 2020
Non- Current
(a)  Deposits received 0.02 0.02
{b) Lease liabilities ** 26.25 26.52
(c)  Other payable 425.95 168.26
452.22 194.80
Current
(a)  Current maturities of long-term debt* 302.22 283.45
(b}  Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 21.76 43.13
(c) Lease liabilities ** 0.28 017
(d)  Payable for capital supplies/services 33.08 49.39
(e)  Other payable 499.72 452.54
857.06 828.68
Total 1,309.28 1,023.49
Reconcilitaion of the lease liabilities:
As at 31st March, | | As at 31st March,
Particulars
2021 2020
Opening Lease liabilities as per Indas 116 26.69 26.82
Add: Interest Expense on Lease liabilities 2.40 2.41
Less: Cash Qutflow 2.56 253
Balance as at the end of the Year 26.53 26.69

*

Refer Note 15 for the details of borrowings repayment terms and security charge.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 17. Provisions ( ¥ crore )
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars Current | Non- Current | Total Current | Non-Current | Total
Provision for employee benefits
1) Provision for gratuity* 1.17 3.47 4.64 117 2.54 3.71
(i)  Provision for compensated absence* 0.57 3.51 4,08 0.22 2.14 2.36
Total 1.74 6.98 8.72 1.39 4.68 6.07
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 18, Trade payables (¥ Crore )

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Particulars Current | Non- Current Total Current | Nan- Current Total

Trade Payables*

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 341 2 341 0.55 . 0.55
enterprises **
(b} Totat outstanding dues of creditors other 2246 - 22.46 74.58 - 74.58
than micro and small enterprises

Total 25.87 - 25.87 75.13 - 75.13

*Trade payables are normally settled within 30 days.
¢* Refer Mote 41 (Disclosure under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act)

%\2\ ~ ’ e, 0
* ‘,r‘ AR A \'3'
g \i:iN LT09STIN S ¢y




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
{Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 19. Other current liabilities { Z Crore )

Asat3istMarch,2021 || Asat31st March, 2020

RERHEUITS Current Total l] Current Total
(a) Advance received from customers 104 1.04
(b} Employee recoverles and employer
contributions 0.52 0.52 0.41 041
(c) Statutary dues 0.83 0.83 224 224
Total 2.39 2.39 2.65 2.65




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

{Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 20. Revenue from operations (T Crore )
For the Year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers:
(1)  Sale of power {Own generation) 1,197.83 1,236.00
Total revenue from contract with customers (A) 1,197.83 1,236.00
(2) Income from service concession arrangement 24.79 27.69
Income from service concession arrangement (B) 24.79 27.69
Total (A) + (B) 1,222.62 1,263.69
{a) Details of revenue from contract with Customer
Particulars For the Year Ended For the year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Total Revenue from contract with customers as above* 1,197.83 1,236.00
Add: Rebate on prompt payment 21.44 9.79
Less: Incentive 94.23 78.21
Total Revenue from contract with customers as per contracted price 1,125.04 1.167.58

*The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with customers for supply of power generated from power plants from allocating
the capacity of the plant under the long term power purchase agreements.

Revenue from capacity charges (other than from contracts classified as lease and service concession arrangements) under the long term power
supply agreements is recognised over a period of time as the capacity of the plant is made available under the terms of the contracts.Electricity
charges are recognised on supply of power under such power supply agreements. Revenue from sale of power on merchant basis is recognised
when power is supplied to the customers.

Significant changes in the contract liability balance during the year are as follows:

Particulars For the Year Ended | For the year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Opening Balance -
Less: Revenue recognised during the year from balance at the beginning of the year *
Add: Advance received during the year not recognized as revenue 1.04 E
Closing Balance 1.04 -




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED ,74
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited) 7
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 21. Other income (Z Crore )
Particulars For the Year Ended| | For the year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

a) Interest Income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at FVTPL
i On Bank deposits 2.18 2.40
ii Other Financial Assets 3.46 0.01

b) Other non-operating income

i Net Gain on sale of current investments designated as at FVTPL 12.04 6.33
il Net Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.05 0.01
iii Net gain on foreign currency transaction * - 0.00
iv Domestic Scrap Sales 0.17 0.01
v Sale of Carban credit 2.09 2.07
vi Provision no longer required written back 18.00 017
vii Miscellaneous income 0.86 0.58
Total 38.85 11.58

* Less than 50,000




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 22. Employee benefits expense ( ¥ Crore )
For the Year Ended For the year Ended
et 31st March, 2021 l 31st March, 2020
(a) Salaries and wages 48.28 45.55
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds * 3.31 3.63
(c} Share based payment ** 0.27 0.30
(d) Staff welfare expenses 2.72 1.95
Total 54,58 51.43

* Refer note 34 { Employee benefit plans) for the details of defined benefit plan and defined contribution
plan of the Company.

** Refer note 35 (Employee share base payment plan )for the details of share base payment
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 23. Finance costs (T Crore )
. For the Year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
(a) Interest expense

i Interest on Debentures - 23.18
ii Interest on Term Loan 440.80 515.02
i Interest on cash credit 0.08 0.05

(b) Unwinding of interest on Financial liabilities carried at Amortised
cost 4.61 4.61
(c)  Other borrowing costs 3.47 4.73
(d) Interest on lease liabilities 2.40 2.41
Total 451.36 550.00

7 GUPTA
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 24. Depreciation and amortisation expense { T Crore )
For the Year Ended For the year Ended
Ranticalats 31stMarch, 2021 || 31st March, 2020
(a)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 409.46 400.42
(b)  Amortization on Intangible assets 33.45 33.47
Total 442.91 433.89
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 25. Other expenses (¥ Crore )
particulars For the Year Ended| |For the year Ended

31st March, 2021 || 31st March, 2020

(a) Stores and spares consumed 20.83 18.58
(b) Power & Water 4.54 4.81
{c) Rent including lease rentals 2.06 2.15
{(d) Repairs and maintenance 30.83 42.82
(e) Royalty 0.06 0.04
(f) Rates and taxes 0.44 0.44
(g) Insurance 20.57 19.43
(h) Net loss / {gain) on foreign currency transactions net off } ** 0.00 {0.00)
(i} Legal and other professional charges 4.47 2.63
)] Travelling Expenses 0.65 1.51
(k) Donation 0.05 5.00
() Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses* 3.00 3.45
{m} Open Access Charges 0.06 0.07
{n) Other General Expenses 4,90 5.38
{o) Provision far doubtful debts - 18.89
(p}  Safety and Security 1.21 124
(a) Branding Expenses 3.60 3.72
(n) Shared Service Charges 2.02 2.99

(s) Property ,Plant and equipment written off 5.11 -

Total 104.40 133.15

* Refer note 37 (Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
** Less than 50,000




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
(Formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note 26. Tax expense (X Crore)
Particul For the Year Ended || For the year Ended
S 31st March, 2021 || 31st March, 2020
Current Tax 59.22 18.39
Deferred tax {40.72) (45.72)
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit availed 2.58 30.30
Deferred tax (recoverable}/adjustable in future tariff 38.14 15.42
Total 59.22 18.39

A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax

rate to recognised income tax expenses for the year indicated are as follows:

(¥ Crore)

Particulars For the Year EndeTl For the year Ended

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Profit before tax 208.22 106.80
Enacted tax rate 34.944% 34.944%
Expected tax expense at statutory tax rate 72.76 || 37.32
Tax effect due to tax holiday (68.26} {48.06)
Effect due to non deductible expenses 1.09 4.51
Deferred tax / tax credit recognised from earlier year (0.63)" -
Effect of taxes (recoverable)/payable in future tariff 38.14 15.42
Impact due to reduced rate of tax during the year 15.82 15.32
Impact due to reduced rate of tax on opening - (6.22)
Others 0.27 0.10
OCl Tax 0.04 -
Tax expenses for the year 59.22 18.39

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Significant components of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) ,deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses recognised in the

Consolidated Financial Statements are follows:

(T Crore)
As at 31st Recognised / As at 31st
i March,2020 (reversed) through March,2021
Particulars
profit or loss/ OCl /
equity

Property plant & equipment 25.42 52.25 77.67
MAT credit 2.58 {2.58) -
Recoverable / (payable) in future tariff (25.93) (38.14) {64.07)
Others (2.07) (11.53) (13.60)
Total - p N

(¥ Crore )

As at 31%" Recognised / As at 31st
March,2019 (reversed) March,2020
Particulars through profit or"
loss/ OCI /
equity

Property plant & equipment (25.34) 50.76 25.42
MAT credit 32.88 (30.30) 2.58
Recoverable / (payable) in future tariff (10.51) (15.42) (25.93)
Others 2.97 {5.04) {2.07)




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 27. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above, the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the
revision affects current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Service concession arrangements

The Management has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Ind AS 115: Service
Concession Arrangements (revenue from contract with customer) with respect to its power
plant and transmission assets portfolio. In assessing the applicability, they have exercised
significant judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, terms of
implementation agreements and power purchase agreements entered with the grantor,
ability to determine prices, useful lives of the assets, assessment of right to guaranteed
cash etc. Based on detailed evaluation, the Management has determined that
arrangement in relation to the Company’s Baspa power plant (300 MW) meets the
criterion for recognition as service concession arrangements.

Revenue recognition

a) In case of BASPA, revenue from sale of power is accounted for on the basis of billing to
Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) as per Tariff approved by
Himachal Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (HPERC) in accordance with the
provisions of the Long Term Power Purchase Agreement (LTPPA) dated 4t June, 1997,
Amendment No. 1 dated 7% January,1998, executed between the Company and
HPSEBL.

b) In case of KARCHAM Wangtoo, revenue from sale of power is accounted as under:

i) The long term PPA sales are accounted on the basis of applicable CERC regulations
and respective Tariff orders/ Tariff petition as filled with Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission for determining the tariff of Karcham Wangtoo plant

ii) Sale of power under Short Term through the Power Exchange is accounted for on
the basis of billing as per the agreed rate.

Evaluation of arrangements to determine whether it contains Ilease
arrangements:

The management has critically evaluated the terms of the contract (including by obtaining

independent legal advice) with respect to Karcham Wangtoo Hydro Plant to determine

whether the contract is, in substance, with a customer or with multiple state electricity

utility companies, and the customer is merely acting as an intermediator/facilitator. Based

on such evaluation, it was concluded that the arrangement is not in the nature of lease in
__terms of Ind AS 116.
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Kev sources of estimation uncertainties

Impairment ef property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss

(if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in
use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This
involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and
supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could
impact the carrying value of assets.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other
claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of
crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that
are remote are neither recognised nor disclosed as contingent liability. The management
decides whether the matters needs to be classified as ‘remote,’ ‘possible’ or ‘probable’
based on expert advice, past judgements, terms of the contract, régulatory provisions etc.

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the
financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF

model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present
value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and
mortality rates etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. -

Tax

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect
of any period is dependent upon the interpretation of the relevant tax rules. Whilst an
assessment must be made of deferred tax position of the entity, these matters are
inherently uncertain until the position of the entity is agreed with the relevant tax
authorities.
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Note 28. Financial Instruments:

a) Financial Instruments by category

{ TCrore)

As at 31 March, 2021 Carrying Fair value |Level 1l | Level 2 | Level 3

amount
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Investment in mutual fund units 472.22 472.22 = 472.22 -
Financial assets carried at
amortised cost
Security deposits 0.60 0.60 = ] 0.60
Trade receivables # 51.26 51.26 ~ N -
Receivables-Service concessio
e n 171.36 185.50 - - 185.50
other bank batances | 15010| 15010 . s .
Unbilled revenue 75.51 75.51 - - -
Interest Receivable 0.97 0.97 - N =
Total Financial assets 922.02 936.16 - 472.22 186.10
Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities carried at
amortised cost
Borrowings 5,140.30 - - - 5,140.30
Short term Borrowings (WCDL) 30.00 = - 30.00
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.02 0.02 - - -
Trade Payables # 25.87 25.87 - = -
Payable for capital projects# 33.08 33.08 - - -
Other payable# 925.67 925.67
Lease Liability 26.53 26.53 26.53
Lr;tﬁgevsitngscrured but bot due on 21.76 21.76 }
Total Financial liabilities 6,203.23 1,032.93 = -| 5,196.83
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( ¥ Crore )

As at 31 March, 2020 Carrying Fair value | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3

amount
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)
Investment in mutual fund units 203.84 203.84 - 203.84 -
Financial assets carried at
amortised cost
Security depaosits 0.58 0.58 - = 0.58
Trade receivables # 308.15 308.15 - - -
Receivables-Service concession
agreement 216.80 236.96 - - 236.96
e e B ) I :
Unbilled Revenue 5.32 5.32
Total Financial assets 769.02 789.18 -| 203.84 237.54
Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities carried
at amortised cost
Borrowings 5423.75 - - - 5,423.75
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.02 0.02 - - o
Trade Payables # 75.13 75.13 - - =
Payable for capital projects# 49,39 49.39 - - -
Other payable# 663.93 663.93 - -
Lease Liabilities 26.69 26.69 26.69
Total Financial liabilities 6,238.91 815.16 - - | 5,450.44

#The carrying amounts of ancillary borrowing cost, trade receivables, unbilled revenue,
other receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents and other
bank balances, rent and other deposits are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short term nature. The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities included in the level 2 are based on NAV and in level 3 based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties.

ii)Fair Value Hierarchy:

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of
the financial instruments that are

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the
.CCDLLQETQ standard.

Jop
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The carrying amount of investment in unquoted equity instrument measured at fair value
(which are not disclosed below) is considered to be the same as it’s fair values.

) As at s1st As at 31st . -
Particulars Marc,2021 March,2020 Level Valuation Technique
Financial assets
, b : Cost is considered as per NAV as
nvestmen n st +
mutual fund units 472.22 203.84 2 on 31 March,2021/31°
March,2020

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amount of current investments, Trade Receivable, Unbilled revenue, Trade
Payable, Capital Creditors, Cash & Cash Equivalents, Other bank balances, Other Financial
assets and Other financial liabilities (Other than those specifically disclosed) are to be
considered to be the same as fair values, due to their short term nature.

As at sist As at 31st Level
) March, 2021 March,2020 Valuation
Particulars . = = -
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Value Technique
Value Value Value
_Financial assets |
Service Concession Valuation techniques
receivable 171.36 185.50 P S0 3 for which the lowest
level input that is
. . significant to the fair
Security deposits 0.60 0.60 0.58 0.58 3 T o -y
is unobservable.
171.96 186.10 217.38 237.54
Financial
Liabilities
Borrowings (Long Valuation techniques
Term) 5140.30 5140.30 5,423.75 5,423.75 . 3 for which the lowest
level input that is
—— significant to the fair
Lease Liability 26.53 26.53 26.69 26.69 3 Valtiel “meastrenent
| is unobservable.
5,166.83 | 5,166.83 | 5.450.44 5.450.44 |

Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-
ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages
the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports
which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial
instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the
Company's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and
non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance
with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous
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basis. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently,
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed
within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts and
currency options.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are NIL.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure fo the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The risk is managed by
the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings.

The Company's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate
liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate

borrowings:
{ ¥ Crore)

As at March,2021 Net Balance Unamortised Gross Balance

Transaction Cost
Floating rate borrowings 5170.30 31.84 5202.14
Total 5170.30 31.84 5202.14

( ¥ Crore )

As at March,2020 Net Balance Unamortised Gross Balance

Transaction Cost
Floating rate borrowings 5423.75 36.62 5460.37
Total 5423.75 36.62 5460.37

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Company’s profit (PBT) for the year ended 31st March, 2021 would
decrease/increase by ¥ 26.38 crore (for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

— —_—
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decrease/increase by ¥ 27.92 crore). This is mainly attributable to the Company's
exposure to interest rates on its floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient coliateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored.

In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in refation to financial guarantees given
to banks provided by the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is
the maximum amount the Company could have to pay

if the guarantee is called on. No amount has been recognised in the financial position as
financial liabilities

The state electricity distribution companies (Government companies) and related parties
are the major customer of the Company and accordingly, credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors,
which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of
i ia| assets and liabilities.

2
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The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of
financial liabilities as at reporting date.

¥ Crore )
As at 315t March, 2021
Particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
| Non-current financial liabilities

Long term borrowings - 1,171.95 3,666.13 4,838.08
Other long-term liabilities
Rent and other Deposits - 0.02 - 0.02
Lease payable B 1.65 24.60 26.25
Other Payable - 425,95 - 425.95
Ii:nt:illities Non-Current financid N 1,599.57 3,690.73 5,290.30
Current financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables and
acceptances:
Trade payables - Other than
acceptgnz:les 25.87 - - 25.87
Other current financial liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 302.22 - - 302.22
Short Term Borrowings(WCDL) 30.00 - = 30.00
Payable for capital project 33.08 - - 33.08
Other payable 499.72 - = 499,72
Lr:)trerl;ivsitnqzccrued but not due on 21.76 } . 21.76
Lease payable 0.28 - - 0.28
Total current financial liabilities 912.93 - - 912.93
Total Financial Liabilities 912.93 1,599.57 3,690.73 6,203.23
Non-current Financial assets
Long term loans and advances
Security deposits - 0.01 0.59 0.60
Ancillary Borrowing cost - - - -
Service concession — arrangements = 119.48 0.35 119.83
Other advances - 0.02 - 0.02
Total Non-current financial Assets - 119.51 0.94 120.45
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 51.26 - - 51.26
Cash and cash eqguivalents 109.94 - - 109.94
Bank Balances other than above 40.14 . 40.14
Service concession - arrangements 51.53 - - 51.53
Investments in mutual fund 472.22 - - 472.22
Unbilled revenue 75.51 = - 75.51
Interest Receivable 0.97 - - 0.97
Total current financial assets 801.57 - - 801.57

801.57 119.51 0.94 922.02

SHEQ accod

Tatal Financial Assets
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788

( ¥ Crore )
As at 315t March, 2020
Particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Non-current financial liabilities
Long term borrowings - 1,125.18 4,015.12 5,140.30
Other lonag-term financial liabilities
Rent and other Deposits - 0.02 - 0.02
Lease payable - 1.44 25.08 26.52
Other payable - 168.26 - 168.26
Total Non-Current financial Liabilities - 1,294.90 4,040.20 5,335.10
Current financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables and acceptances:
Trade payables - Other than acceptances 75.13 - - 75.13
Other current financial liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 283.45 = = 283.45
Payable for capital project 49.39 = = 49.39
Other payable 452.54 - - 452.54
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 43.13 - = 43.13
Lease Payable 0.17 - - 0.17
Total current financial liabilities 903.81 - - 903.81
Total Financial Liabilities 903.81 1,294.90 4,040.20 6,238.91
Non-current financial assets
Long term |eans and advances
Security deposits - 0.01 0.57 0.58
Ancillary Borrowing cost = = ‘
Service concession-arrangements - 171.00 0.35 171.35
Other advances - 2.01 - 2.01
Total Non-current financial Assets - 173.02 0.92 173.94
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 308.15 - - 308.15
Cash and cash equivalents 0.48 - - 0.48
Bank Balances other than above 31.84 - - 31.84
Investments 203.84 - - 203.84
Service concession-arrangements 45.45 - - 45.45
Other Financial Assets 5.32 - = 5.32
Total current financial assets 595.08 173.02 0.92 595.08
Total Financial Assets 595.08 173.02 0.92 769.02
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The Company has hypothecated part of its trade receivables, loans, short term
investments and cash and cash equivalents in order to fulfil certain collateral requirements
for the banking facilities extended to the Company. There is obligation to release the
hypothecation on these securities to the Company once these banking Ffacilities are-

__surrendered. (Refer Note 15)
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Note 29 Capital management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a strong
credit rating, healthy capital ratios and establish a capital structure that would maximise
the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The Company's capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion ,repayment of
principal and interest on its borrowings and strategic acquisition.The principal source of
funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated from
its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the capital markets.
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify
its debt profile, reduce interest cost and align maturity profile of its debt commensurate
with life of the asset and closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst competing
capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at
minimum risk.

Gearing ratio
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total

equity as given below:

{ T Crore )
As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 315t March,
2021 2020
Debt (i) 5,170.30 5,423.75
Cash and bank balances (including current 582.16 204.32
investment in liquid fund) (ii)
Net debt (i-ii) 4,588.14 5,219.43
Total equity (iii) 1,988.56 1,839.37
Net debt to equity ratio 2.31 2.84

(i) Debt includes long term and short term borrowings (refer note No-15)

(i) Includes cash and cash equivalents balance in bank deposits (other than earmarked
deposits) and investments in mutual fund.

(iii) Includes equity share capital and other equity.

Note 30. Credit Risk

The average credit period on sales of power is 60 /30 days for Karcham Wangtoo HEP and
Baspa II HEP respectively,

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Company has not recognised an allowance for
doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.

Allowances for doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the
counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's current financial position.
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Ageing of Trade receivable:*

( ¥ Crore )

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 31t March,

2021 2020
Within the credit period 89.16 203.14
1-30 days past due 0.24 22.95
31-60 days past due 15.04 25.94
61-90 days past due 1.39 10.29
91-180 days past due 0.65 =
>180 days past due 20.28 45.83
Total 126.76 308.15

*Above mentioned Customer’s balance Includes unbilled revenue of %.75.51 Crore
(Previous year ¥ 129.50 Crore.)

Note 31. Service concession arrangement

(a) Description of the concession arrangement:

On 1st October, 1992, a service concession agreement was entered into with the
Government of Himachal Pradesh (“the Government”) to establish, own, operate and
maintain 300 MW Hydro Electric power plant at Baspa, Kuppa, Himachal Pradesh (“the
power plant”) for supply of power to Himachal State Electricity Board. Pursuant to the
above, a power purchase agreement was entered with Himachal Pradesh State Electricity
Board (“the PPA").

(b) Significant terms of the concession arrangement:

Term Particulars

Period of 40 years from date of commissioning of the power plant and extendable
arrangement for 20 years at the option of the Government

Commissioning of the June 8, 2003

power plant

Tariff Approved by Himachal Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (HPERC)

having regard to the tariff entitlement under the PPA

Option to purchase After the expiry of the agreement period, the Government has the option
to purchase all the assets and works of the power plant, at mutually
- agreed terms.

“Free power 12 % free power of the electricity generated is to supplied to the
Government

(c) Obligation for overhaul:

Under the concession agreement, the Company has to manage, operate, maintain and
repair the power plant entirely at its own cost.

(d) Renewal /Termination options:

Termination of the concession agreement can happen before expiry date under the force
layre events and default by either parties of the concession agreement
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(e) Classification of service concession arrangement in the standalone Financial
Statements:

( ¥ Crore )
Asat3lst | Asat31st
March,2021 | March,2020

Particulars

Intangible asset - Rights under service concession receivable

(refer note 6) 747.57 784.34
Financial asset — Receivable under service concession arrangement
(refer note 7) 171.36 216.8 |

Note 32. Operating segment

The Chairman of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the
Company’'s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one segment
viz,, "Generation and Sale of power" and that most of the operations are in India. Hence
the Company has single reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108
"Operating Segments”.

The information regarding the revenue from customers of it's single reportable Segment
has been disclosed below

Customer contributing more than 10% of revenue

Revenue from operations includes revenue aggregating to ¥1,210.18 crore (previous year
: ¥1,251.87 crore) from two (previous year :two) major customers having more than 10%
of total revenue from operations of the Company.

Note 33. Earnings per share

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended 31t ended 31t
March, 2021 March, 2020
Profit for the year (¥ crore) - (A) 149.00 88.41

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic

& diluted EPS - (B)

1,25,00,50,000

1,25,00,50,000

Earnings Per Share (¥ crore) — Basic and Diluted (C)

- {A/B)

1.19

0.71

Nominal value of an equity share (Z crore)

10

10

Note 34. Employee benefit Plans:

(a) Defined contribution plans — Provident fund:

The employer's contribution for the period from 1st Apr 2020 to 31st December 2020,
were deposited with the employer established provident fund trust maintained by the
Company. Further, the said trust was surrendered to the provident fund authorities w.e.f
1st January 2021 and correspondingly, the employees provident fund balances tying with
the pravident fund trust were transferred to the respective employee’s accounts with
provident fund authorities. The monthly employer's contributions from January 21
onwards are being deposited with regional provident fund authorities.
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The Company’s contribution to provident fund recognized in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss of ¥ 2.22 crore (Previous year ¥ 2.23 crore) (Included in note 17)

(b) National pension scheme:

The company’s contribution to National Pension Scheme (NPS) recognized in Standalone
statement of profit and loss of ¥ 0.15 crore (Year ended 31st March, 2020 : ¥ 0.13 crore)
(Included in Note 22)

(c) Defined benefits plans - Gratuity:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The amount of gratuity shall be payable to an employee on the termination of his
employment after he has rendered continuous service for not less than five years, or on
their superannuation or resignation. However, in case of death of an employee, the
minimum period of five years shall not be required. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement / termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service completed.
The gratuity plan is a funded plan administered by a separate fund that is legally
separated from the entity and the company makes contributions to the insurer (LIC). The
company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be
maintained over period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment upto a maximum accumulation
of 120 days is payable to all eligible employees on separation of the company due to
death, retirement, superannuation or resignation, at the rate of daily salary.

Investment risk | The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bond yields; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity
securities and debt instruments.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s

liability.

Asset  Liability | The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the

matching risk plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk.

Mortality risk Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and
payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

Concentration Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with

risk the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets.

Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have
to follow regulatory guidelines.

1
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The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out at 31st March, 2021 by M/S K A Pandit, Consultants &
Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

T Crore )
Defined benefit obligation as at 1st April, 2019 4.35
Interest cost 0.33
Current service cost 0.52
Benefits paid (0.46)
Actuarial {Gains)/Loss 0.52
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March, 2020 5.27
Interest cost 0.36
Current service cost 0.58
Liabilities Transferred In / Acquisition 0.22
Liabilities Transferred out / Divestment (0.25)
Benefits paid (0.33)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss (0.03)
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March, 2021 5.82

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 315 March, 2021

( ¥ Crore )
Particulars Defined Fair (Benefit)/
Benefit Value Liability
Obligation | of Plan
assets
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 5.27 1.56 3.71
2020
Gratuity X Current Service cost 0.58 = 0.58
ratui cos =
charged = Net interest expense /(Income) 0.36 0.10 0.26
profit or loss Liability Transferred in/Acquisitions 0.22 0.22
(Liability Transferred out/Divestments) (0.25) (0.25)
Sub-total included in profit or loss 0.91 0.10 0.81
Benefits paid (0.33) | (0.33) »
Re- Return on plan assets (excluding (0.15) 0.15
measurement | amounts included in net interest
gains / | expense)
(losses) in | Actuarial changes arising from changes 0.18 - 0.18
other in financial/Demographic assumptions
comprehensiv - -
e Income Experience adjustments (0.21) - (0.21)
Sub-total included in OCI (0.03) | (0.15) 0.12
Contributions by employer - - =
Closing Balance as on 31st March, 5.82 1.18 4.64
2021




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2020

( ¥ Crore )
Particulars Defined Fair (Benefit)/
Benefit Value Liability
Obligation | of Plan
assets
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 4.35 1.90 2.45
Gratuity cost | 2019
charged to | Current Service cost 0.52 = 0.52
profit or loss Net interest expense 0.33 0.15 0.19
Sub-total included in profit or loss 0.86 0.15 0.71
Benefits paid (0.46) | (0.46) -
Re- Return on plan assets (exciuding (0.03) 0.03
measurement | amounts  included in interest
gains /| expense)
(Iohsses) N ['Actuarial changes arising from changes 0.40 - 0.40
2(tnn$r:rehensiv in financial assumptions
B, ITEGTE Experience adjustments 0.12 = 0.12
Sub-total included in OCI 0.52 | (0.03) 0.55
Contributions by employer - 5 =
Closing Balance as on 31st March, 5.27 1.56 3.71
2020

The actual return on plan assets (including interest income) was ¥ (0.04) Crore (previous
year %0.12 crore)

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as foliows:

Particulars

As at 31t March,
2021

As at 315t March,
2020

Insurer Managed Funds

100%

100%

In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with
insurance Companies, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the
percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has been not been

disclosed.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown

below:
. As at 315t March, | As at 315t March,
Particulars 2021 2020
Discount rate: 6.44% 6.84%
Future salary increases: 6% 6%
Rate of Employee Turnover 3% 3%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Mortality Rate During Employment Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)

;N\
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2021

Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation
are discounted rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below
has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption
occurring at the end of the reporting period. While holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at 315t As at 31t
March, 2021 | March, 2020
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.44) (0.40)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.51 0.46
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.51 0.46
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.45) (0.41)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.01 0.02
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.01) (0.03)
The following are the maturity analysis of projected benefit obligations:
{ ¥ Crore )
Particulars As at 31%t As at 31+t
March, 2021 [March, 2020
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.64 0.40
Between 2 and 5 years 1.34 1.51
Between 5 and 10 years 2.47 2.22
Above 10 years 6.46 6.24
Total expected payments 10.91 10.37

Each year an assets-liability-matching study is performed in which the consequences
of the strategic investment policies are analysed in term of risk and return profiles.

he company expects to contribute ¥ 1.51 crore (previous year ¥ 1.17 crore) to its
gratuity plan for the next year. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
plan is 12 years (previous year 12 year)

Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences with provisions on accumulation
and encashment by the employees during employment or on separation from the
Company due to death, retirement or resignation. The expected cost of compensated
absence is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at
the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

Social Security Code

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘the Code’) received presidential assent on
September 28, 2020. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code on its books of
account in the period(s) in which the provisions of the Code becomes effective.

e




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 35. Employee share based payment plan:

i) JSWEL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN - 2016 (Grant Date: 190

May, 2017)

a) The Company has the share option plan schemes for permanent employees of the
Company in the identified grades of employees for respective plans / schemes
including any director except promoter or independent directors, nominee directors
and non-executive directors or a director who either himself or through relatives or
through anybody directly or indirectly holds more than 10% of the outstanding

equity shares of the parent Company.

b) The award value shall be determined as percentage of Total Fixed Pay. The grant
shall be at such price as may be determined by the ESOP Committee and shall be
specified in the Grant letter. The option shall not be transferable and can be
exercised only by the employees of the Company.

¢) The number of options to be granted to each eligible employees is determined by
dividing the Award Value (amount equivalent to percentage of Annual Fix Pay) by the
Fair Value of option provided. The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant is

determined by using Black Scholes model.

The following table illustrates the number movements in share option during the year:

ESOP 2016 (Grant Date: 19t May, 2017)

Particulars

As at 315t March,

As at 315t March,

2021 2020
Outstanding at 1st April 73,211 73,211
Granted during the vear - -
Exercised During the Year 36,606 -
Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at 31%t March 36,606 73,211
Exercisable at 315t March 36,606 73,211

ESOP 2016 (Grant Date: 15T Nov, 2018)

As at 315t March,

As at 31t March,

Particulars 2021 2020
Outstanding at 1st April 2,19,428 2,19,428
Granted during the vear E -
Exercised During the Year - -
Expired during the vear - -
Outstanding at 31t March 2,19,428 2,19,428
Exercisable at 31t March 2,19,428 2,19,428

*
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021

The Method of settlement for above grants are as below:

Grant date
Particulars

19th May, 2017 ist Nov,2018
Vesting period 3/4 years 3/4 years
Method of settlement Equity Equity
Exercise price¥ 51.80 51.96
Fair value¥ 28.88 37.99
Dividend Yield(%) 20% 20%
Expected Volatility(%) 44.50% / 45.16% | 42.57% / 43.53%
Risk free Interest rate (%) 6.90%/6.98% 7.78%/7.84%
Expected Life of Share options (years) 5/6 Years 5/6 Years
Weighted Average exercise priceZ 51.80 51.96
Pricing formula Exercise Price determined at 3| Exercise Price determined

51.80 per share was at a discount] at ¥ 51.96 per share was
of 20% to the closing market] at a discount of 20% to
price of parent Company's share| the closing market price
i.e. ¥ 64.75 at the close of 18" of parent Company’s
May, 2017 at exchange having| share i.e. ¥ 64.95 at the
highest trading volume. close of 31st Oct, 2018 at
exchange having highest
trading volume.

Expected option Life The expected option life is assumed to be mid-way between the
option vesting and expiry. Since the vesting period and
contractual term of each tranche is different, the expected life
of each tranche will be different. The expected option life is
calculated as (year to vesting Contractual Option item) / 2.

Expected volatility Volatility was calculated using standard deviation of daily
change in stock price. The historical period considered for
volatility match the expected life of the option.

How Expected | The followings factors have been considered:

volatility was | (a) Share price (b) Exercise price (c) Historical volatility
determined, including | (d) Expected option life (¢) Dividend Yield

an explanation of the
extent to which
expected volatility was
based on historical
volatility: and

Whether and how any
other features of the
option grant were
incorporated in to the
measurement of fair
value, such as market
condition.

Black-Scholes Method
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798

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current
expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period
similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not

necessarily be the actual outcome.
Note 36. Operating Lease

For the Financial Year 2020-21

Particulars For the year Ended 31st
March,2021
Depreciation 1.41
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 2.40
Particulars Future lease Interest Present
rentals Value
Within one year 2.66 2.38 0.28
After one year but not more than five 13.16 11.51 1.65
vears
More than five years 48.78 24.18 24.60
Total 64.60 38.07 26.53
For the Financial Year 2019-20:-
{ ¥ Crore )
Particulars For the year Ended 31st
March,2020
Depreciation 141
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 2.40
Particulars
Future lease Interest Present
rentals Value
Within one vear 2.57 2.40 0.17
c:taerrsone year but not more than five 13.09 11.65 1.44
More than five years 51.50 26.42 25.08
Total 26.69
Note 37. Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:
( T Crore)
Particulars As at 31t As at 31st
March, 2021 | March, 2020
zgount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the 3.00 3.45
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset 1.21 1.04
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 1.79 2.41
3.00 3.45
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Note 38. Commitments

( ¥ Crore )

Particulars

As at 315t
March, 2021

As at 31st
March, 2020

Estimated amount of Capital contracts remaining to be

March, 2021

executed to the extent not provided for (net of 7.98 14.50
advances)
Total 7.98 14.50
Note 39. Contingent liabilities
( T Crore )
Particulars As at 31st As at 315t

March, 2020

(a) Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debt * 127.84 127.84
(b)Other claims not acknowledged as debt 0.07 0.07
(c) Income tax Demand for AY 2016-17 34.72 34.72
Total 162.63 162.63

*Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) has made a claim against
JPVL, as seen in its letter dated November 6, 2012, for expenditures incurred for a
survey and investigation work in connection with the Baspa II Project amounting te Rs
127.84 Crore the company has filed an application with the High Court of Himachal
Pradesh to restrain HPSEBL from recovering the claimed amount from the energy bills of
the company. The court has accepted the plea and directed the Company to deposit
Rs.25.00 Crore as security deposit. Accordingly, the company has deposited Rs. 25.00
Crore with HPSEBL. (Refer Note 8)
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Note 40. Related party disclosure

A)

List of Related Parties

Related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during
the vear:

Holding Company

JSW Energy Limited

II

Subsidiary

JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited

III

Fellow Subsidiaries

—

JSW Power Trading Company Limited

-
<

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Prashant ]ai_n — Chairman

Mr.Pritesh Vinay - Non Executive Director (From 16 Sep,20)

Mr.Sunil Goyal - Independent Director (From 25™ March,21)

Mr. Jyoti Kumar Agarwal — Non Executive Director (Upto 15th Sep,20)

Mr. Gyan Bhadra Kumar - Whole Time Director

Mr. Sanjeev Kango - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sanjeev Kango - Company Secretary

Ms. Sheila Sangwan-Woman & Independent Director (Upto 07th Sep,20)

Vi N AU W N~

Mr. Rakesh Nath- Independent Director (Upto 07th Sep,20)

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Jain - Non Executive Director (Upto 20%* May,20)

Ms. Seema Jajodia- Woman Director

Mr. Sharad Mahendra — Non Executive Director (Upto 9™ June,20)

Other related parties with whom the company has entered into
transactions during the vear

JSW Steel Limited

Jindal Education Trust (Jindal Vidya Mandir and Jaypee Pvt ITI)

JSW IP Holdings Private Limited

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited

JSW Foundation

JSW Reality Infrastructure Private Limited

JSW Paints Limited

Jankalyan Electoral Trust
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
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(% crore)

B | Transaction during the year c:;;?_nt Pr‘?;l;?-us
1 | Sale of power /Material

JSW Power Trading Company Limited - 1.34
2 | Sale of Assets

JSW Energy (Kutehr) limited - 0.11
3 | Interest on Debentures

JSW Energy Limited - 23.18
4 | Service Received

JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 2.02 2.99

5 Purchase of Fuel / Goods -

JSW Steel Limited - 1.64 |

JSW Paints Limited 0.03 =
6 Advertisement/Sponsorship/Branding

expense

JSW IP Holdings Private Limited 3.60 3.72
7 Reimbursement received from / (paid to)

{net}:

JSW Energy Limited (4.43) (3.83)

JSW Steel Limited (1.44) (1.42)

JSW Power Trading Company Limited (0.02) (0.02)

;uanvd!:)aele I'E:’('j—;i/(;atZOIr_\mTrust (Jindal Vidya Mandir and (0.58) (0.79)

JSW Reality Infrastructure Private Limited - (0.00)
8 | Donation/CSR Expenses

Jankalyan Electoral Trust - 5.00

JSW Foundation 3.00 1.17
9 Redemption of 13% non-convertible

debentures:

JSW Energy Limited - 384.50
10 | Investment Equity Share Capital

JSW Energy Limited (Purchase of equity ) 26.34

investment in JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited

JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited 385.28 42.52
11 | pebt Service Reserve Account Guarantee

JSW Energy Limited (14.46) 3
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(% crore)
: As at 31+t As at 315t
C | Closing Balances March, 2021 | March, 2020
1 | Trade (Pavables) / Receivables
JSW Energy Limited {(0.17) (1.70)
JSW Steel Limited (0.09) (0.32)
JSW 1P Holdings Private Limited (0.33) =
2 | Deposit With
JSW IP Holdings Private Limited 0.07 0.07
3 | Equity Share Capital
JSW Energy Limited 1,250.05 1,250.05
4 | Loan and Advances
JSW IP Holdings Private Limited - 0.02
JSW Global Business Solutions Limited 0.07
5 | Other receivable
' JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited - 0.11
6 | Equity Share Capital
JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited 454.15 68.86
D. The Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel During the year was as
follows:
(% crore)
Sl No Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
1 Short term benefits 1.76 1.74
2 Post —Employment benefits ~0.05 0.05
3 Sitting fees 0.04 0.13
Note:

i) No amounts in respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the
year, nor has any provision been made for doubtful debts / receivables during the year,
except as discussed above g

ii) Related party relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by
the Auditors

iii)Related party transactions have been disclosed on basis of value of transactions in
terms of the respective contracts.

iv)Terms and conditions of sales and purchases: the sales and purchases transactions
among the related parties are in the ordinary course of business based on normal
commercial terms, conditions, market rates and memorandum of understanding signed
with the related parties. For the year ended 31t March, 2020 & 31t March, 2021, the
Company has not recorded any loss allowances for transactions between the related
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(Formerly Known as Himachal Baspa Power Company Limited)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2021

Note 41. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on the
available information with the Company are as under:

(¥ crore)
Sl. [ Particulars As at 31 As at 31%¢ |
No. March, 2021 March, 2020
1 | principal amount outstanding to MSME* 341 0.55

2 | Principal amount due and remaining unpaid & *
3 | Interest due on (2) above and the unpaid = =
interest
4 | Interest paid on all delayed payments under the = =
MSMED Act.
5 | Payment made beyond the appointed day = ' =
during the vear
6 | Interest due and payable for the period of delay - =
other than (4) above
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid B -

8 | Amount of further interest remaining due and - -
payable in succeeding vears

*Amounts unpaid to MSM vendors on account of retention money have not been considered
for the purpose of interest calculation.

Note 42. Remuneration to Auditors (excluding GST)

(T crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
1 Services as statutory auditors 0.39 0.36
(including quarterly limited
reviews)
2 Tax Audit Fees 0.06 0.06
3 Certification Fees 0.01 0.01
4 Reimbursement of out of pocket 0.01 0.01
Expenses
Total 0.47 0.44
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Note 43. Project Status

The Group has awarded all the major works of 240 MW hydro power project at Kutehr,
Himachal Pradesh (“the project”) and the work is in progress. The carrying amounts
related to the project as at 31st March, 2021 comprise property, plant and equipment of ¥

13.00 crore, capital work in progress of ¥ 378.51 crore and capital advance of ¥ 138.29
crore.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

G&IOMW/VL " W/

Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Whole Time Director Chairman
[DIN:03620109] [DIN: 01281621}

e

Sanjeev Kango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of JSW Hydro Energy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSW Hydro Energy Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of
other comprehensive income, the cash flows statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit oplnion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 3
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our apinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matertal misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtsin an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial contrals with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made hy management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going cancemn basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, ts or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. ]
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

a.

As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of
cash flow and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the afaresaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed
as a directar in terms of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B” to this report.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements

of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule (11) of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its fing ion in its financial

statements —~ Refer Note 40 of the financial statements; q !

7 =\ 3o0f10 | P B
}, -\ \ 1Pag

S (N /&




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

(b)

©

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
saurces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, Including foreign
entity ("Intermediarles”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall,

« directly or indiractly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are either material either Individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from
any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or

s provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been consldered reasonable and appropriate on the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub-cluse (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and paid divided during the year.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vi

Vipul K Choksi

M. No. 37606

UDIN: 22037606AJGEQW6282

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2022
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APPENDIX A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of ISW Hydro Energy Limited of even date)

O]

(i)

(iii)

(@)

(b)

(@

(d

(e)

(a)

o))

(a)

(®

(A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment on the basis of available information.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a

phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the

nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the Company,

except for the following:

1. Description

i
Reason for not being

Gross Held in the | Whether Period held -
| of property carrying name of promaoter, indicate held in the name of |
value director or | range, the Company*
their where
| (Rs. In relative or | appropriate |
| Crore) employee
Bithal Land & | 22.28 Jaiprakash No From Title has been vested in
Building Power 01.09.2015 the name of company
Ventures through  Scheme of
Limited arrangement approved

by HP High Court.

Procedural regquirement
for change of name of

company in the
Government record is in
process,

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is
appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory by Management, as compared
to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.
During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and accordingly,
the question of our commenting on whether the quartery returns or statements are in agreement with
the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.

The Company has made investments in one company, not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, other parties, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, oth

The terms and conditions of the investment made are, in our opinio
Company's interest.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(c) The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of foan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3
(iii) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3
(iit) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company has not given loans/advances in nature of loan. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3
(iit) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f)  There were no loans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year to promoters/related
parties.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any

loans, or provided guarantees under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of

Sections 186 of the Act in respect of the investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or

amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to Section 76 of the

Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Act.

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the

Central Government for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of

the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however,

not required to make a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company examined by
us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, service tax, goads and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, wealth tax,
service tax, goods and service tax, income tax, duty of excise, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as follows:

e or e i [Rer e e A

Sttute. ['the Dues ]MW@_ : 0y B
The Income Tax Commissioners of
Act. 1961 Income tax 10.77 | A.Y. 2016-17 Income Tax (Appeals)

"Net of amounts paid under protest

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,

there is no Income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
to any lender.

(b)  According to the informatian and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way
of the term loans in the previous year have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose
for which it was raised.

(d) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Financial




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv}

(xvi)

{xvii)

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we repart
that the Company has not raised loans during the year an the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (x) (b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and recerds of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company, noticed or reparted during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generaily accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, a report under sub-clause (12) of Section 143 of the Act, in Form ADT-4, was not required to
be filed. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been
received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, reparting under cause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under

clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with refated parties in compliance with the provisions of Section

188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements

as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the

Act. Further, the Company is not reguired to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and,

accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3 (xili) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Theinternal audit of the Company is covered under the group internal audit pursuant to which an internal
audit is carried out every year. In cur apinion, the Company’s internal audit system is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected

with him. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d)  We have been informed by the management that as per the definition of Group under Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (CIC) which is
registered and three CICs which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India, forming
part of the promoter group. \_

i \ raceding financial

year,
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xviily  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause
(xviii) is not applicable to the Company.

(xIx)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer
Notes to the Financial Statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the

. date of the audit report that Company Is not capable of meeting Its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viabillty of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified In Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of
Order is not applicable for the year.

{xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxI) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Financlal Statements,
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been inctuded in this report.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vh

Vipul K Choksi 3\ €

M. No. 37606 | 12
UDIN: 22037606AIGEQW6282 \# <l
Place: Mumbai -'/ 4 4
Date: May 02, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 1ISW Hydro Energy Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errers, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reperting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control aver financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; = rovide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls aver financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financtal controls with reference to these financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting
Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

VEE

Vipul K Choksi
M. No. 37606
UDIN: 22037606AIGEQW6282
Place: Mumbal

Date: Date: May 02, 2022
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

{Z Crore )

Particulars Note No. N 0 —
March, 2022 March, 2021
T- “B _I\SSETS . N - N
1 |Non-furrant assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 5,598.73 5,969.48
{b) Capital work-In-piogress 5 1.05 23.03
{c) Other intangible assets 6 714,19 747.57
{d} Investments in subsidiary 104 454.15
(e) Financial assels
(i) Other financial assets 7 128,15 120.45
(f) Income tax assets {net) 7A 65.11 36.52
(g} Other non-current assets 8 S 1.05 BT
Total non - current asspis 6,508.28 7.37§._Ql
2 |Currént assets i
(a) Inventaries 9 13.03 11 66
{b) Financial assets
(i) Investrments 108 612.72 472.22
(i} Trade reccivables 11 69.28 51.26
{lit) Cash and cash equivalents 12a 13.93 109.94
(iv) Bank balances other than {iii} above 128 290.13 40.14
{v) Other financial assets 7 926.50 128.01
{c) Other current assets 8 1293 1270
Total current asseis "I 1,938,52 825.53
Total assets {1+2) 8,446.80 8,202.90
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
{3} Equity share capital 13 1,250.05 1,250.05
(b} Other equity 14 1,279.12 733.51
Total equity 2,529.17 1,988.56
Liabilities
2 |Non-current labilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(I} Borrowings 15 4,682.95 4,838.08
(i) Lease liabilities 15A 26.01 26,25
{iil) Other financial liabilities 16 70.05 425.97
(b} Provisions 17 6.84 6.98
Total non - current liabilitles 4,785.85 5,297.28
3 |Current liabilities
{a) Financial labiitles
(i) Borrowings 15 418.56 332.22
{if} Lease liabilities 15A 0.24 0.28
(iit) Trade payables
(3) Total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises 18 2.88 3.41
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 18 23,58 22.46
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 682.48 554.56
(b} Other current liabilitias 19 2.18 2.39
{c] Provisions 17 1.86 174
Total current labilities 1378 917.06 |
Total llabilitles 5,917.63 6,214.34 |
Total equity and liabllities (1+2+3) 8,446.80 8,202.90

See accompanying notes 10 the financlal statements

As per our attached report

For Shah Gupta & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registedtion Mo.: 103574W

oA
)///‘ 3

”(;}Li ¥ Chaksi
Fartner
1 No. 37606

¢ MUMBAL \
-LFRN 1 109574wW |

o

Place: Mumbai

Far and on behalf of Beard of Diractors

i 3 /( A‘A/ﬂz,‘« £

Gyan Bhadra Kumar
Whole Time Director
|DIN 03620109}

4

Prashant Jain
Chairman
[DIN: 01281621}

Sanjeev Kango
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

% L eowe oy e share data ond as stated otherwise

, For the year Ended For the year Ended
RAESE Noteibio: 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
| Revenue from operations 20 1,856.31 1,222,62
I Other income 21 56.08 - 38.85
1l Total income (I + I} 1,912.39 1;261.47
IV Expenses
{a) Employee benefits expense 22 6291 54.58
{b)  Finance costs 23 502.01 451.38
{c)  Depreclation and amortisation expenses 24 435.77 442,91
{d)  Other expenses 25 107.91 104.40
Total expenses 1,108.60 1,083.258
vV Profit before exceptional item and tax {IlI-IV) 803.79 208.22
V| Exceptional items
VIl Profit before tax {V - VI 803.79 208.22
Vilt Tax Expense 25
Current tax 141.05 59.22
Deferred tax (147.02) (38.14)
1X Deferred Tax (recoverable from)/adjustable in future tariff 147.02 38.14
141.05 59.22
X Profit for the year (VII-VIN) 662.74 148,00
Xt Other comprehenslve income (125.27) {0.08)
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plan {1.75) {0.12)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 031 0.04
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or lass {123.83)
(i) Income tax relating to items that willl be reclassified to profit or 31.17
loss
(iii) Deffered tax recoverable from / {adjustable in) future tariff (31.17) -
Xli  Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year { X + X1 ) 537.47 148.92
Xl Earnings per equity share of ® 10 each : 34
Baslc X 5.30 1.19
Diluted X 5.30: 1.19
See accompanying notes to the financizl statements
As per our attachad report
|For shah Gupta & Co For and on behalf of Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants
Firm Ragistratlon No.: 109574W y
L Combtedete ™/
W2 =
Vipul K Choksi g0 =X Gyan Bhadra Kumar Prashant Jain
Partner Whole Time Director Chairman
M No. 37606 {DIN: 03620109] (DIN: 01281621]
\.\ -: ‘ i
= ) "'\{\i-
Sanjeev Kango
Flace: Mumbai Company Secretary &
Date: 02 May,2022 Chief Financial Officer




Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2022

JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

8117

a. Equity share capital ( ¥ Crore )
Ba'ance at the 1st April, 2020 1,250.05 |
Changes In equity share capital during the Fy 2020-21 |
Balance at the 31st March, 2021 1,250.05
|Changes in equity share capital during the FY 2021-22 | -
Balance at the 31st March, 2022 1,250.05
b. Other equity ( € Crore )
Partitulars Reserves & surplus ftem of other Capltal Total
comprehensive | Contribution by
income ‘|parent company
Equity-settied Retalned Effective portian
employee earnings of cash flow
benefits reserve hedge reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 [ 072|  ssies | 1se1a 73851
Profit for the year 662.74 662.74
Recognition of Share based payment H 3.14 314
Other comprehensive tncome for the period, net of income tax (1.44) (123.83)| (125.27)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 3.86 1,242.95 {123.83) 156.14 ] 1,279.12
(® Crore)
Particulars Reserves & surplus Item of other Capital Total
comprehensive | Contribution by
Income parent company
Equlty-settled Retained Effective portion
employee earnings of cash flow
benefits reserve hedge
Balance at 1st Aprii, 2020 0.45 432.73 156.14 589.32
|Profit for the year 149.00 145.00
Recognitlon of Share based payment 0.27 0.27
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax {0.08) LS (0.08)
i Balance as at 31st March 2021 0.72 581.65 156.14 738.51

Sz accompanylng notes to the financlal statements

As per our attached report

For Shah Gupta & Co
Charterad Accountants

Firim Reglstration Mo, 109574W

s LT

Vipul K Choksl
Partner
M No. 37606

Plice: Mumbai
Date: 02 May, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gyan Bhadra Kumar
Whole Time Directar

[DIN: 03620109]

Gyordldfe @9 4

Prashant Jain
Chairman
[DIN: 01281621]

]
P
N

Sanjeev Ka'ngo
Company Secretary &

Chlef Financial Officer




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(X Crore )
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31;t_ !V!alﬂ'l, 2_021
"} |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES e — o 2 ' ) —
Proflt befare Tax 803.79 208.22
Adjusted far:
Depreciatisn and amortisation expense 435.77 442.91
interest income earried on fAinancial assets that are not designated as at FVTPL (31.70} 15.64)
Met Gain from current investments (21.83) {12.09)
Excess provision no longer required written back (18.00)
{Gain) / Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment ) {0.05) {0.05)
Share based payments 3.14 0.27
Finance costs 502.01 45136
Property ,Plant and equipment written off 1.07 5.11
88R.41 863.92

Operating profit before working capltal changes "~ 1,602.20 _1,072.14
Adjustment for movement In working capltal : g ==
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables (18.26) 152.95
Increase / {Decrease) in Trade payables & Other Liabilities (283 69) 260.87
Decrease / (Increase) in Current & non-current assets (742.87) 102.99
Decrease / {Increase) in inventories [(1.37) (0.20)

{1,051.19) 516.61
Cash generated from operations 641.01 1,588.75
Direct taxes paid (169.64) {61.69)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~anay  1,527.06

It |[CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP and capital advances {10.70) (42.91)
Investment made in Mutual Fund {142.39)
Investment made in Equity share capital of subsidiary 454.15 (385.28)
Bank deposlts other than cash and cash equivalent {249.97) {6.30)
Interest received 31.70 5.64
Met Gain from current investments 21,83 12.04
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 104.62 e {416.81)
It |[CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings Taken / (Repaid) (297.21) (258.24)
Payment of Lease liabilities {0.50} (1.44)
Finance costs paid (376.18) (472.73)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {673.89)  {732.41)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (i+11+111) (97.90) 377.84
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the beglnning of the Year 582.16 204.32
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - At the end of Year 484.26 582.16
1) Balances with Banks 13.92 109.92
2} Cash an hand 0.01 0.02
3) Investments in mutual funds 470.33 472,22
Total 484.26 582,16
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Note:

The Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounling standard (Ind AS 7} Statement of cash flows.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 1: General information

a) JSW Hydro Energy Limited is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act applicable in India is wholly owned subsidiary of ISW Neo Energy Limited and is a step down subsidiary
of JSW Energy limited. ( in the FY 2020-21 JSW Hydro energy limited was wholly owned subsidary of ISW energy
Limited).The registered office of the Company is located at Sholtu Colony, P.O. Tapri, Dist. Kinnaur, 172104 (HP).

b) The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation and sale of power.

¢) The company has continued its operations during lockdown due to outbreak of COVID-19 as the electricity generation
is considered as one of the essential services by the Government. The Company's substantial generation capacities are tied
up under long term power purchase agreements, which insulates revenue of the company under such contracts. The
notices of applying force majeure clause under the power supply agreements from some of the customers have been
appropriately responded under legal advice that the prevailing situation is outside the ambit of force majeure clause. This
position is further supported by clarification from Ministry of Power that the DISCOMs will have to comply with obligation
to pay fixed capacity charges as per the power purchase agreement. Based on initial assessment, the Management does
not expect any medium to long-term impact on the business of the Company. The Company has evaluated the possible
effects on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventory, loans, receivables and debt covenants basis
the internal and external sources of information and determined, exercising reasonable estimates and judgements, that the
carrying amounts of these assets are recoverable. Having regard to above, and the company’s liquidity position, there is no
uncertainty in meeting financial obligations over the foreseeable future.

Note 2.1: Statement of compliance

a) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian accounting standards (referred to as
“Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Company Act, 2013 read with the Companies (India Accounting Standards)
rules as amended from time to time.

b) The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 2nd May, 2022

Note No. 2.1 - Recent accounting pronouncements:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards / amendments under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued fram time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.:

(a) Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022.

(b) Ind AS 37 | Provisions, cantingent liabilities and contingent assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is
permitted.

{c) Ind AS 103 | Business combinations — The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

(d) Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10%’
test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between
the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the
other’s behalf.

The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendments.

——
—




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 3: Significant accounting policies
3.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements:

a) In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is required to prepare
its Financial Statements as per the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS‘) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 with effect from 1st April, 2016. Accordingly, the Company
has prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March,
2022, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter
referred to as " Financial Statements®).

b) The Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) on the accrual basis of accounting and histarical cost convention except for certain material
items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS and explained in the ensuing policies
below.

c) The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are rounded to the nearest crore,
except otherwise indicated.
d)  Current and non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet passed an current / non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:

it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle,
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traced:

it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date: or

it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the followings criteria:

it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle:
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traced.

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date ;or the Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Term of a liability that could, at
the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

3.2 Use of estimates & judgements

a) The preparation of the Financial Statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition,
measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the Financial Statements is made relying on these
estimates.

b) The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the Financial Statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reascnable under the existing circumstances. Actuail
results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and
future periods. The critical accounting judgements and key estimates followed by the Company for preparation of
Financial Statements is described in note 27.



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

a) The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying
assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in
which the costs are incurred.

b) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property,

plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

a) Assefs in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under canstruction account. At the point when an
asset is operating at management's intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

b) Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumnulated impairment losses, if
any. Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.

3.4 Other Intangible assets

a) Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

b) Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as Intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

c) An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no further economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gain / (loss) on de-recognition are recognized in profit or loss.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.5 Depreciation and Amortisation

a) Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values as per the provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the
useful life,rate and residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff regufation 2014.

b) Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

c) Assets held under Service concession arrangement are amortised over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

d) Post 100% tie up of Karcham Wangtoo HEP from 1st April,2018 with state discoms, the company provided depreciation on
tangible assets as per the provisions of Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the rates, useful life and
residual value notified for accounting purposes by CERC Tariff regulation 2014. Earlier company was providing depreciation
based on technical evaluation of useful life and residual value as per the provision of part A of schedule II of the Companies’
Act 2013.

e) Depreciation is being calculated annually based on straight line method and at rates specified below which are as per CERC

Tariff regulation 2014. Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 31% March of the year closing after a period of
twelve years from the effective date of commercial operation of the station shall be spread over the balance useful life of the
assets.

Rate of depreciation are given below

. Depreciation rate
Particulars (pPer Annum)
Plant & Machinery 5.28%

Lease hold Land 3.34%
Buildings 3.34%
Furniture’s & Fixtures 6.33%
Vehicles 9.50%
Office Equipment’s 6.33%
Computer & Software 15.00%

3.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

a) At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverabie amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allacation basis can be identified.

b) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

c) Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

d) If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

e) When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

- ——



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.7 Borrowing costs

a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

b) All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

c) The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs
incurred on that borrowing during the pericd less any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for
obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for caplitalisation are determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that asset.

The Company suspends capitalisation of borrowing costs during extended periods in which it suspends active
development of a qualifying asset.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.9 Revenue recognition
Sale of Power

The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with customers for supply of power generated from power
plants including from allocating the capacity of the plant under the long term power purchase agreements, from sale
of power on merchant basis including under short term contracts.

Revenue from capacity charges (other than from contracts classified as lease) under the long term power supply
agreements is recognised over a perioq of time as the capacity of the plant is made available under the terms of the
contracts.Electricity charges are recognised on supply of power under such power supply agreements. Revenue from
sale of power on merchant basis is recognised when power is supplied to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest or Surcharge on delayed payments on overdue trade receivables is recognised when significant certainty as
to measurability or realisibility exists.

3.10 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiary is determined on the basis of the primary economic
envircnment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR).

In preparing the Financial Statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencles are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or lass in the period in which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive  use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

- exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency. risks.

e



JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.11 Employee benefits

The Company has following post-employment plans:
a) Defined-benefit plan - gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of
defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries through actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss:

s service cost comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine
settlements

« net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from

(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling

(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling are recognised in the period in which they
occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation
and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in
conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of
different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other
comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions,

b) Defined-contribution plan - provident fund

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does
not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions
to the employees’ provident fund set up as trust or Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and certain state plans like
Employees’ State Insurance. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as expenses
during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

C) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short Term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the emplayees render the services.

Long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are not expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability as at the Balance Sheet date on
the basis of actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

3.12 Share-based payment arrangements

a) Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

b) The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of £quity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

A DY ——
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.13 Taxation

i) Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from *profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductibie in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’'s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

b) Deferred tax

(i) Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary,and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Caompany is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets relate to the same taxable entity and same taxation authority.

ii) Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT
credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of
profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay
normal income-tax during the specified period.

iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recagnised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense or income (net of

any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on the canversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to
be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they
have been issued at a later date.

3.15 Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows {(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

{b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

(i) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets,

Pravisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

3.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Investment in subsidiaries:

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries at cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss ,are adjusted to the fair value on
initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition):

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign
exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair
value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of ‘Reserve for debt instrurmnents through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where approptiate, a
shorter period, to the net carrving amount on initial recoanition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On nitial recognition, the Company can make an Irrevocable election (on an Instrument-by-instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instruments.

This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for
equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; ar
- on initial recognition it Is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity

instruments which are not held for trading.
Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL,

In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL,

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the *Other income’ line item. Dividend on
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
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Impairment of financizl assets

a) The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured
at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an
entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate, This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after
considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward-looking.

b) The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component
and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected
cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

¢) Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on the lifetime ECL at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfalio of trade receivables.

d) The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

e) For financial assets other than trade receivahbles, the Company recognises 12-month expected credit losses for all
originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition, The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if
the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in @ subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The
impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity instruments and financial
assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets

a) The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

b) On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

¢) On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of
that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.
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3.17 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classiflcation as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by an entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities:

All Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method or fair value through profit and loss.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by
the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting
policies set out below.

Derivative financial instruments:

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as option foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The

resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the \Statement of Profit and Loss depends
on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

The contracts to buy or sell a nan-financial item that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of a nonfinancial item in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are
not considered as derivative instruments.

Cash flow hedges:

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as
described above are reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains or losses are transferred from equity (but not as a
reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the nonfinancial asset or non-financial
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Segment reporting:

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision making body in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allacation.The
reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance
assessment and resource allocation to the segments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the
Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and
has a rggent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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- A financial llability cther than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the Company
as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise;

- the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined
contract to be designhated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes In the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in aother comprehensive income are
reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the
Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that farm an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor)
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initia! recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets,
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting peried
following the change in the business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

.
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The following table shows various reclassifications and the how they are accounted for:

Original Classification Revised Classification Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recagnised in statement of profit and
loss.

Amortised cost FVTPL

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVPTL Amortised cost new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

Amortised cost FVTQCI

Fair value at reclassification date becames its
new gross carrying amount. However, cumulative
FVTOCI Amortised cost gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had
always been measured at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
FVTPL FVTOCI new gross carrying amount. No other adjustment
is required.

Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified to statement of profit and loss
at the reclassification date.

FCTOCI FVTPL

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained below.

Financial assets/ financial liabilities

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or|
Level 1 il

liabilities

Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
Level 2 . i e

fair Value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Valuation Technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
Level 3 ] .

fair Value measurement is unobservable.
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3.18 Leases

a) As perrequirement of Ind AS 116 company defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to
use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration

b) Accounting for arrangements that contains Finance lease

As per Ind AS 116 company using a single lessee accounting model which requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Lease liability is initially recognised and measured at an amount equal to the present
value of minimum lease payments during the lease term. Right of use asset is recognised and measured at cost, consisting
of initial measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement date
iess any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred. The company
has made election for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on lease-by-lease basis.

c) The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease
or at the entity's incremental borrowing rate).For the purpose of impairment testing the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher
of the fair value less cost to sale and the value in use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the assets does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of does from other assets. In such cases, the cit in the lease or at the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate).For the purpose of impairment testing the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sale and the value in use) is determined on an individual assets basis unless the assets does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of does from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the assets belongs.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components in
the contract, unless it is practically expedient to do so.

All leases other than finance lease is operating Lease. Lease payments under an operating lease is generally recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised
in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

The company has exposure to leases which have not yet commenced contractually but to which company is committed and
is making provision for rentals.
3.19 Service concession arrangements

Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession Arrangements (revenue from contract with customer) applies to
public-to-private service concession arrangements if:

a) the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price; AND

b) the grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise—any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement; AND

c) Is the infrastructure constructed or acquired by the operator from a third party for the purpose of the service
arrangement OR is the infrastructure existing infrastructure of the grantor to which the operator is. given access for the
purpose of the service arrangement?

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole of life assets) is
within the scope of this Appendix if the conditions in ‘a’) above are met.

These arrangements are accounted on the basis of below mentioned models depending on the nature of consideration and
relevant contract law.
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Financial asset model:

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. Unconditional contractual
right is established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

(a) specific or determinable amount;
(b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public services and specified or determinable
amounts.

Intanaible asset modal:

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the company, being an operator, receives a right (a license) to charge
users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public services is not an unconditional right to receive cash because
the amounts are contingent on to the extent that public uses the services. Both type of arrangements may exist within a
single cantract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment for the construction and the
operation i.e. considered as a Financial asset and to the extent that the operator has to rely on the public using the service
in order to obtain payment, the operation has an intangible asset. If the Company (being an operator) performs more than
one service (i.e., construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered, when the
amounts are separately identifiable.

The Company manages concession arrangements which include power supply from one of its hydre power plant. The
Company maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. These concession arrangements set out
rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be provided.

The right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and financial receivable and accordingly, both the intangible asset
and financial receivable models are applied.

Income from the concession arrangements earmed under the intangible asset model consists of the (i) Fair Value of the
contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair value of consideration transferred to acquire the asset; and (ii) payments
actually received from the users. The intangible asset is amortized over its expected useful life in a way that reflects the
pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Company, starting from the date when the right to
operate starts to be used. Based on these principles, the intangible asset is amortized in line with the actual usage of the
specific public facility, with a maximum of the duration of the concession.

Financial receivable is recorded at a fair value of guaranteed residual value to be received at the end of the concessian
periad. This receivable is subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the financial asset expire.

3.20 Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Inventories of stores, spare parts, fuel and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable
value. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Nate 4. Praperty, plant & equipment {Z crore)
Land - Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and| Vehicles Right of Use Total
Description of Assets Freehold Equipment Equipment Fixtures Assets

|. Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 77.40 35.01 7,544.41 5.59 131 385 3435 7,701 92

Additions - 2383 6.01 0.62 0.06 0.94 3156

Disposals/Discard > = {0.15) (0 00} (0.01) - {0.16)

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 77.40 58.94 7,550.42 6.06 137 4.78 34.35 7,733.32

Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the

year 2020-21

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 . 5.19 1,718 36 3.85 0.36 1.87 2.82 1,732.45

Depreciation expense for the year - 1.64 398.54 0.28 0.08 0.35 141 402.30

Eliminated on Disposals/discards - - 10.15) (0.00) (0.01) {0.16)

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 6.83 2,116.90 3.98 0.44 221 4.23 2,134.59

Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2022 {i-l) 77.40 5211 5,433.52 2.08 0.93 2,57 30,12 5,598.73

{ T Crore )
L Land - Buildings Plant and Office Furniture and| Vehicles | Right of Use Totai
B ptlonloiisels Freehold Equipment | Equipment Fixtures Assets

|. Grass carrying value

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 7740 3373 7,510.72 4.94 127 3.50 34.35 7,665.91

Additions - 199 33.69 0.65 0.04 0.36 36.73

Disposals/Discard {0.71) - (0.01) (0.72)

Balance as at 315t March, 2021 77.40 35.01 7,544.41 5.58 131 3.85 34.35 7,701.92

. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the

year 2019-20

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - 417 1,312,09 3.57 0.28 1.55 141 1,323.07

Depreciation expense for the year - 111 406.27 0.28 0.08 0.31 1.41 409.46

Eliminated on Disposals/discards - (0.09) - - - {0.00)} . {0.09)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 - 5.19 1,718,36 3.85 0.36 186 2.82 1,732.45
INet carrying value as at 31st March, 2021 (I-1) 77.40 29.82 5,826.05 1.74 0.95 1.99 31.53 5,969.48

Note:

a) Refer note 15 for the details in respect of certain property, plant and equipment hypothecated/mortgaged as security against barrowing

b) The right-of-use assets related to land refer to Note 37

Details of immovable properties of which title deeds not in the name of the company:

Gross Title deeds | Share of the |Whether title deed holderis| Property Reason for not being held in
Carrying held inthe | Group in the a promoter, director or held since the name of the company
L value name of | property (%) relative of promoter / which date
Descliptichchithe propezty {X crore) director or employee of
promoter / director
Bithal Land & Building 22.28 | Jaiprakash 100% NA 01 Sep,2015 |Tite has been vested in the
Power name of company through
Ventures Scheme of arrangement
Limited2 approved by HP High Court.

Procedural requirement for
change of name of company in
the Governement record is in
process.
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Note 5. Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress & pre operative expenditure during construction period {pending allocation) relating to property, plant & equipment

( T crore)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 23.03
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1.05
Footnote:
1) Amount transferred to property plant and equipment during the year ¥ 23.03 crore (for the year ended 31st March, 2021:
X 2.67 Crore)
2) No project temporarily suspended as on 31st March, 2022.
Capital work in progress ageing & schedule ( ¥ crore)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31st March, 2022 Total
<1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress 1.05 - - o 1.05
Total 1.05 - - 1.05
Capital work in progress for projects whose compeletion is overdue
As at 31st March, 2022 Tobe completadin Total
AELEXEBIIC T < 1lyear 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years ata
Projects ‘ X - = 5
Total - - - - -
Capital work in progress ageing & schedule
Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31st March, 2021 Total
<1year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects in progress 6.76 9.90 4.41 1.96 23.03
Total 6.76 9.90 4.41 1.96 23.03
Capital work in progress for projects whose compeletion is overdue
To be completed in
As at 31st March, 2021 Total
<1vyear 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
Projects 21.32 - 21.32
Total 21.32 - - - 21.32




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 6. Intangible assets (¥ Crore )
Service Concession
Description of Assets Computer Software Arrangement Total
Intangibles

At Cost/deemed cost

l. Gross Carrying Value

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 1.42 931.95 933.37

Disposals or classified as held for sale - {1.30) (1.30)

Additions 0.14 1.03 1.17

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1.56 931.68 933.24

I1. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year

2020-21

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.61 185.19 185.80

Amortisation expense for the year 0.20 33.27 33.47

Eliminated on disposal of assets - {0.22) (0.22)

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 0.81 218.24 219.05

Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2022 {I-It) 0.75 713.44 714.19
(T Crore)

Service Concessian
Description of Assets Computer Software Arrangement Total
Intangibles

At Cost/deemed cost

i. Gross Carrying Value

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 1.42 935.82 937.24

Disposals or classified as held for sale (5.07) {5.07)

Additions 1.20 1.20

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 1.42 931.95 933,37

1l. Accumulated amortisation and impairment for the year

2020-21

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 042 152.48 152.30

Amortisation expense for the year 0.19 33.26 33.45

Eliminated on disposal of assets {0.55) (0.55)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 0.61 185.19 185.80

Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2021 (I-11} 0.81 746.76 747.57

*Refer Note 32 for Service concession arrangement

W,
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022
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Note 7. Other financial assets { ¥ Crore )
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
{a) Service concession receivable* 58.42 61.41 119.83 51.53 119.83 171.36
(b) Security Depasits
- Unsecured, considered good
-Government/Semi-Government Authorities 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
-Others - 0.09 0.09 0.08 0.08
= 0.61 0.61 - 0.60 0.60
{c) Revenue receivable
- Unbilled revenue 77.87 - 77.87 75.51 75.51
-Other Receivable 0.10 0.10 - -
- Interest accrued on deposits 0.78 - 0.78 0.97 = 0.97
78.75 - 78.75 76.48 - 76.48
(d) Bank deposits with Original maturity
more than Twelve Months ] = 0.02 0.02
- - 0.02 0.02
{e ) Other Receivable
-Receivabie from JSW Neo Energy Limited 789.33 - 789.33 - - -
789.33 789.33
(f) Derivative Designated as hedges
-Foreign Currency Optlions - 66.13 66.13 .
Total 926.50 128.15 1,054.65 128.01 120.45 248.46

*Refer Note 32




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 7A. Income Tax Assets (net) (X crore )
. As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Advance Tax and tax deducted at sources - 65.11 - 36.52
(Net of provision for Tax)
65.11 - 36.52




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 8. Other non-current and current assets

840

(¥ crore)

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021

Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
{a) Capital Advances - 0.96 0.96 0.43 0.43
(b} Prepayments 10.59 0.09 10.68 10.05 0.34 10.39
{c) Deposit with Government/Semi Government* - - = 25.00 25.00
(d) Balances with Governement Authority 0.05 - 0.05 0.10 : 0.10
(e) Advances to Vendors 2.29 2.29 255 = 2.55
Total 12.93 1.05 13.98 12.70 25.77 38.47
*Refer Note 40
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 9. Inventories (X Crare)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2022 2021
(a)  Stores and spares 12.92 11.54
(b) Inventory Medicine 0.11 0.12
Total 13.03 11.66
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2022 2021
{a) Storesand spares 17.19 20.83
(b) Others 0.68 0.49
Total 17.87 21.32

Basis of valuation: Refer note 3.20 (Inventories)

Refer Note 15 for Inventories hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings.
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Note 10A. Investment in equity { T crore))
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars Current Nen- Current Total Current | Non- Current Total
Investment in equity instruments *
{i) ISW Energy (Kutehr ) Limited - - 454.15 454.15
Total - - - 454,15 454.15
* During the year ended 31st March 2022, the carrying value of investment of Rs, 789.33 crore in JSW Energy (Kutehr) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has been transferred, at cost, to JSW Neo Energy Limited, a fellow subsidiary.
Note 108. Other Investment {X Crore }
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss
Investment in mutual funds**
i) Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund - Growth 106.87 - 106.87 272.10 272.10
i} Aditya Birla Sunlife Floating rate Fund - Growth 81.49 81.49
jii) Aditya Birla Saving Fund - Growth 55.38 55.38
iv) SBi floating DEBT fund Regular Growth 60.90 60.90 - . -
v} SBI premier Liquid Fund- Regular - Growth 245.65 245.65 200.12 - 200.12
vi} ICICI prudential Ligied Fund - Growth 62.43 62.43 - - -
Total 612.72 - 612,722 472,22 - 472.22

**Rs. 142.39 Crore of investments has been earmarked towards a True Up Reserve account as on 31st March,22
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 11. Trade receivables { T crore)
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars Current | Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
(i} Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 69.28 - 69.28 48.99 - 48.99
(i) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured - - 227 2.27
69.28 - 69.28 51.26 = 51.26
Total 69.28 - 69.28 51.26 = 51.26
Ageing of Trade Receivables {X Crore )
Undisputed Trade Disputed Trade
e B receivables Receivables
LSRRI I Considered | Considered | Considered | Considered
good doubtful good doubtful
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 26.89 = & _
6 months-1 year 8.33 - -
1-2 years 14.86 - 191 -
2-3 years - 11.61 -
More than 3 years - - 5.68 -
Total 50.08 - 19.20 -
( 2 crore )
Undisputed Trade Disputed Trade

As at 31st March, 2021

receivables

Receivables

Considered | Considered | Considered | Considered

good doubtful good doubtful
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 30.97 = < =
6 months-1 year 0.98 = 191 =
1-2 years 011 - 11.61 -
2-3 years = - 4.56 =
More than3 years - - 112 ~
Total 32.06 - 19.20 -

The Credit period allowed to customers is 60 days in Karcham plant and 30 days in Baspa Plant and Interest rate is 15% and 15.15%(SBI PLR @ 12.15%+3%)
Karcham & Baspa respectively per annum as per term of agreement.

Refer Note 15 for trade receivables hypothecated as security for borrowings.
Refer Note 31 {Trade receivable) for credit terms, ageing analysis and other relevant details related to trade receivables.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (¥ Crore)
Particul As at 31st As at 31st
eulars March, 2022 || March, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks
(i} With scheduled banks
-In Current accounts 11.93 109.92
In Deposit accounts with maturity less than 3 months at inception 1.99 -
{b) Cash on hand 0.01 0.02
Total 13.93 109.94
Note 12B. Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents (T Crore )
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2022 March, 2021
111
Bank balances other than above
(a) Balances with banks
-In deposit accounts (maturity more than 3 months at Inception) 19.63 40.14
(b) Earmarked balances with banks
-Margin money for Security 270.50 -
Total 290.13 I 40.14




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 13. Equity share capital

Particulars

(T crore )
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised:
Equity shares of X 10 each with voting rights

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
Equity shares of X 10 each with voting rights

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 | 1,250.05

1,250,050,000 1,250.05

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of year:

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

1,250,050,000

b} Terms & Rights attached to equity shares :

(1) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.

(i) In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to recelve the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amount, in proportion to the shareholding. However, no such preferential amount exists currently.

¢) Details of shareholding more than §% shares in the company are set out below :

As at 31st March, 2022

As at 31st March, 2021

Particulars
No. of Shares No. of Shares

1 JSW Neo Energy Limited & its nominees 1,250,050,000 =
2 JSW Energy Limited & its nominees = 1,250,050,000
100% 100%

d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year :
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Name of Promoters
No. of shares reneel No. of shares & ojgtel

shares shares

1 JSW Neo Energy Limited & its nominees 1,250,050,000 100% =3 =
2 JSW Energy Limited & its nominees - = 1,250,050,000 100%
Tatal 1,250,050,000 100% 1,250,050,000 100%




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 14, Other Equity (I crore)
particula As at 31st As at 31st
ik March, 2022 March, 2021

Equity-settled employee benefits reserve 3.86 0.72
Retained earnings 1,242.95 581.65
Effective partion of cash flow hedge (123.83) -
Capital contribution by parent company 156.14 156.14
Total comprehensive income 1,279.12 738.51
Notes:

(1) Retained earning
Retained earning comprise balance of accumulated {undistributed) profit and loss at each year end.

(2) Equity -settled employee benefit reserve

The Company offers ESOP under which options to subscribe for the Company's share have been granted to each employee and senior
management. The share based payment reserve to used to recagnise the value of equity settled share based payments provided as part of
the ESOP scheme.

3) Effective portion of cash fiow hedge

Effective portion of cash flow hedge : Effective portion of cash flow hedges represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses
arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges, which shall be reclassified to profit or loss only
when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 15, Borrowings (¥ Crore )
Particul As at 31st As at 31st
e March, 2022 March, 2021
Nan- Current
Borrowings at amortised cost
Secured Borrowings:
i) Grean Band 4,743.21
ii) Term loans
From Banks - 4,865.40
Less: Unamortised borrowing cost 60.26 27.32
4,682.95 4,838.08
Current
Secured Borrowings :
i) Green Bond 428.76
i) Short Term loans
From Banks 306.74
From Banks (WCTR) - 30.00
Less: Unamortised barrowing cost 10.20 4.52
418.56 332,22
Totai 5,101.51 5,170.30
Reconciliation of the borrowings outstanding at the beginning and end of the year: (¥ Crare )
Particul As at 31st As at 31st
FAENETE March, 2022 March, 2021
I. Nan-current borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt)
|Balance as at the begininning of the year 5,140.30 5,423.75
Cazh flows (repayment )/proceads (189.97) (288.24)
Nen- Cash Changes:
Foreign Exchange Movement 189.81 .
Amortised borrowings cost {38.63) 479
Balance as at the end of the year 5,101.51 5,140.30
Balance as at the begininning of the year 30.00 -
Cash Flows [repayment)/ proceads {30.00) 30.00
|Balance as at the end of the year - 30.00

Details of Security :

Green Bond at the year ended 31st March, 2022

Green Bond aggregating to X 4,791.58 outstanding as on 31st March, 2022 are secured by pledgeing of 51% share of the company
and with negative lein for balance 49% and also on a pari passu basis by first ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on immovable
property and first ranking charge by way of hypothecation of movable assets of Karcham-Wangtoo HEP (both present and future)
situated at Kinnaur Dist,, Himachal Pradesh.

Green Bond aggregating to X 380.40 outstanding as on 31st March, 2022 are secured by pledging of 51% share of the company and
with negative lein for balance 49% and also on a pari passu basis by first charge on immovable and movable assets of Baspa Il HEP
{bath present and future) project of the Company situated at Kinnaur Dist., Himachal Pradesh.

Term Loan at the year ended 31st March, 2021

Rupee term loan aggregating to X 4,789.78 as on 31st March, 2021 are secured on a pari passu basis By first ranking charge by way
of legal mortgage on immovable property and first ranking charge by way of hypothecation of movable assets of Karcham-Wangtoo
HEP (both present and future) situated at Kinnaur Dist., Himachal Pradesh.

Rupee term loan aggregating to X 382.36 outstanding as on 31st March, 2021 are secured on a pari passu basis by first charge on
immovable and movable assets of Baspa Il HEP {both present and future) project of the Company situated at Kinnaur Dist., Himachal
Pradesh.

Short term loan (WCDL) aggregating to Rs.30.00 crore outstanding as on 31st March, 2021 is secured by way of pari-passu first
ranking charge on all movable and immovable assets of the company.

Issuance of Green Bond ;

The Company has raised % 5,162.87 crore {USS 707 million] on 18th May, 2027, by issuing of USS denominated senior secured
"Green Bonds" (also referred as the notes) pursuant to Rule 144A of the 47 .Secﬁffﬁgi}e ;"4:\ 1933, as amended, and applicable
Indizn ryggul-‘itions, for the repayment of its existing green project related 4] er-0m|-1ét§-’du"¢.1&btedness The notes are listed on
the Singaper ¢ Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) i =

Ctreing

i fi:q:u_-.«'t\-u_}r 2021-22 the Company has prepaid its existing sropet 14
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 15A. Lease liabilities {X Crore)
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total
Lease liabilities* 0.24 26.01 26.25 0.28 26.25 26.53
Total 0.24 26.01 26.25 0.28 26.25 26.53

*Refer to Note no. 37
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 16. Other financial liabilities ( T crore)
Particul As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
e 3 2022 2021
Non- Current
{a) Deposits recejved 0.02 0.02
(b}  Other payable 70.03 425.95
70.05 425.97
Current
(a) Interestaccrued but not due on borrowings 78.82 21.76
(b)  Payable for capital supplies/services 35.43 33.08
(c)  Other payable 568.23 489,72
682.48 554.56
752,53 980.53




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 17. Provisions ( T crore )
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current | Non- Current | Total Current | Non- Current Total

Provision for employee benefits*
(i) Provision for gratuity 134 2.45 3.79 117 3.47 4.64
(i)  Provision for compensated absence 0.52 4.39 491 0.57 3,51 4.08
Total 1.86 6.84 8.70 1.74 6.98 8.72

* Refer Note No 35 (Employee benefit plans)
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 18. Trade payables (T crore)
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Current Non- Current Total Current Non- Current Total
Trade Payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 2.88 - 2.88 3.41 - 3.41
enterprises
(b) Totat outstanding dues of creditors other 23.58 - 23.58 22.46 - 22.46
than micro and small enterprises
Total 26.46 - 26.46 25.87 = 25.87
Creditors Ageing (X Crore)
As at Undisputed Disputed
31st March, 2022 MSME Others MSME Others
Outstanding for following periads from due date of payment
Less thanl year 2.88 2.35 -
1-2 years . 1.59 = -
2-3 years - 1.58
More than3 years - 1.87 - -
Not due 6.40 - -
Unbilled 9.79 - -
Total 2.88 23.58 - -
(X Crore )
As at Undisputed Disputed
31st March, 2021 MSME Others MSME Others
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 341 6.87 = -
1-2 years - 291 - -
2-3 years - 0.35 = -
More than3 years - 1.68 - -
Not due - 3.67 - -
Unbilled - 6.98 = -
Total 3.41 22.46 - .

-Trade payables are normally settled within 30 days.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 19, Other current liabilities (T crore)
Particulars e ekt
March, 2022 March, 2021
(a) Advance received from customers 0.46 1.04
(b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions 0.58 0.52
(c) Statutory dues 107 0.83
(d) Others 0.07 =
Total 2,18 2.39
A
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 20. Revenue from operations { T crore )

For the year Ended
31st March, 2021

For the year Ended

Particulars 31st March, 2022

Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers:

(1)  Sale of power (Own generation) 1,812.35 1,197.83
Total revenue from contract with customers (A) 1,812.35 1,197.83
(2)  Income from service concession arrangement 18.71 2479
Income from service concession arrangement (B) 18.71 24.79

(3}  Other Operating Income (C) 25.25 -
Total (A) + (B) + (C) 1,856.31 1,222.62

Impact of Trueup & tariff Order dated 17th March,2022:

During the year ended 31st March, 2022 the Company has recognised revenue of Rs 665.35 crore by writing back truing up payable
pursuant to an order of Central Electricity Regulatory Commission for truing up the tariff for the control period FY 2014-19 and for
determination of tariff for the control period FY 2019-24 for Karcham Wangtoo hydro plant.

Details of revenue from conracts with customers

- For the year Ended For the year Ended
S 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Total Revenue from contract with customers as above* 1,812.35 1,197.83
Add: Rebate on prompt payment 2436 21.44
Less: Incentive 118.20 94.23
Total Revenue from contract with customers as per contracted price 1,718.51 1,125.04

*The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with customers for supply of power generated from power plants including from
allocating the capacity of the plant under the long term power purchase agreements (from sale of power on merchant basis including under
short term contracts.)

Revenue from capacity charges (other than from contracts classified as lease and service concession arrangements) under the long term
power supply agreements is recognised over a period of time as the capacity of the plant is made available under the terms of the
contracts.Electricity charges are recognised on supply of power under such power supply agreements. Revenue from sale of power on

merchant basis is recognised when power is supplied to the customers.

Significant changes in the contract liability balance during the year are as follows:

For the year Ended For the year Ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening Balance 1.04 -
Less: Revenue recognised during the year from balance at the beginning of the year 1.04 =
Add: Advance received during the year not recognized as revenue 0.46 1.04
Closing Balance 0.46 1.04




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 21. Other income ( T crore )
. For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2022 || 31st March, 2021
a) Interest Income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at FVTPL
i On Bank deposits 1.98 218
i Other Financial Assets 29.71 3.46
b) Other non-operating income
i Net Gain on sale of current investments designated as at FVTPL 21.83 12.04
ii Net Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.05 0.05
iii  Net gain on foreign currency transaction 0.04
V' Domestic Scrap Sales 1.35 0.17
vV Provision no longer required written back 18.00
vi Miscellaneous income 112 2.95
Total 56.08 38.85
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

859

Note 22. Employee benefits expense (¥ crore)
. For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
{(a) Salaries and wages 49.38 48.28
{b) Contribution to provident and other funds* 4.78 331
{c} Share based payment ** 3.14 0.27
{d) Staff welfare expenses 5.61 2,72
Total 62.91 54.58

* Refer note 35 { Employee benefit plans) for the details of defined benefit plan and defined contribution

plan of the Company.

** Refer note 36 (Employee share base payment plan )for the details of share base payment
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 23. Finance costs ( T crore)
For the year Ended || For the year Ended
faiticulars 31st March, 2022 || 31st March, 2021
(a) Interest expense
i Interest on foreign currency loan 193.16
ii Hedging charges 143.40 -
iii  Interest on Term Loan 54,83 440.80
iv  Interest cash credit 0.04 0.08
v  Other Interest Expense 3.48 -
{b)  Revaluation gain/loss on foreign currency borrowings (Net) 0.66
(c)  Other borrowing costs* 104.06 8.08
(d) Interest on lease liabilities 2.38 2.40
Total 502.01 451.36

*Includes one time expenses of the pre-payment charges and write off of unamortized other borrowing costs, relating to
the prepaid rupee denominated loans aggregating to X 91.94 crore.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 24. Depreciation and amortisation expense (¥ Crore)

For the year Ended For the year Ended

TR 31stMarch, 2022 || 31stMarch, 2021

(a)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 402.30 409.46
{b) Amortization on Intangible assets 33.47 33.45
435.77 442,91

Total




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 25. Other expenses (T Crore)
For the year Ended || For the year Ended
Rattichlars 31st March, 2022 || 31st March, 2021

(a) Stores and spares consumed 17.19 20.83
(b) Power & Water 3.64 454
(c) Rentincluding lease rentals 2.08 2.06
(d} Repairs and maintenance 39.11 30.83
{e) Rovyalty 0.10 0.06
(f) Rates and taxes 1.80 0.44
(g) Insurance 20.31 20.57
(h) Netloss / (gain) on foreigh currency transactions net off ) ** - 0.00
(i} Legal and other professional charges 4.66 4.47
(i) Travelling Expenses 1.16 0.65
(k) Donation - 0.05
() Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses* 2.50 3.00
(m) Open Access Charges 0.13 0.06
(n) Other General Expenses 7.56 4.90
(o) Safety and Security 1.36 1.21
(p) Branding Expenses 3.03 3.60
(q) Shared Service Charges 221 2.02
(r) Property,Plant and equipment written off 1.07 5.11

Total 107.91 104.40

* Refer note 38 {Details of Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) expenditure
** Less than Rs. 10,000
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Note 26. Tax expense

(¥ crore )

P For the year Ended For the year Ended

Biiclars 31st March, 2022 || 31st March, 2021
(a) Current Tax 141.05 59.22
Total 141.05 59.22

A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to accounting profit / (loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate
to recognised income tax expenses for the year indicated are as follows:

. For the year Ended For the year Ended
Particulars
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Profit before tax 803.79 208.22
Enacted tax rate 34.94% 34.944%
Expected tax expense at statutory tax rate 280.87 72.76
Tax effect due to tax holiday (258.11) (68.26)
Effect due to non deductible expenses 2.25 1.09
Deferred tax / tax credit recognised from earlier year - (0.63)
Effect of taxes (recoverable)/payable in future tariff 147.02 38.14
Impact due to reduced rate of tax during the year (31.29) 15.82
Others - 0.27
OCI Tax 0.31 0.04

Tax expenses for the year 141.05 59.22

Deferred tax assets / {liabilities)

Significant components of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) ,deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses recognised in the

Financial Statements are follows:

Recognised /

Particulars As at 31st (reversed) through As at 31st
March,2021 profit or loss/ OCl / March,2022
equity
Property plant & equipment 77.67 84.69 162.36
Borrowings . (17.73) (17.73)
MAT credit - 76.37 76.37
oci - 31.17 31.17
Recoverable / (payable) in future tariff (64.07) (178.18) (242.25)
Others (13.60) 3.68 (9.92)
Total - S -
Recognised /
Particulars As at 31st (reversed) through As at 31st
March,2020 profit or loss/ OCl / March,2021
equity
Property plant & equipment 25.42 52.25 77.67
MAT credit 2.58 (2.58) =
Recoverable / (payable) in future tariff (25.93) (38.14) (64.07)
Others (2.07) (11.53) (13.60)

Total
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 28. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 3 above, the Company is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Service concession arrangements

The Management has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Ind AS 115: Service Concession
Arrangements (revenue from contract with customer) with respect to its power plant and
transmission assets portfolio. In assessing the applicability, they have exercised significant
judgment in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, terms of implementation
agreements and power purchase agreements entered with the grantor, ability to determine prices,
useful lives of the assets, assessment of right to guaranteed cash etc. Based on detailed evaluation,
the Management has determined that arrangement in relation to the Company’s Baspa power plant
(300 MW) meets the criterion for recognition as service concession arrangements.

Revenue recoqnition

a) In case of BASPA, revenue from sale of power is accounted for on the basis of billing to
Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) as per Tariff approved by Himachal
Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (HPERC) in accordance with the provisions of the Long
Term Power Purchase Agreement (LTPPA) dated 4" June,1997, Amendment No. 1 dated 7"
January,1998, executed between the Company and HPSEBL,

b) In case of KARCHAM Wangtoo, revenue from sale of power is accounted as under:

i) The long term PPA sales are accounted on the basis of applicable CERC regulations and
respective Tariff orders/ Tariff petition as filled with Central Electricity Regulatory Commission for
determining the tariff of Karcham Wangtoo plant.

ii) Sale of power under Short Term through the Power Exchange is accounted for on the basis of
billing as per the agreed rate.

iii) The Central Electricity Authority ("CEA") has approved uprating of Karcham Wangtoo Hydro
Electric Power Plant ("the Project") from 1,000 MW to 1,045 MW with review of operational
parameters and performance for at least two monsoon seasons and then to 1,091 MW subject to
concurrence by the CEA.

Evaluation of arrangements to determine whether it contains lease arrangements:

The management has critically evaluated the terms of the contract (including by obtaining
independent legal advice) with respect to Karcham Wangtoo Hydro Plant to determine whether the
contract is, in substance, with a customer or with multiple state electricity utility companies, and
the customer is merely acting as an intermediator/facilitator. Based on such evaluation, it was

/?_E}ﬂg-].L!ﬁE}U‘:t-t‘{\at the arrangement is not in the nature of lease in terms of Ind AS 116,
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JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Kev sources of estimation uncertainties

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is
usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves
management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic
and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash
flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are
very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in
the notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognised nor
disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters needs to be
classified as ‘remote,’ ‘possible’ or ‘probable’ based on expert advice, past judgements, terms of the

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF

model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations and mortality rates etc. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting

Tax

The Company is subject to tax, principally in India. The amount of tax payable in respect of any
period is dependent upon the interpretation of the relevant tax rules. Whilst an assessment must be
made of deferred tax position of the entity, these matters are inherently uncertain until the position
of the entity is agreed with the relevant tax authorities.

Onerous contract:

While ascertaining the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a power purchase
contract, the Management has exercised significant judgement in arriving at plant load factor,
enfs of incremental unavoidable cost of executing the contract and it's escalations.




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Note 29, Financial Instruments:
a) Financial Instruments by category

( ¥ Crore )
As at 31 March, 2022 ‘;‘:x::g Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FEinancial assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in mutual fund units 612,72 612.72 612,72 -
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits 0.61 0.61 = 0.61
Trade receivables # 69.28 69.28 ks
Receivables-Service concession agreement 119.83 129.43 = 129.43
gash and casn equivaients and other bank balances 304.06 304.06 _
Unbilled revenue 77.87 77.87 .
Interest Receivable 0.78 0.78 = i
Other Receivable 0.10 0.10 = =
Receivable from 1JSW Neo Energy Limited 789.33 789.33 = r
Foreign Currency Options 66.13 66.13 66.13 -
| Total Financial assets 2,040.71 2,050.31 678.85 130.04
Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Green Bonds 5,101.51 - = 5,101.51
Short term Borrowlngs (WCDL) -t - l
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.02 0.02 - i
Trade Payables # 26.46 26.46 = v
Payable for capital projects# 35.43 35.43 = -
Other payable# 638.27 638.27 - -
Lease Llability 26.25 26.25 - 26.25
Interest accrured but bot due on borrowings 78.82 78.82 - >
Total Financial liabilities 5,906.76 805.25 - 5,127.76




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Ko

( ¥ Crore )
As at 31° March, 2021 (;ar:;y‘j:? Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in mutual fund units 472.22 472.22 472.22 -
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits 0.60 0.60 = 0.60
Trade receivables # 51.26 51.26 2 -
Receivables-Service concession agreement 171.36 185.50 - IBS.E
;"asn and casn equivalents and other bank balances 150.10 150.10 .
Unbilled Revenue 75.51 75.51 2
Interest Receivable 0.97 0.97 -
Total Financial assets 922.02 936.16 472.22 186.10
Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 5,140.30 - - 5,140.30
Short term 8orrowings (WCDL) 30.00 - - 30.00
Rent and Other Deposits # 0.02 0.02 = =
Trade Payables # 25.87 25.87 - -
Payable for capital projects# 33.08 33.08 -
Other payable# 925.67 925.67 - -
Lease Liabilitles 26.53 26.53 - 26.53
Interest accrured but bot due on borrowings 21.76 21.76 - =
Total Financial liabilities 6,203.23 1,032,93 - 5,196.83

#The carrying amounts of ancillary borrowing cost, trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other receivables, trade payables, capital

creditors, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, rent and other deposits are considered to be the same as their fair values,

due to their short term nature. The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included In the level 2 are based on NAV and

in level 3 based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the cradit risk of
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

ii) Fair Value Hierarchy:

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

(a) recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial

instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The carrying amount of investment in unquoted equity instrument measured at fair value (which are not disclosed below) is considered to

be the same as it’s fair values.

Particulars

As at31st
March,2022

As at 31st
March,2021

Level

Valuation
Technique

Financial assets

Foreign Cumency Options

66.13

Inputs other than
quoted prices
included within
level 1 that are
observable for,
asset or liability,
either directly (i.e.
as prices) ot
indirectly (derived
from prices).

Investment in mutual fund units

612.72

472.22

Cost is considered
as per NAV as on

31% March,2022

/31" March,2021




JSW HYDRO ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amount of current investments, Trade Receivable, Unbilled revenue, Trade Payable, Capital Creditors, Cash & Cash
Equivalents, Other bank balances, Other Financial assets and Other financial liabilities (Other than those specifically disclosed) are to be
considered to be the same as fair values, due to their short term nature.

As at 31st March,2022 As at 31st March,2021 Level -
. Valuatian

Technique

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets

Valuation
techniques for
Service Concession receivable 119.83 129.43 171.36 185.50 3 which the lowest
|level input that is
significant to the
fair value
Security deposits 0.61 0.61 0.60 0.60 3 measurement is
ungbservable.

Total 120.44| 130.04 171.96 186.10

Financial Liabilities

Valuation
techniques far
which the lowest
level input that is
significant to the
fair value
measurement is
unobservabile.

Borrowings {Long Term} 5,101.51 5,101.51 5,140.30 5,140.30 3

Lease Liability 26.25 26.25 26,53 26.53 3

Total 5,127.76 5,127.76 5,166.83 5,166.83

Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services ta the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial
markets, monitars and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of
financial derivatives is governed by the Company‘s policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment
of excess liquidity. Compliance with paolicies and exposure limits is reviewed by the intermal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company
does not anter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statemnent for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise,
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts and currency
options.

The outstanding foreign exchange options contracts entered by the company and outstanding are as under:

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021

No. of Contracts 4

Type of Contracts Call Spread -
Equivalent to USD in millions 122.81 -
Average exchange rate (1USD=Rupees) 75.81 -
Nomtnal Value (Rs. In Crore.) 931.02 -
Fair Value MTM asset/(liabllities) (Rs. In crore) 1648 3

The Company uses foreign currency options contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain
firm commitments and foreign currency required at the settiement date of certain payables. The use of foreign currency options contracts
is governed by the Company’s strategy approved by the Board of Directors, which provide principles on the use of such options contracts
consistent with the Company’s risk management policy.

Movement in Cash flow hedge: { T Crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2022

Opening Balance

FX recognised in other comprehensive income {123.83) 3

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in P&L

Amount reclassified to P&L during the year

Closing Balance {123.83) -

Note: Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the previous financial year 2020-21
are nil.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market Interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt
obligations with flxed interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining fixed rate of borrowings.

The Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note,
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Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis Is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonabty possible change in interest rates.
During the financial year 2021-22 the entire borrowings has been converted from the floating Interest rate to fixed rate of interest hence
there is no floating rate liabilities has been incurred during the year.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:
( € Crore )

Unamortised

As at March,2022 Net Balance A Gross Balance
Transaction Cost
Fixed rate borrowings 5,101.51 70.46 5,171.97
Total 5,101.51 70.46 5,171.97
{ T Crore )

mortised
As at March,2021 Net Balance ung °, = Gross Balance
Transaction Cost

Floating rate borrowings 5,170.30 31.84 5,202.14
Total 5,170.30 31.84 5,202.14

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy caunterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored.

ln addition, the Company 1s exposed to credit risk In relation to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the Company. lhe
Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could have to pay, if the guarantee is called on. No
amount has been recoanised in the financial position as financial liabilities

The state electricity distribution companies (Government companies) are the major customer of the Company and accordingly, credit risk
is minimal.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously manitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.
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The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at reporting date.

l7t

( T Crore )

As at 31 March, 2022
Particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Neon-current financial liabilities
Long term borrowings - 1,359.72 3,323.23 4,682.95
Qther long-term lisbilities
Rent and other Deposits - 0.02 = 0.02
Lease payable - 1.94 24.07 26.01
Other Payable - 70.03 = 70,03
Total Non-Current financial Li-abilities 1,431.71 3,347.30 4,779.01
Current financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables and acceptances:
Trade payables - Other than acceptances 5.23 21.23 - 26.46
Other currgnt financial lisbilities:
Short Term Borrowings 418.56 - 418.56
Short Term Borrowings{WCDL) - - -
Payable for capital project 35.43 - - 35.43
Other payable 568.24 - - 568.24
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 78.82 - = 78.82
Lease payable 0.24 - - 0.24
Total current financial liabilities 1,106.52 21.23 - 1,127.75
Total Financial Liabilities 1,106.52 1,452.94 3,347.30 5,906.76
Non-current Financial assets
0 rm loans and advan
Security deposits - 0.01 0.60 0.61
Ancillary Borrowing cost - - - -
Service concession - arrangements - 61.07 0.34 61.41
Dther advances = = = =
Total Non-current financial Assets - 61.08 0.94 62.02
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 69.28 - - 69.28
Cash and cash equivalents 13.93 - . 13.93
Bank Balances other than above 290.13 - - 290.13
Service concession — arrangements 58.42 - - 58.42
Investments in mutual fund 612.72 - 612.72
Unbilled revenue 77.87 - - 77.87
Other Receivable 0.10 . - 0.10
Receivable from JSW Neo Energy Limited 789.33 - - 789.33
Foreign Currency Options 66.13 - - 66.13
[nterest Receivable 0.78 - 0.78
Total current financial assets 1,978.69 - - 1,978.62

Fqnan Aisets 1,978.69 61.08 0.94 2,040.71
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(T Crore)
As at 31 March, 2021
Particulars < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Non-current financial liabilities
Long termn borrowings - 1,171.95 3,666.13 4,838.08
Other long-te: inancial limbilities
Rent and other Deposits 0.02 & 0.02
Lease payable - 1.65 24,60 26.25
Other payable - 425.95 - 425.95
Total Non-Current financial Liabilities - 1,599.57 3,690.73 5,290.30
Current financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables and acceptances:
Trade payables - Other than acceptances 25.87 - - 25.87
Other currant financial liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 302.22 - 302.22
Short Term Borrowings (WCDL) 30.00 - 30.00
Payable for capital project 33.08 - - 33.08
Other payable 499.72 - z 499.72
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 21.76 - = 21.76
Lease Payable 0.28 - . 0.28
Total current financial liabilities 912.93 - = 912,93
Total Financial Liabilities 912.93 1,599.57 3,690.73 6,203.23
Non-current financial assets

grm | 5 ang advan

Security deposits - 0.01 0.59 0.60
Ancillary Borrowing cost - - = =
Service cancession—-arrangements - 119.48 0.35 119.83
Other advances - 0.02 - 0.02
‘Total Non-current financial Assets - 119.51 0.94 120.45
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 51.26 . - 51.26
Cash and cash equivalents 109.94 - - 109.924
Bank Balances other than above 40.14 - - 40.14
[nvestments in mutual fund 472,22 - - 472.22
Service concession-arrangements 51.53 - - 51,53
Unbilied revenue 75.51 - - 75.51
Interest Receivable 0.97 - - 0.97
Total current financial assets 801.57 - - 801.57
Total Financial Assets 801.57 119.51 0.94 922,02

The Company has hypothecated part of its trade receivables, loans, short term investments and cash and cash equivalents in order to
fulfil certain collaterat requirements for the banking facilities extended to the Company. There is obligation to release the hypothecation

ities to the Company once these banking facilities are surrendered. (Refer Note 15)
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Note 30 Capital management

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios

and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity,

The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion ,repayment of principal and interest on its
borrowings and strategic acquisition.The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to continue
to be, cash generated from its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the capital markets. The
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company regularly considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest
cost and align maturity profile of its debt commensurate with life of the asset and closely monitors its judicious allocation
amongst competing capital expansion projects and strategic acquisitions, to capture market opportunities at minimum risk.

Gearing ratio
The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity as given below:

( ¥ Crore )

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March,2022 | March,2021
Debt (i) 5,101.51 5,170.30
Cash and bank balances (including current investment in liquid fund) (ii) 503.89 582.16
Net debt (i-ii) 4,597.62 4,588.14
Total equity (iii) 2,529.17 1,988.56
Net debt to equity ratio 1.82 2.31

(i) Debt includes long term and short term borrowings (refer nate No-15)

(i1} Includes cash and cash equivalents balance in bank deposits and investments in mutual fund (other than earmarked
deposits and Investment in Mutual Funds)

(iif) Includes equity share capital and other equity.
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Note 31. Credit Risk

The average credit period on sale of power is 60 /30 days for Karcham Wangtoo HEP and Baspa II HEP
respectively.

Trade receivables include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Company has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Allowances for doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverabie
amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the
counterparty's current financial position.

Ageing of Trade receivable:*

( ¥ Crore)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March,2022 March,2021

Within the credit period 86.98 89.16
1-30 days past due 17.78 0.24
31-60 days past due - 15.04
61-90 days past due - 1.39
91-180 days past due 0.65
>180 days past due 42.39 20.28
Total 147.15 126.76

*Above mentioned Customer’s balance Includes unbilled revenue of ¥ 77.87 Crore (Previous year ¥ 75.51
Crore.)
Customer contributing more than 10% of revenue

Revenue from operations includes revenue aggregating to ¥1,798.43 crore (previous year : ¥1,210.18
crore) from two (previous year :two) major customers having more than 10% of total revenue from
operations of the Company.

Note 32. Service concession arrangement

(a) Description of the concession arrangement:

On 1st October, 1982, a service concession agreement was entered into with the Government of
Himachal Pradesh (“the Gavernment”) to establish, own, operate and maintain 300 MW Hydro Electric
power plant at Baspa, Kuppa, Himachal Pradesh (“the power plant”) for supply of power to Himachal
State Electricity Board. Pursuant to the above, a power purchase agreement was entered with Himachal
Pradesh State Electricity Board (“the PPA").

i —
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(b) Significant terms of the concession arrangement:

Term Particulars
40 years from date of commissioning of the power
plant and extendable for 20 years at the option of the

Period of arrangement

Commissianing of the Power plant June 8, 2003
Approved by Himachal Pradesh Electricity Regulatory
Tariff Commission {HPERC) having regard to the tariff

entitlement under the PPA

After the expiry of the agreement period, the
Government has the option to purchase all the assets
and works of the power plant, at mutually agreed
terms.

Option to purchase

12 % free power of the electricity generated is to
Free power supplied to the Government

(c) Obligation for overhaul:

Under the concession agreement, the Company has to manage, operate, maintain and repair the power
plant entirely at its own cost.

(d) Renewal /Termination options:

Termination of the concession agreement can happen before expiry date under the farce majeure events
and default by either parties of the concession agreement

(e) Classification of service concession arrangement in the Financial Statements:

{ T Crore )
o As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March,2022 March,2021

Intangible asset - Rights under service concession receivable

713.44 746.76
(refer note 6)
Financial asset — Receivable under service concession arrangement

119.83 171.36
(refer note 7)

Note 33. Operating segment

The Chairman of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the Company is
primarily engaged in only one segment viz., "Generation and Sale of power" and that most of the
operations are in India. Hence the Company has single reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting
Standard 108 "Operating Segments",

The information regarding the revenue from customers of it's single reportable Segment has been

]

.
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Note 34. Earnings per share

e For the Year For the Year
ended 31% ended 31°
March, 2022 March, 2021

Profit for the year ( crore) - (A) 662.74 143.00

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & diluted EPS - (B) 1,250,050,000| 1,250,050,000

Earnings Per Share (% crare) - Basic and Diluted (C) - (A/B) 5.30 1.19

10 10

Nominal value of an equity share (¥ crore)

Note 35. Employee benefit Plans:

(a) Defined contripution plans - Pravident fund:

The employer's contribution for the period from 1st Apr 2020 to 31st December 2020, were deposited with the employer established
provident fund trust maintained by the Company. Further, the said trust was surrendered to the provident fund autharities w.e.f 1st
January 2021 and correspondingly, the employees provident fund balances lying with the provident fund trust were transferred to the
respective employee’s accounts with provident fund authorities. The monthly employer's contributions from January 21 onwards are
being deposited with regional provident fund authorities

The Company’s contribution to provident fund recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss of ¥ 2.01 crore (Previous year ¥ 2.22 crore)
(Included in note 22)

(b) Mational pension scheme:

The company’s contribution to National Pension Scheme (NPS) recognized in statement of profit and loss of ¥ 0.13 crore (Year ended
31st March, 2021 : % 0.15 crore) (Included in Note 22)

(c) Defined benefits plans - Graluity;

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The amount of gratuity shall be payable to
an employee on the termination of his employment after he has rendered continuous service for not less than five years, or on their
superannuation or resignation. However, in case of death of an employee, the minimum period of five years shall not be required. The
amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for
15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service completed. The gratuity plan is a funded plan administered by a separate
fund that is legally separated from the entity and the company makes contributions to the insurer (LIC). The company does not fully fund
the liabllity and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity
payments.

(d} Compensatad absences pian

Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment upto a maximum accumulation of 120 days is payable to all eligible employees
on separation of the company due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation, at the rate of daily salary.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculdted using a discount rate determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bond vields; if the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced
investment in equity securities and debt instruments.

Investment risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by

Inle_tusk an increase in the return on the plan‘s debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

SR UL participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of

e AR Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does

Mortality risk not have any langevity risk.

Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default
will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companieshave [0 miaw

Concentration risk
B — e regulatory guidelines. :
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The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31st
March, 2022 by M/S K A Pandit, Consultants & Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Changes in the present value

of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

( ¥ Crare)
pefined benefit obligation as at 1st April, 2020 5.27
Interest cost 0.36
Current service cost 0.58
Liabilities Transferred In / Acquisition 0.22
Liabilities Transferred aut / Divestment {0.25)
Benefits paid (0.33)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss {0.03)
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March, 2021 5.82
Interest cost 0.38
Current service cost 0.59
Liabilities Transferred In / Acquisitian 0.24
Liabilities Transferred out / Divestment (0.24)
Benefits paid (0.72)
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 1.73
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 March, 2022 7.80
Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31% March, 2022
( ¥ Crore)
. Defined Benefit Fair Value of (Benefit)/
ol oL Obligation Plan assets Liability
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 2021 5.82 1.18 4.64
Current Service cost 0.59 0.59
Gratuity cost charged ta|Net interest expense /(Income) 0.38 0.08 0.30
Biafikordloss Liability Transferred in/Acquisitions 0.24 - 0.24
(Liability Transferred out/Divestments) (0.24) = (0.24)
Sub-total included in profit or lass 0.97 0.08 0.89
Benefits paid {0.72) (0.72) =
.ReturnA on plan assets (excluding amounts included 0.03) 0.03
Re-measurement  gains /|17 net interest expense)
(losses) in other|Actuarial changes arising from changes in 0.86 ~ 0.86
comprehensive income financial/Demographic assumptions . )
Experience adjustments 0.87 - 0.87
Sub-total included in OCI 1.73 {0.03) 1.75
Contributions by employer - 3.49 {3.49)
Closing Balance as on 31st March, 2022 7.80 4.00 3.79
Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at 31st March, 2021
(¥ Crore)
A Defined Benefit Fair Value of (Benefit)/
P "
anticalars Obligation Plan assets Liability
Opening Balance as on 1st April, 2020 5.27 1,56 3.71
Current Service cost 0.58 e 0.58
Gratuity cost charged to|Netinterest expense /{I<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>